Public Document Pack

Mid Devon District Council

Cabinet

Thursday, 23 April 2020 at 6.00 pm
The meeting will be held remotely

Next ordinary meeting
Thursday, 7 May 2020 at 6.00 pm

Important - this meeting will be conducted and recorded by Zoom only.
Please do not attend Phoenix House. The attached Protocol for Remote
Meetings explains how this will work.

To join this meeting, please click the following link:
https://zoom.us/j/952262190987?pwd=dU1VYVVoRWFjeldPbEVDN2x0b2RkQTO
9

Meeting ID: 952 2621 9098

Password: 849999

One tap mobile

+442080806592,,95226219098%#,,#,849999# United Kingdom
Dial by your location

+44 208 080 6592 United Kingdom

+44 330 088 5830 United Kingdom

Membership

Clir R M Deed

Clir L D Taylor

Clir G Barnell

Clir S J Clist

Clir D J Knowles

Clir Ms E J Wainwright
Clir A White

Cllr Mrs N Woollatt

AGENDA

Members are reminded of the need to make declarations of interest prior to any
discussion which may take place

1. Apologies
To receive any apologies for absence.

2. Public Question Time
To receive any questions relating to items on the Agenda from members
of the public and replies thereto.

Committee Administrator: Sally Gabriel

Tel: 01884 234229

Email: sgabriel@middevon.gov.uk

This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk



http://www.middevon.gov.uk/
https://zoom.us/j/95226219098?pwd=dU1VYVVoRWFjeldPbEVDN2x0b2RkQT09
https://zoom.us/j/95226219098?pwd=dU1VYVVoRWFjeldPbEVDN2x0b2RkQT09

Declarations of Interest under the Code of Conduct

Councillors are reminded of the requirement to declare any interest,
including the type of interest, and reason for that interest, either at this
stage of the meeting or as soon as they become aware of that interest.

Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 18)
Members to consider whether to approve the minutes as a correct
record of the meeting held on 13 February 2020.

Environment Educational Policy (Pages 19 - 74)

Following a report of the Group Manager for Street Scene and Open
Spaces, the Environment Policy Development Group have made the
following recommendations: that subject to the suggested amendments
(as attached):

i) Fixed Penalty Notices for fly tipping be increased from £200 to
£400 and the powers to use CCTV footage be adopted to
assist with fly tipping Fixed Penalty Notices and to include this
within Council policy (Appendix A).

ii) The new powers set out in the Littering from Vehicles
Regulations (Policy) 2018 be adopted and this be included
within the new Council policy (Appendix B).

iii) Changes to the Council Compulsory Recycling Policy be
adopted following government guidance (Appendix C).

iv)  The amended Abandoned Vehicle (Act) legislation be adopted
and included within the Council Policy (Appendix D) which will
enable Officers to investigate vehicles within the ‘open air’.

V) The Stray Dog Policy (Appendix E) be updated and authority
sought for the Environment and Enforcement Manager to be
the officer appointed under section 149 of the Environmental
Protection Act 1990 to keep the public register which contains
the prescribed particulars of, or relating to dogs seized under
this section.

Public Spaces Protection Order (Pages 75 - 252)

Following a report of the Group Manager for Street Scene and Open
Spaces, the Environment Policy Development Group have made the
following recommendation that:

i) Authority be given to consult with members of the public and
other relevant stakeholders to introduce a Public Spaces
Protection Order (PSPO) under Section 59 of the Anti-Social
Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014.

ii) The fixed penalty for breach of the order be set at the
maximum level permitted of £100.
2

Committee Administrator: Sally Gabriel

Tel: 01884 234229

Email: sgabriel@middevon.gov.uk

This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk



http://www.middevon.gov.uk/

10.

11.

12.

13.

Climate Change Advisory Group (Pages 253 - 256)

Arising from a report of the Head of Legal (Monitoring Officer), the
Environment Policy Development Group have made the following
recommendations: that

(@) a Net Zero Advisory Group be established;

(b)  the membership of the Group comprise eight Members — 3
Conservative, 2 Liberal Democrat, 2 Independent and 1 Green
(not politically balanced); and

(c) the terms of reference be finalised by the Group, unless the
Cabinet wishes to set the general terms in line with those in this
report.

Car Parking Management Policy (Pages 257 - 268)

Following a report of the Group Manager for Housing, the Homes Policy
Development Group has made the following recommendation: that the
revised policy be approved.

Garage Management Policy (Pages 269 - 280)

Following a report of the Group Manager for Housing, the Homes Policy
Development Group has made the following recommendation: that the
revised policy be approved.

Cullompton and Wellington New Railway Stations Project -
Governance, Process, Project Funding and Next Steps (Pages 281
- 292)

To consider a report of the Head of Planning, Economy and
Regeneration setting out the proposed governance arrangements in
order to establish clear lines of decision making for the project and to
identify the next steps for taking forward the project.

Cleaning Contractors (Pages 293 - 312)

To consider a report of the Group Manager for Property and Commercial
Assets reviewing the results of the tender exercise for the corporate
cleaning that includes offices, leisure centres and public conveniences.

Notification of Key Decisions (Pages 313 - 324)
To note the contents of the Forward Plan.

Access to Information - Exclusion of the Press and Public

During discussion of the following item(s) it may be necessary to pass

the following resolution to exclude the press and public having reflected

on Article 12 12.02(d) (a presumption in favour of openness) of the

Constitution. This decision may be required because consideration of
3

Committee Administrator: Sally Gabriel

Tel: 01884 234229

Email: sgabriel@middevon.gov.uk

This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk



http://www.middevon.gov.uk/

this matter in public may disclose information falling within one of the
descriptions of exempt information in Schedule 12A to the Local
Government Act 1972. The Cabinet will need to decide whether, in all
the circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the
exemption, outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

To consider passing the following resolution so that financial information
may be discussed.

Recommended that under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government
Act 1972 the public be excluded from the next item of business on the
grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in paragraph 3 respectively of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act,
namely information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the authority holding that information)

14. To consider the sale of 19 High Street, Cullompton (Former
Harlequin Valet Site) (Pages 325 - 342)
To consider a report of the Group Manager for Property and Commercial
Assets recommending the sale of the site under a statutory power of
sale.

Stephen Walford
Chief Executive
Wednesday, 15 April 2020

Covid-19 and meetings

The Council will be holding some meetings in the next few weeks, but these will
not be in person at Phoenix House until the Covid-19 crisis eases. Instead, the
meetings will be held remotely via Zoom and you will be able to join these
meetings via the internet. Please see the instructions on each agenda and
read the Protocol on Remote Meetings before you join.

If you want to ask a question or speak, email your full name to
Committee@middevon.gov.uk by no later than 4pm on the day before the
meeting. This will ensure that your name is on the list to speak and will help us
ensure that you are not missed — as you can imagine, it is easier to see and
manage public speaking when everyone is physically present in the same
room. Notification in this way will ensure the meeting runs as smoothly as
possible.

If you require any further information, please contact Sally Gabriel —
sgabriel@middevon.gov.uk

Committee Administrator: Sally Gabriel

Tel: 01884 234229

Email: sgabriel@middevon.gov.uk

This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk



http://www.middevon.gov.uk/
mailto:Committee@middevon.gov.uk
mailto:sgabriel@middevon.gov.uk

Mid Devon District Council - Remote Meetings Protocol
1. Introduction

The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of
Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales)
Regulations permit remote attendance in Local Authority meetings.

Remote attendance is permitted as long as certain conditions are satisfied.
These include that the Member is able to hear and be heard by the other
Members in attendance. Also, being able to hear and be heard by any members
of the public entitled to attend the meeting (in line with the public participation
scheme). A visual solution is preferred, but audio is sufficient.

This also relates to members of the public attending the meeting also being
heard.

The regulations are clear that a meeting is not limited to those present in the
same place, but includes electronic, digital or virtual locations (internet
locations, web addresses or conference call telephone numbers).

2. Zoom

Zoom is the system the Council will be using for the time-being to host remote /
virtual meetings. It has functionality for audio, video, and screen sharing and
you do not need to be a member of the Council or have a Zoom account to join
a Zoom meeting.

3. Access to documents

Member Services will publish the agenda and reports for committee meetings
on the Council’s website in line with usual practice. Paper copies of agendas
will only be made available to those who have previously requested this and
also the Chair of a virtual meeting.

If any other Member wishes to have a paper copy, they must notify the Member
Services before the agenda is published, so they can arrange to post directly —
it may take longer to organise printing, so as much notice as possible is
appreciated.

Printed copies will not be available for inspection at the Council’s offices and
this requirement was removed by the Regulations.

4. Setting up the Meeting

This will be done by Member Services. They will send a meeting request via
Outlook which will appear in Members’ Outlook calendar. Members will receive
a URL link to click on to join the meeting.

Committee Administrator: Sally Gabriel

Tel: 01884 234229

Email: sgabriel@middevon.gov.uk

This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk



http://www.middevon.gov.uk/

5. Public Access

Members of the public will be able to use a weblink and standard internet
browser. This will be displayed on the front of the agenda.

6. Joining the Meeting

Councillors must join the meeting early (i.e. at least five minutes before the
scheduled start time) in order to avoid disrupting or delaying the meeting.
Councillors should remember that they may be visible and heard by others,
including the public, during this time.

7. Starting the Meeting

At the start of the meeting, the Member Services Officer will check all required
attendees are present (viewing the participant list) and that there is a quorum. If
there is no quorum, the meeting will be adjourned. This applies if, during the
meeting, it becomes inquorate for whatever reason.

The Chair will remind all Members, Officers and the Public that all
microphones will be automatically muted, unless and until they are
speaking. This prevents background noise, coughing etc. which is intrusive and
disruptive during the meeting. The Hosting Officer will enforce this and will be
able to turn off participant mics when they are not in use. Members would then
need to turn their microphones back on when they wish to speak.

8. Public Participation

Participation by members of the public will continue in line with the Council’s
current arrangements as far as is practicable. However, to ensure that the
meeting runs smoothly and that no member of the public is missed, all those
who wish to speak must register by 4pm on the day before the meeting.
They should email their full name to Committee@middevon.gov.uk. If they wish
to circulate their question in advance, that would be helpful.

At public question time, the Chair will invite the public by name to speak at the
appropriate time. At that point, all public microphones will be enabled. This
means that, to avoid private conversations being overheard, no member of the
public should speak until it is their turn and they should then refrain from
speaking until the end of public question time, when all microphones will be
muted again. In the normal way, the public should state their full name, the
agenda item they wish to speak to before they proceed with their question.

Unless they have registered, a member of the public will not be called to speak.

If a member of the public wishes to ask a question but cannot attend the
meeting for whatever reason, there is nothing to prevent them from emailing
members of the Committee with their question, views or concern in advance.

6

Committee Administrator: Sally Gabriel

Tel: 01884 234229

Email: sgabriel@middevon.gov.uk

This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk



http://www.middevon.gov.uk/
mailto:Committee@middevon.gov.uk

However, if they do so, it would be helpful if a copy could be sent to
Committee@middevon.gov.uk as well.

9. Declaration of Interests

Councillors should declare their interests in the usual way. A councillor with a
disclosable pecuniary interest is required to the leave the room. For remote
meetings, this means that they will be moved to a break-out room for the
duration of this item and will only be invited back into the meeting when
discussion on the relevant item has finished.

10. The Meeting and Debate

The Council will not be using the Chat function. The Chair will call each
member of the Committee to speak in turn and will continue in this way until no
member has anything more to add.

When referring to reports or making specific comments, Councillors should refer
to the report and page number, so that all Members of the Committee have a
clear understanding of what is being discussed at all times.

11. Voting

On a recommendation or motion being put to the vote, the Chair will go round
the virtual room and ask each member entitled to vote to say whether they are
for or against or whether they abstain. The Member Services Officer will
announce the numerical result of the vote.

12. Meeting Etiquette Reminder

Mute your microphone — you will still be able to hear what is being said.
Only speak when invited to do so by the Chair.

Speak clearly and please state your name each time you speak

If you're referring to a specific page, mention the page number.

13. Part 2 Reports and Debate

There are times when council meetings are not open to the public, when
confidential, or “exempt” issues — as defined in Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972 — are under consideration. It is important to ensure that
there are no members of the public at remote locations able to hear or see the
proceedings during such meetings.

Any Councillor in remote attendance must ensure that there is no other person
present — a failure to do so could be in breach of the Council's Code of
Conduct.

If there are members of the public and press listening to the open part of the
meeting, then the Member Services Officer will, at the appropriate time, remove

7

Committee Administrator: Sally Gabriel

Tel: 01884 234229

Email: sgabriel@middevon.gov.uk

This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk



http://www.middevon.gov.uk/
mailto:Committee@middevon.gov.uk

them to a break-out room for the duration of that item. They can then be invited
back in when the business returns to Part 1.

Please turn off smart speakers such as Amazon Echo (Alexa), Google Home or
smart music devices. These could inadvertently record phone or video
conversations, which would not be appropriate during the consideration of
confidential items.

14. Interpretation of standing orders

Where the Chair is required to interpret the Council’'s Constitution and
procedural rules in light of the requirements of remote participation, they may
take advice from the Member Services Officer or Monitoring Officer prior to
making a ruling. However, the Chair’s decision shall be final.

15. Disorderly Conduct by Members

If a Member behaves in the manner as outlined in the Constitution (persistently
ignoring or disrobing the ruling of the Chair or behaving irregularly, improperly
or offensively or deliberately obstructs the business of the meeting), any other
Member may move 'That the member named be not further heard' which, if
seconded, must be put to the vote without discussion.

If the same behaviour persists and a Motion is approved 'that the member
named do leave the meeting', then they will be removed as a participant by the
Member Services Officer.

16. Disturbance from Members of the Public

If any member of the public interrupts a meeting the Chair will warn them
accordingly. If that person continues to interrupt or disrupt proceedings the
Chair will ask the Member Services Officer to remove them as a participant from
the meeting.

17.  After the meeting

Please ensure you leave the meeting promptly by clicking on the red phone
button to hang up.

18. Technical issues

In the event that the Chair, the Hosting Officer or the Member Services Officer
identifies a problem with the systems from the Council’s side, the Chair should
declare a recess while the fault is addressed. If it is not possible to address the
fault and the meeting becomes inquorate through this fault, the meeting will be
adjourned until such time as it can be reconvened.

If the meeting was due to determine an urgent matter or one which is time-

limited and it has not been possible to continue because of technical difficulties,

the Chief Executive, Leader and relevant Cabinet Member, in consultation with
8

Committee Administrator: Sally Gabriel

Tel: 01884 234229

Email: sgabriel@middevon.gov.uk

This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk



http://www.middevon.gov.uk/

the Monitoring Officer, shall explore such other means of taking the decision as
may be permitted by the Council’s constitution.

For members of the public and press who experience problems during the

course of a meeting e.g. through internet connectivity or otherwise, the meeting
will not be suspended or adjourned.

Committee Administrator: Sally Gabriel
Tel: 01884 234229

Email: sgabriel@middevon.gov.uk
This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.qgov.uk



http://www.middevon.gov.uk/

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4.

MID DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL
MINUTES of a MEETING of the CABINET held on 13 February 2020 at 6.00 pm

Present

Councillors R M Deed (Leader)
L D Taylor, G Barnell, S J Clist,
D J Knowles, Ms E J Wainwright, A White
and Mrs N Woollatt

Also Present
Councillor(s) L J Cruwys, Mrs C P Daw, R J Dolley, R Evans,
B Holdman and F W Letch

Also Present

Officer(s): Stephen Walford (Chief Executive), Andrew Jarrett (Deputy
Chief Executive (S151)), Jill May (Director of Corporate
Affairs and Business Transformation), Kathryn Tebbey
(Head of Legal (Monitoring Officer)), Jenny Clifford (Head
of Planning, Economy and Regeneration), Andrew Busby
(Group Manager for Corporate Property and Commercial
Assets), Dean Emery (Group Manager for Revenues and
Benefits), Claire Fry (Group Manager for Housing),
Matthew Page (Group Manager for Human Resources),
Catherine Yandle (Group Manager for Performance,
Governance and Data Security), Carole Oliphant (Member
Services Officer) and Sally Gabriel (Member Services
Manager)

131. APOLOGIES
There were no apologies.

132. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
There were no members of the public present.

133. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT
Members were reminded of the need to declare any interests when appropriate.

134. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (00-01-35)

The minutes of the previous meeting were approved as a correct record and signed
by the Chairman.

Cabinet — 13 February 2020 Page 11 106



135. MEETING MANAGEMENT

The Chairman indicated that he wished to take Item 22 (Performance and Risk) as
the next item of business. This was AGREED.

136. PERFORMANCE AND RISK (00-02-10)

The Cabinet had before it and NOTED a * report of the Director of Corporate Affairs
and Business Transformation providing Members with an update on the performance
against the Corporate Plan and local service targets.

The Group Manager for Performance, Governance and Data Security outlined the
contents of the report stating that some suggestions for additional measures for
performance had been received from the Policy Development Groups.

Note: *Report previously circulated copy attached to minutes.
137. HRA MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN (00-04-23)

Arising from a *report of Deputy Chief Executive (S151), the Homes Policy
Development Group had recommended the Housing Revenue Account Medium
Term Financial Plan be approved.

The Cabinet Member for Finance outlined the contents of the report stating the report
had received universal support from the Homes Policy Development Group as there
was a need to demonstrate a balanced budget and the need to determine a
reasonable forecast of the financial position of the Housing Revenue Account for the
coming years.

Consideration was given to the impact of Universal Credit within the district and
countrywide with the Deputy Chief Executive suggesting that there did not seem to
be much impact at the current time with under a 1% margin on arrears being
recorded but that a watching brief continued to take place.

RESOLVED that the recommendations of the Policy Development Group be
approved.

(Proposed by Clir A White and seconded by Clir S J Clist)
Note: * Report previously circulated, copy attached to minutes.

138. INCOME MANAGEMENT POLICY (00-08-01)
Arising from a *report of the Group Manager for Housing, the Homes Policy
Development Group has recommended that the revised Income Management Policy
be approved.
The Cabinet Member for Housing and Property Services outlined the contents of the
report stating that slight amendments had been made to the original policy with

reference to vulnerable clients, payments arrangements, and expectations of new
tenants, the rationale for new tenant visits and generally how both parties should act.

Cabinet — 13 February 2020 Page 12 107



RESOLVED that the recommendation of the Policy Development Group be
approved.

(Proposed by CliIr S J Clist and seconded by the Leader)
Note: * Report previously circulated, copy attached to minutes.
139. TENANT COMPENSATION POLICY (00-09-52)

Arising from a *report of the Group Manager for Building Services, the Homes Policy
Development Group had recommended that the revised Tenant Compensation Policy
be approved.

The Cabinet Member for Housing and Property Services outlined the contents of the
report highlighting the summary of additions and revisions outlined in appendix 1,
which took into consideration tenant feedback, comments and complaints and
provided greater clarity to tenants seeking compensations or looking to make
qualifying improvements

Consideration was given to the involvement of the Tenants Together Group with the
Group Manager for Housing agreeing to provide additional feedback to members.

RESOLVED that the recommendation of the Policy Development Group be
approved.

(Proposed by Clir S J Clist and seconded by Clir L D Taylor)
Note: * Report previously circulated, copy attached to minutes.

140. IMPROVEMENTS TO COUNCIL PROPERTY POLICY (00-13-20)
Arising from a *report of the Group Manager for Building Services, the Homes Policy
Development Group had recommended that the Review of Improvements to Council
Properties Policy be approved.
The Cabinet Member for Housing and Property Services outlined the contents of the
report stating that there had been minor changes to the policy which would be for
officer use and tenant reference, this policy would be aligned with the latest tenancy

agreements and also the tenant compensation policy.

Consideration was given to the involvement of the Tenants Together Group with the
Group Manager for Housing agreeing to provide additional feedback to members.

RESOLVED that the recommendation of the Policy Development Group be
approved.

(Proposed by Clir S J Clist and seconded by Clir D J Knowles)

Note: * Report previously circulated, copy attached to minutes.

Cabinet — 13 February 2020 Page 13 108



141. MOTION 561 (COUNCILLOR R B EVANS - 17 DECEMBER 2019) (00-15-27)

The following motion had been passed to the Cabinet from Council for consideration
and report:

Development Management Policy

That this council commits to proactively seeking out and exploring that every
opportunity is taken to install a carbon neutral power supply option within all new
build development from 01/01/2021 but specifically when residential development is
being planned.

The Chairman invited Clir Evans to address the Cabinet.

Cllir Evans made reference to a management note which suggested that any change
to planning policy would be constrained until 2023, he therefore wished to withdraw
the motion.

Therefore no further discussion took place with regard to this item.

142. MOTION 562 (COUNCILLOR R B EVANS - 17 DECEMBER 2019) (00-16-26)

The following Motion had been passed to the Cabinet from Council for consideration
and report:

That MDDC commits to proactively seeking out and exploring development of a long
term partnership with a company / companies that can supply innovative power
generation that offers carbon neutral power and where possible seeks to give an
income stream back to the authority when operational.

That officers are instructed to seek out and explore such opportunities with available
companies with immediate effect in order that MDDC can ensure we are actively
addressing our own policy to seeking to be carbon neutral by 2030.

The Chairman invited Clir Evans to address the Cabinet.

Clir Evans spoke, stating that he understood that much of the contents of his motion
was already taking place or was proposed but that he would like the Council to
commit to such actions.

Consideration was given to the contents of the draft Corporate Plan and the items
identified within it.

It was therefore:
RECOMMENDED to Council that Motion 562 be supported

(Proposed by Clir Mrs N Woollatt and seconded by Clir D J Knowles)

Cabinet — 13 February 2020 Page 14 109


x-apple-data-detectors://7/

143. NATIONAL NON-DOMESTIC RATES (00-18-15)

The Cabinet had before it a *report from the Group Manager for Revenues and
Benefits providing Members with an update of the income generation and financial
implications of the number of Business Rate properties in Mid Devon and to approve
the NNDR1 (estimated income to be generated in 2020/21 from business rates). The
report also included the introduction of the refreshed Business Rates Discretionary
Relief Policy.

The Cabinet Member for Finance outlined the contents of the report informing the
meeting of the statutory collection process for business rates, the estimated net yield
from business rates for 2020/21 and how this was redistributed. There would be no
grant from the DCLG towards collecting the business rates but that the authority
would continue to retain the income from qualifying renewable energy schemes.

Consideration was given to:

What qualified as renewable energy schemes
The business rates reserve

The Devonwide business rates pool
Discretionary relief

RESOLVED :

a) That the calculation of the NNDR1 net yield of £15.600m from 3206 Business
Rated properties be noted and approved for 2020/21;

b) That the proportions distributed to the respective authorities and Central
Government be allocated as per the statutory regulations; and

c) That Members note that Central Government will reimburse the Council
through a Section 31 grant to compensate it for the reduction in collectable
business rates as a result of introducing reliefs;

d) That the revised Business Rates Discretionary Relief Policy be approved.

(Proposed by Clir A White and seconded Clir G Barnell)

Note: *Report previously circulated, copy attached to minutes.

144. FINANCIAL MONITORING (00-26-35)
The Cabinet had before it and NOTED a * report of the Deputy Chief Executive
(S151) presenting a financial update in respect of the income and expenditure so far

in the year.

The Cabinet Member for Finance outlined the contents of the report stating that
the December variance on budget had been £270k, the main factors being:

Cabinet — 13 February 2020 Page 15 110



£k
Waste Services — Shared savings scheme and vacancies (151)
Trade Waste and recycling - Increase in customers and reduced discounts | (64)
etc.
New vehicle contract — Funded by EMR (Not an overspend on the contract) 67
Public Health — Air Quality S106 (covered by EMR) and legal costs 92
Planning — Downturn in Planning income less salary savings 154
Garden Village project — funded by EMR 23
Garden Village — Capacity funding (150)
S106 spend re Public Open Space — funded by EMR 178
Cullompton Master Plan — funded by EMR 56
Local Plan — Funded by EMR 32
Tiverton Town Centre Regen — abortive capital costs 87
Bank charges — Additional charges 10
Cemeteries — Income below anticipated in budget 25
Car Parking — Shortfall Premier Inn; extra security and electricity usage 33
Private Sector Housing — legal costs of prosecution 19
General Fund Housing - Grant funding — to be earmarked (127)
Property — Loss of income; etc. partly offset by salary savings 61
Customer services — Vacancy and overtime savings (48)
HR — Review of service needs - restructuring 24
Legal — Various including consultancy budget saving (53)
Democratic Services — District Elections shortfall 25
Electoral Registration — Increase in IER funding and delayed boundary review | (69)
Member Services — Vacancy saving (7)
Leisure — Vacant posts, growth in membership etc. offset by utilities 47
overspend and reduction in casual swim
Revs and Bens — Various including reduced overpayment recovery and 65
software costs
3 Rivers Impairment — Partly offset by a statutory reversal of £757k 883
Statutory Adjustments — Reversal of Capital impairment 3 Rivers (757)
Statutory Adjustments — Reduction in Minimum Revenue Provision (less | (50)
borrowing than anticipated)
Interest income — additional income (100)
Interest Payable — reduction in charge (60)
Earmarked Reserves transfers (120)
Net Business Rates retention — more levy due to growth (benefit in future 88
year)

Major variances, current incomes from major funding streams and current employee

costs were all shown within the appendices to the report.

The Housing Revenue Account continued to have a healthy underspend.

He outlined the Capital Programme position and discussion took place with regard to
the impairments to the 3 Rivers loan (identified within the Riverside project) and the

financial accounting that had to take place.

Further discussion took place with regard to:

Cabinet — 13 February 2020 Page 16

111



o Whether the monitoring of the loans to 3 Rivers could be listed separately
within the General Fund financial monitoring

o The ring-fenced ‘1:4:1’ receipts and the need for those to be spent within 3
years of receipt otherwise the funding needed to be returned to the MHCLG,
details of previous monies returned would be sent to the member

o Increased electricity costs within the MSCP

o Legal costs within the public health remit.

Note: *Report previously circulated, copy attached to minutes.
145. HOMES POLICY DEVELOPMENT GROUP - RECOMMENDATION - BUDGET

Arising from a report of the Deputy Chief Executive (S151), the Homes Policy
Development Group had made the following recommendation with regard to the
budget: that the proposed savings identified in relation to the weed team be removed
and that the budget in this area be retained.

It was also noted that the other 3 PDGs had also agreed with the above
recommendation.

The Cabinet Member for the Environment informed the meeting that the Weed Team
project was added very late in the 2019/20 budget with no cost appraisal and without
an idea of how effective it would be. The 2 man team had focussed on Tiverton,
there had been little evaluation of the work that had taken place and that a number of
parishes already precepted for such work to take place within their own areas. It was
felt that this was a discretionary service and that the statutory responsibility lay with
the County Council.

Discussion took place with regard to:

e The volunteers who picked up litter and disposed of weeds

e Whether the weed team could be funded by the parishes through their
precepts

e The need to consider savings within the budget

e The possible requirement for a policy to consider what we would expect the
town and parish councils to precept for.

It was therefore
RESOLVED that the recommendation of the Policy Development Group not be
supported and that the proposed savings identified in relation to the weed team
remain.
(Proposed by the Chairman)

146. BUDGET (1-10-39)
The Cabinet had before it a * a report of the Deputy Chief Executive (S151) providing

the proposals for the General Fund and the Housing Revenue Account for the year
2020/21.

Cabinet — 13 February 2020 Page 17 112



The Cabinet Member for Finance outlined the contents of the report stating that a
temporary transfer of £284k would be required from the New Homes Bonus to
balance the budget.

He outlined further movements in the budget calculation since the last meeting:

Reconciliation of further movements

Movements Amount £k

20/21 Budget Shortfall (Cabinet Report 16/01/20) 177
Amendment to Car Parking increase 57
Business Rates Retention forecast post NNDR1 21
Contribution to Local Nature Partnership (LNP) 2
Essential car users — reduction in allowance -9
New Cabinet Member allowance 7
Reduction in interest from GP Hub due to timing of drawdown 29
Draft budget gap for 2020/21 284

He outlined the main proposals for the HRA 2020/21 budget:

o Following new legislation an increase of CPI plus 1% (2.7%) was proposed to
social housing rents

o Affordable rents to increase subject to the market rent cap (to an average of
£113.59 per week (over 52 weeks)

o Garage rents from £11.10 to £11.60 per week

o Increase garage plot ground rents by £25 to £275 per annum.

Consideration was given to:

e Benchmarking of Band D Council Tax across Devon and whether there was a
national scheme for benchmarking

e The contribution to the Local Nature Partnership

e The reduction in interest from the GP Hub loan

e The certain loss of the New Homes Bonus in future years and the
Government’s Fair Funding Review

e The collection of garage rents over 52 weeks

e With the underspend being highlighted within the HRA whether the increase in
rents was necessary

RECOMMENDED to Council that:

a) Council Tax is increased by £5 (2.46%) on a Band D property to £208.84.

b) General Fund budget for 2020/21 is approved.

C) The 2020/21 budget requires no transfer from the General Fund Balance.

d) The General Fund Budget requires a temporary transfer of £284k from the
New Homes Bonus EMR.

e) HRA budget for 2020/21 be approved — Appendix 5.

Cabinet — 13 February 2020 Page 18 113



f) HRA fees/charges are approved based on the attached schedule shown as
Appendix 5a and 5b.

9) Work on strategic planning for delivering balanced budgets in the future is
commenced in the spring.

(Proposed by the Chairman)
Notes:

i) It was noted that Clir Miss E Wainwright arrived at the meeting at this point;

ii) *Report previously circulated, copy attached to minutes.

147. CAPITAL PROGRAMME (1-32-59)

The Cabinet had before it * a report of the Deputy Chief Executive (S151) seeking
approval for the 2020/21 Capital Programme and requesting it to note the draft
2021/22, 2022/23 and 2023/24 programmes.

The Cabinet Member for Finance outlined the contents of the report highlighting and
explaining the proposed recommendations and stating that due to austerity the
council continued to explore as many commercial opportunities as possible.

Consideration was given to:

e Funding for projects highlighted in the proposed Corporate Plan

¢ Amounts that would be rolled over from one financial year to the next

e The proposal for an in-year review of the Capital Programme, Capital Strategy
and Treasury Management Strategy to take account of the emerging
Corporate Plan and the delivery of projects for Cullompton and Tiverton.

It was therefore:

RESOLVED that an in-year review of the Capital Programme, Capital Strategy and
Treasury Management Strategy take place to take account of the emerging
Corporate Plan and the delivery of projects for Cullompton and Tiverton.

(Proposed by Clir G Barnell and seconded by Clir Mrs N Woollatt)
and
RECOMMENDED to Council that:

a) The detailed Capital Programme for 2020/21 be approved (including an
additional £75k for the loan for the Crediton GP Hub) and that the estimated
amounts for 2021/22, 2022/23 and 2023/24 be noted.

b) Earmark New Homes Bonus (NHB) monies of £1.068m to support the 2020/21
Capital Programme (see para 2.3) be agreed

Cabinet — 13 February 2020 Page 19 114



(Proposed by the Chairman)
Note: *Report previously circulated, copy attached to minutes
148. CAPITAL STRATEGY (1-47-37)

The Cabinet had before it * a report of the Deputy Chief Executive (S151) seeking
agreement of the proposed Capital Strategy for 2020/21

The Cabinet Member for Finance outlined the contents of the report stating that the
strategy had a high level overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and
treasury management activity contributed to the provision of local public services with
an overview of how associated risk was managed and the implications for future
financial sustainability.

Consideration was given to the climate change agenda and the need to incorporate it
within the Medium Term Financial Plan

RECOMMENDED to Council that: the proposed Capital Strategy for 2020/21 be
approved.

(Proposed by the Chairman)
Note: *Report previously circulated, copy attached to minutes.

149. TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY AND ANNUAL INVESTMENT
STRATEGY (1-51-30)

The Cabinet had before it * a report of the Deputy Chief Executive (S151) seeking
agreement of the proposed Treasury Management Strategy and Annual Investment
Strategy for 2020/21

The Cabinet Member for Finance outlined the contents of the report stating that the
refreshed strategy highlighted the level of investment and borrowing and provided a
detailed view of the economic climate.

Consideration was given to:

e The current portfolio position
e The limits to borrowing activity
e The annual investment strategy

RECOMMENDED to Council that: the proposed Treasury Management Strategy and
Annual Investment Strategy for 2020/21, including the prudential indicators for the
next 3 years and the Minimum Revenue Provision Statement (Appendix 1), be
approved.

(Proposed by the Chairman)

Note: * Report previously circulated copy attached to minutes.

Cabinet — 13 February 2020 Page 20 115



150

151.

152.

. POLICY FRAMEWORK (1-54-19)

The Cabinet had before it a * report of the Chief Executive regarding the Policy
Framework.

| RECOMMENDED to Council that the Policy Framework be adopted.
(Proposed by the Chairman)
Note: * Report previously circulated, copy attached to minutes.
THE ESTABLISHMENT (1-54-55)
The Cabinet had before it a *report of the Group Manager for Human Resources
informing Members of the overall structure of the Council showing the management
and deployment of officers.

Consideration was given to:

e The increase in employment costs outlined in the financial monitoring report

e A request for a year on year comparison of staff costs to be made available

e The increase in stress related sickness and how staff were supported

e The new sickness policy that had been adopted

e The employee assistance programme and counselling that was available to
staff and members

e The number of staff with 100% attendance

| RECOMMENDED to Council that the Establishment be approved.
(Proposed by the Chairman)
Note: * Report previously circulated, copy attached to minutes.
PAY POLICY (2-06-02)
The Cabinet had before it a *report of the Group Manager for Human Resources
relating to senior pay in particular the role of the Chief Executive, Directors and other
senior officers.

| RECOMMENDED to Council that the Pay Policy be approved.

(Proposed by the Chairman)

Note: * Report previously circulated, copy attached to minutes.

Cabinet — 13 February 2020 Page 21 116



153. PAINTING AND REPAIRS BEFORE PAINTING OF COUNCIL HOMES 2020 - 2025

The Cabinet had before it a * report of the Director of Corporate Affairs and Business
Transformation advising Members of the results for the tendering of the External
Painting and Repairs of the Council homes for the next 5 years (2020-2025).

The Cabinet Member for Housing and Property Services outlined the contents of the
report stating that the contract was for 3 years with the option to extend it for a further
two individual years subject to performance and informed the meeting of the number
of houses repaired and painted per annum.

RESOLVED that: the contract for works required to decorate the Council’s homes for
2020-2025 be awarded to Contractor 3 with a forecast annual cost £300,000.00 be
approved. This is a three year contract with the option to extend for a further two
individual years subject to acceptable performance. The contract has been awarded
to the contractor with the highest combined price/quality score with 60% of the total
score based on price and 40% quality.

(Proposed by ClIr S J Clist and seconded by Clir G Barnell)
Note: *Report previously circulated, copy attached to minutes.
154. NOTIFICATION OF KEY DECISIONS (2-10-04)

The Cabinet had before it and NOTED its * rolling plan for March 2020 containing
future key decisions.

Note: *Plan previously circulated, copy attached to minutes

155. ACCESS TO INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC (2-12-
37)

Prior to considering the following item on the agenda, discussion took place as to
whether it was necessary to pass the following resolution to exclude the press and
public having reflected on Article 15 15.02(d) (a presumption in favour of openness)
of the Constitution. The Cabinet decided that in all the circumstances of the case, the
public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighed the public interest in
disclosing the information.

It was therefore:

RESOLVED that under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the public
be excluded from the next item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely
disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 respectively of Part 1 of
Schedule 12A of the Act, namely information relating to the financial or business
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information)

(Proposed by the Chairman)

Cabinet — 13 February 2020 Page 22 117



156. DISPOSAL OF SAMPFORD PEVERELL PUBLIC CONVENIENCE

The Cabinet had before it a report * of the Group Manager for Corporate Property
and Commercial Assets with regard to the disposal of an asset.

The Cabinet Member for Housing and Property Services outlined the contents of the
report and a full discussion took place.

Returning to open session, the Cabinet:

RESOLVED that the surrender of the lease of land upon which the public
convenience at Lower Town, Sampford Peverell is situated be approved.

(Proposed by the Chairman)

Note: *Report previously circulated.

(The meeting ended at 8.22 pm) CHAIRMAN

Cabinet — 13 February 2020 Page 23 118



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5.

Environment Policy Development group — 10 March 2020

Minute 82

The Group had before it a * report of the Group Manager for Street Scene and Open Spaces
updating the current policies and requesting that new policies be adopted.

The Chairman walked through the various policies and consideration was given to:
Fly Tipping Policy

e CCTV coverage of affected areas with the Group Manager for Corporate Property and
Commercial Assets and the Head of Legal informing the meeting that an action plan
was being developed and would be reported to the Community Policy Development
Group. Some of the offences would not come under RIPA and therefore a parallel
system to balance data protection and human rights issues had to be developed. The
phrasing within the policy with regard to ‘may’ and ‘could’ rather than ‘would’ was
explained as a discretionary element always had to be included. The number of
prosecutions was also discussed and it was generally agreed that the increase in fines
should be encouraged. Delegated powers for District Officers was also discussed.

Littering from Vehicles
e The following amendments were suggested:
» Paragraph 5.1 remove the words ‘in writing’ from the 4t line.
» Under paragraph 9 remove para 9.1 and renumber 9.2 to 9.1.

» Paragraph 10 — Ground E replace the word ‘court’ with ‘course’

e Discussion took place with regard to penalty amounts which had previously been set
and the definition of littering if stood beside a vehicle.

Compulsory Recycling Policy

e The following amendment was suggested: the renumbering of paragraph 2 to include
23and 2.3

Abandoned Vehicle Policy
¢ The following amendment was suggested: the renumbering of paragraph 1 to include
1.2 instead of 1.2.1
o Discussion took place with regard to the remit of the authority to remove abandoned
vehicles from the highway.
Stray Dog Policy
¢ The following amendment was suggested: under 3.8.2 the removal of  ‘his’ from the
first bullet point and to be replaced with ‘its’. Under bullet point 3 the removal of the
word ‘and’.

It was therefore:

RECOMMENDED to the Cabinet that: subject to the suggested amendments (as listed above):

Page 25



Fixed Penalty Notices for fly tipping be increased from £200 to £400 and the powers to
use CCTV footage be adopted to assist with fly tipping Fixed Penalty Notices and to
include this within Council policy (Appendix A).

The new powers set out in the Littering from Vehicles Regulations (Policy) 2018 be
adopted and this be included within the new Council policy (Appendix B).

Changes to the Council Compulsory Recycling Policy be adopted following government
guidance (Appendix C).

The amended Abandoned Vehicle (Act) legislation be adopted and included within the
Council Policy (Appendix D) which will enable Officers to investigate vehicles within the
‘open air’.

The Stray Dog Policy (Appendix E) be updated and authority sought for the Environment
and Enforcement Manager to be the officer appointed under section 149 of the
Environmental Protection Act 1990 to keep the public register which contains the
prescribed particulars of, or relating to dogs seized under this section.

(Proposed by Clir W Burke and seconded by Clir B Holdman)

Note *Report previously circulated, copy attached to minutes.

Page 26



ENVIRONMENT PDG
10 March 2020

UPDATE ON THE STREET SCENE EDUCATION AND ENFORCEMENT
POLICIES

Cabinet Member(s): Clir Luke Taylor, Cabinet Member for the Environment

Responsible Officer: Vicky Lowman, Environment & Enforcement Manager
Stuart Noyce, Group Manager - Street Scene and Open
Spaces

Reason for Report: To update the current policies and to adopt new policies.. This
will enable the Street Scene Education & Enforcement Team to educate and
enforce, by making use of the new powers available to them.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the PDG recommends to Cabinet:

1) To increase Fixed Penalty Notices for fly tipping from £200 to £400 and to adopt
the powers to use CCTV footage to assist with fly tipping Fixed Penalty Notices
and include within Council policy (Appendix A).

2) To adopt the new powers set out in the Littering from Vehicles Regulations
(Policy) 2018 and include within the new Council policy (Appendix B).

3) To adopt changes to the Council Compulsory Recycling Policy following
government guidance (Appendix C).

4) To adopt the amended Abandoned Vehicle (Act) legislation and include within the
Council Policy (Appendix D) which will enable Officers to investigate vehicles
within the ‘open air’.

5) To update the Stray Dog Policy (Appendix E) and to seek authority for the
Environment and Enforcement Manager to be the officer appointed under section
149 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 to keep the public register which
contains the prescribed particulars of, or relating to dogs seized under, this
section.

Financial Implications: Increase in fines paid for any Fixed Penalty Notice issued.
Budget and Policy Framework:

Legal Implications: The updated policies will enable Officers to use the following
Acts:

Environmental Protection Act 1990

Clean Neighbourhood Act 2005

Refuse Disposal (amenity) Act 2014

Littering from Vehicles Regulations 2018

Compulsory Recycling Section 46(1) of the Environmental Protection Act 1990

Risk Assessment: If legalisation changes and our policies are not updated this may

leave the Council at risk of not being able to enforce infringements which could result
in reputational damage for not taking appropriate action against offenders.

Page 27



Equality Impact Assessment: There are no equality issues identified for this report.

Relationship to Corporate Plan: The Street Scene Enforcement is a frontline
service which works throughout the District ensuring cleanliness and attractiveness
of our public realm through both education and enforcement.

Impact on Climate Change: By ensuring all residents are recycling and increasing
the Fixed Penalty charges for environmental offences this will hopefully deter
members of the public from committing environmental crime, reducing any additional
carbon footprint incurred while undertaking investigations and collections.

1.0

1.1

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

3.2

Introduction

The Street Scene Education & Enforcement Team, together with the Legal
Services, have undertaken an internal review of its current policies in line with
existing Government legalisation so that they up to date and fit for purpose.

Fly Tipping Policy (Appendix A)

The Government has introduced new financial penalties to help fight against
‘Waste Crime’. The majority of householders already dispose of their waste
responsibly however, from 7 January 2019, powers were made available
where any householder who fails to pass their waste to a licensed carrier, and
whose waste is found fly-tipped, could face penalties of up to £400. The
Officers will be required to take photographic evidence of the fly tipping in situ
and/or use CCTV footage to issue enforcement notices to individuals who
commit this offence. These changes have been included within the updated

policy.
Littering from Vehicles Policy (Appendix B)

The Littering from Vehicles Outside London (Keepers: Civil Penalties)
Regulations 2018, introduced the new fixed penalties for littering from
vehicles, from powers conferred by inserting section 88A of the Environmental
Protection Act 1990 (into the regulation). This came into force on 1 April 2018.
Adopting these regulations and introducing these powers will allow the
Council Offciers to issue Fixed Penalty Notices if they are able to show that
litter was thrown from a vehicle onto either public or private land.

A Penalty Notice can be issued on the spot, or through the post, depending
on the circumstances and type of offence. Officers could observe offences
whilst on litter patrols, engaged on other duties or following an approach by
members of the public willing to stand as witness in any subsequent Court
action, or by using CCTV footage. These powers have been included within
the new policy.

Page 28



4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

Compulsory Recycling Policy (Appendix C)

Under Section 46 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990, the Council may,
by notice, require occupiers of a premises to present their household waste
for collection in a specified way. Failure, without reasonable excuse, to
comply with such a requirement is an offence under section 46(6) of the EPA.
Under section 47ZA of the same Act, a Fixed Penalty may be offered as an
alternative to prosecution. This section is an amendment to the current policy.
The policy has several stages so education is used first before enforcement is
considered. Some changes to the current policy have been made to reflect
government guidance.

Abandoned Vehicles Policy (Appendix D)

The current policy does not allow for abandoned vehicles on private land to be
investigated. The amendments to the policy will allow the Council to
investigate any ‘abandoned’ vehicle within the open air under Section 3 of the
Refuse Disposal (amenity) Act 1978. Any motor vehicle abandoned on private
land may be removed in accordance with the Council’s procedures, unless the
cost in so doing is deemed to be unreasonably high. The only exception to
this will be if the vehicle is situated on a carriageway where cost cannot be a
contributing factor.

Stray Dog Policy (Appendix E)

The policy has been updated to include the microchipping and ‘collar & tag’
procedure. The policy also requires authority for a designated officer to be
appointed under section 149 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 to
keep the public register which contains the prescribed particulars of, or
relating to, dogs seized under this section.

Contact for more Information: Vicky Lowman Environment & Enforcement Manager
(01884 244601 vlowman@middevon.gov.uk)

Circulation of the Report: Clir Luke Taylor, Cabinet, Leadership Team

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Devon

DISTRICT COUNCIL

Fly Tipping Policy

Date of issue: January 2020

Review date: January 2030

Page 31



Contents

1. Introduction and legislation
2. The procedure for fly tipping
Duty of care

Fixed penalties

o bk~

Amount of fixed penalty

Page 32



1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.0
2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Introduction

Fly tipping is the illegal dumping of any waste onto land that has no licence to
accept waste. It can vary in scale significantly from a bin bag of rubbish to a
large quantity of waste dumped from a truck. Enforcement legislation is
embodied within the Environmental Protection Act 1990 sections 33 and 34.

The Unauthorised Deposit of Waste (Fixed Penalties) Regulations 2016 came
into force on 9 May 2016 which amends the Environmental Protection Act
1990 to allow the issuing of fixed penalties for waste deposit offences.

Mid Devon District Council is a contributor to the web based National Fly
Tipping Database Fly Capture! which has been in operation since April 2004.

All authorised District Officers in the Street Scene and Open Spaces service
are fully trained in enforcement procedures and receive regular update
training. All delegated officers will act in accordance with this policy and refer
to this policy when making enforcement decisions.

The Procedure

In the first instance, Mid Devon District Council’s preferred action is to secure
compliance through education and information. Enforcement action will
require delegated officers to follow set procedures and protocols in order to
ensure consistency in the collection of evidence and the enforcement actions
applied. These actions represent a zero tolerance to environmental crime.

This policy supplements the guidance continued in the Operations Directorate
Enforcement Policy. The Street Scene service encompasses numerous
powers and duties that enable the control of behaviour of individuals and/or
businesses in the interest of public health and the environment.

Mid Devon District Council may use CCTV to issue and pursue fixed penalty
notices for fly tipping to ensure compliance with Regulation of Investigatory
Powers Act 2000.

A fixed penalty notice may be issued to someone caught in the act of fly
tipping for a less serious offence. Where evidence is obtained for a more
serious case of fly tipping, and the case meets the tests for prosecution, a file
will be prepared for prosecution.

In cases of fly tipping found on public open spaces or on highways. A
letter shall be sent to the alleged offender with an explanation of the offence
committed and an invitation for them to attend an interview under caution. The
purpose of the investigation is to ascertain why the offence was committed
and to see if there is a plausible explanation for the committed offence. If the

! Flycapture is a database for recording incidents of fly-tipping in Great Britain.

3

Page 33



2.5

2.6

2.6.1

2.6.2

2.7

2.8

2.11

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

interviewers are not satisfied, consideration may be given to either issuing a
Fixed Penalty Notice or prosecuting.

Evidence held by the District Council shall be held in prosecution files which
will be stored electronically in line with Data Protection Act 2018.

Interviews under caution may be carried out under the Police and Criminal
Evidence Act 1984 (PACE).

Mid Devon District Council may seize a vehicle, trailer or mobile plant
suspected of being involved in waste? crime.

Mid Devon District Council has the right to legally enter land, vehicles or
premises to investigate.

Mid Devon District Council can serve a notice on anyone it thinks can provide
information on the details of the driver of a vehicle used at the time when the
offence was committed, using the DVLA WEEE system.

All offences that involve a vehicle may be investigated within 7 days of the
offence taking place. The Council has the ability to check owner details on a
vehicle within this time. After 7 days, a registered keeper check cannot take
place using the WEE system.

A range of enforcement options are available for each offence. The case
officer dealing with a situation will act on his/her own initiative in
routine/straightforward cases. Any cases recommended for prosecution
may be presented to Legal Services for comment and review prior to
proceedings being instigated.

Duty of care

The fixed penalty notice (FPN) for breaches of the household waste duty of
care provides an alternative to prosecution. It allows an individual to discharge
liability for the duty of care offence by payment of a financial penalty.

The duty of care requires occupiers of domestic property to take all
reasonable measures available to them in the circumstances to ensure that
they only transfer household waste produced on that property to an
authorised person. This reduces the chance of waste ending up in the hands
of those who would fly-tip it.

Mid Devon District Council may issue a FPN when an individual appears to
have failed to comply with their duty of care under section 34(2A) of the
Environmental Protection Act 1990 in England. For example:

2 The Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) states that “material is considered to be

waste when the producer or holder discards it, intends to discard it, or is required to discard it."

4

Page 34



4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

e Where fly-tipped waste can be traced back to an individual who is found to
have failed to take reasonable steps to ensure that they transferred the
waste to an authorised person.

e Where an unauthorised carrier is found to be carrying household waste
that was directly transferred to them by the occupier of a domestic
property.

e Where an individual is found to have transferred their household waste to
an unauthorised person at a site that does not have a permit or exemption.

The fixed penalty policy

A Fixed Penalty Notice, in the appropriate case, can be issued on the spot or
following a PACE interview.

Mid Devon District Council can request under section 59 of the Environmental
Protection Act 1990 for the occupier and or landowner to remove the waste
they knowingly caused or permitted to be deposited illegally.

If the occupier and or landowner does not remove the waste Mid Devon
District Council can enter on to the land, clean the waste and charge them the
costs of doing so.

Mid Devon District Council can also enter land to clear the waste if:

e There is no occupier
e The occupier did not knowingly cause or permit the deposit of the waste
e |tis in order to prevent pollution.

A District Officer may require an occupier of domestic property to give the
occupier's name and address if the officer proposes to give the occupier a
fixed penalty notice.

A person commits an offence if the person:

e Fails to give a name or address when required to do, or
e Gives a false or inaccurate name or address in response

Mid Devon District Council will ensure all enforcement complies with the
principles of the Regulators Code® when approaching enforcement for the
household waste duty of care.

Mid Devon District Council will request payment is made within 14 days of the
FPN issue date.

3 section 23 of the Legislative and Regulatory Reform Act 2006

5

Page 35



4.9

4.10

4.11

412

4.13

5.0

5.1

5.2

Reminder letters will be sent to those where payment has not been made
within 14 days of the FPN being issued. The letter must detail the full payment
cost, when payment must be made by and what happens if payment is not
made.

District Officers must be authorised in writing by the authority to:

e |ssue FPNs

e Investigate crimes

e Seizing vehicles and enter on to private land for the purposes of
investigation

Where a FPN has been issued Mid Devon District Council will wait a further
14 days after the reminder letter was sent before legal action is taken. If the
FPN is paid no court proceedings may take place.

Some cases may not be appropriate for a fixed penalty notice and may
proceed directly to prosecution.

Convicted parties can be fined an unlimited amount or imprisoned for up to 5
years.

Amount of fixed penalty

The Council has specified the amount of the fixed penalty at £400, this has
been set at the maximum amount to discourage fly tipping.

The Council will attempt to recover the costs spent on investigations, clean up
and enforcement work from the:

e Polluter

e Occupier or landowner

Page 36



DISTRICT COUNCIL

Littering from Vehicles Policy

Date of Issue: January 2020
Review Date: January 2030

Page 37



Contents

Introduction

Interpretation

Civil fixed penalties and enforcement
Penalty amounts and payment
Challenges to the Penalty Notice
Recovery of unpaid amounts
Authorised officers

Use of receipts

Exemptions

o

Representations and appeals

o2 © 0o N o o R~ e Ddh =

—

Publicity and associated enforcement

Annex A procedure

Page 38



1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.0

3.0

3.1

Introduction

Mid Devon District Council is committed to reducing litter on roadsides and
verges and will take enforcement action against those who litter from their
vehicles. It is recognised that it can be particularly difficult for District Officers
to identify which person in the vehicle committed the offence. The new powers
allow Mid Devon District Council to hold the keeper of a vehicle responsible
for littering offences committed from the vehicle.

The Littering from Vehicles outside London (Keepers: Civil Penalties)
Regulations 2018 (S| 2018/171) came into force on 1 April 2018 to introduce
new fixed penalty powers for littering from vehicles. This allows local
authorities outside London to issue civil penalty notices to the keeper of a
vehicle from which litter is thrown.

A civil penalty is a civil fine which, unlike a criminal penalty, does not carry the
risk of a criminal prosecution. The ‘keeper’ of a vehicle is presumed to be the
‘registered keeper’, but evidence may be provided showing that the vehicle
was ‘kept’ by another person at the relevant time. The liability to pay the civil
penalty rests with the keeper of the vehicle at the time of the offence.

Under section 89(1) of the EPA 1990 the District Council, as the local
authority, has a general duty to keep land in its area clear of litter.

Interpretation

“The EPA 1990” means the Environmental Protection Act 1990

“Littering Regulations” means The Littering from Vehicles outside London
(Keepers: Civil Penalties) Regulations 2018 (S1 2018/171)

“‘FPN” means Fixed Penalty Notice

“‘MDDC” means Mid Devon District Council

‘RUCS regulations 2019) means road user charging schemes (penalty
Charges adjudication and Enforcement) (England) regulations 2013
“Electronic address” means any number or address used for the purposes of
sending or receiving documents or information by electronic means

Fixed Penalty notices (FPN) and enforcement

Mid Devon District Council may give a penalty notice, requiring payment of
a FPN, to a person who is the keeper of a vehicle provided that it has reason
to believe that a littering offence has been committed in respect of the vehicle
on land within the Mid Devon District Council area.

3

Page 39



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.5.1

3.5.2

3.5.3

3.6

3.7

3.8

Mid Devon District Council may cancel a penalty notice at any time by
informing the recipient in writing.

A penalty can either be issued on the spot or through the post depending on
the circumstances and type of offence.

Penalty notices will be issued when District Officers observe offences whilst
on patrol, on a pure chance basis whilst engaged on other duties, or following
an approach by members of the public willing to stand as witness in any
subsequent Court action. Mid Devon District Council may take enforcement
action on the basis of CCTV evidence, provided the CCTV evidence is in
accordance with RIPA"

A penalty notice must not be given:

After the end of the period of 35 days beginning with the day on which the
littering offence in question occurred;

If a FPN for the criminal offence of leaving litter under section 88 (1) of The
Littering from Vehicles outside London (Keepers: Civil Penalties) Regulations
2018 has been given to a person in respect of the same offence (whether or
not he/she is the vehicle's keeper); or

If a prosecution has been brought against a person under section 87 of the
EPA 1990 (Offence of Littering) in respect of the same offence (whether or not
the person is the vehicle's keeper and whether or not the prosecution has
concluded or was successful).

If Mid Devon District Council issue a FPN and the recipient provides evidence
as to the identity of the litterer, Mid Devon District Council will consider
whether this is a sufficiently compelling reason to cancel the original civil
penalty. Mid Devon District Council may also separately decide whether
sufficient evidence has been provided to pursue criminal enforcement action
(a fixed penalty notice or prosecution) against the alleged litterer.

Section 9 of this policy (exemptions) set out circumstances in which a person
is not liable to pay a fixed penalty.

There are detailed rules contained in the litter regulations The Littering from
Vehicles outside London (Keepers: Civil Penalties) Regulations 2018 (Sl
2018/171) as to the contents of a penalty notice. Mid Devon District Council
will produce standard template notices in accordance with these rules.

L RIPA (Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act) is a law enacted in the United Kingdom in 2000 to govern the

interception and use of electronic communications

Page 40



4.0

4.1

4.2

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

6.0

6.1

6.1.1

Penalty amounts and payment

The amount of a fixed penalty is the amount specified Mid Devon District
Council under Section 88(6A) of the EPA 1990 for the fixed penalty for the
criminal offence of leaving litter which has been thrown from a vehicle. The
District Council has set this sum at £150.

If a fixed penalty is not paid in full within the fixed penalty payment 14 days,
the amount of the fixed penalty increases by 100% with effect from the day
after the last day of the fixed penalty payment period.

Challenges to the Penalty Notice

The littering regulations confers a right on the person who is given a penalty
notice to challenge it within 14 days of the FPN being issued. A person to
whom a penalty is given may make written representations to Mid Devon
District Council in writing on grounds as set out in the littering regulations. The
Littering from Vehicles outside London (Keepers: Civil Penalties) Regulations
2018 (S1 2018/171). These grounds are set out in Section 9 in this document.

If Mid Devon District Council accepts that one or more of the grounds in
regulation 14 of the Littering Regulation applies, it must cancel the penalty
notice and inform the person who made the representations of the
cancellation in writing.

If Mid Devon District Council does not accept that one or more of the grounds
in regulation 14 applies, it must give a notice of rejection to the person who
made the representation.

A person who is given a notice of rejection may appeal against it to an
adjudicator and the appeal must be made to an adjudicator within the period
of 28 days beginning with the day on which the notice of rejection is given,
although the adjudicator may allow an appeal out of time.

If the adjudicator concludes that one or more of the grounds in regulation 14
applies, the adjudicator must allow the appeal.?

Recovery of unpaid amounts

Mid Devon District Council will recover any unpaid amount of the fixed penalty
and any related costs awarded by an adjudicator:

as a civil debt, or

6.1.2 as if payable under a county court order, if the county court so orders.

2 The adjudicator is the Traffic Penalty Tribunal

Page 41



7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

9.2

10.0

10.1

Authorised Officer

Mid Devon District Council authorises the District Officers to issue penalty
notices.

Use of receipts by Mid Devon District Council

Any surplus® income from these penalties will be ring-fenced to be spent on
the Council’s statutory functions of keeping relevant land clear of litter and
refuse, and on enforcement against littering, graffiti.

Exemptions
Public service vehicles and licensed taxis
The kinds of vehicle exempt from FPN’s are:

A public service vehicle within the meaning of section 1 of the Public
Passenger Vehicles Act 1981

A hackney carriage licensed under section 37 of the Town Police Clauses Act
1847 or section 6 of the Metropolitan Public Carriage Act 1869

A vehicle licensed under section 48 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1976(e) (licensing of private hire vehicles).

Representation and Appeals - Grounds of representation

A person who receives a FPN may make written representations on one or
more of the grounds A to L as set out below:

Ground A - the littering offence did not occur.

Ground B - the person was not the keeper of the vehicle at the time of the
littering offence because they became the keeper of the vehicle after the
littering offence occurred. Such representation must include the name and
address of the person from whom the vehicle was acquired.

Ground C - the person was not the keeper of the vehicle at the time of the
littering offence because the person had disposed of the vehicle to another
person before the littering offence occurred. Such a representation must
include the name and address of the person to whom the vehicle had been

3 An amount of something left over when requirements have been met; an excess of production or supply

6

Page 42



11.0

11.1

disposed of, or a statement that the name and address of that person is not
known

Ground D - the person was not the keeper of the vehicle at the time of the
littering offence because the vehicle was a stolen vehicle when the littering
offence occurred. Such a representation must include the crime reference
number, insurance claim number or other evidence of the vehicle’s theft.

Ground E — the person was engaged in the hiring of vehicles in the court of a
business at the time of the littering offence, and was not the keeper of the
vehicle at that time by virtue of the hire agreement. Such representation must
include a statement signed by or on behalf of the person to the effect that at
the time of the littering offence the vehicle was hired to a named person under
a vehicle hire agreement and provide a copy of the vehicle hire agreement.

Ground F — the person was not the keeper of the vehicle at the time of the
littering offence for a reason not mentioned in Grounds B to E.

Ground G — Mid Devon District Council are not authorised to give the person
a penalty notice.

Ground H - the person is not liable to pay the fixed penalty by virtue of
Regulation 12 (public service vehicles and licensed taxis).

Ground | — the liability to pay the fixed penalty has been discharged in the
circumstances set out in Regulation 13 (penalty already given to a person in
respect of the same offence).

Ground J - the fixed penalty exceeds the amount payable under the
Regulations.

Ground K - Mid Devon District Council has failed to observe any requirement
imposed on it by the regulations in relation to the imposition or recovery of the
fixed penalty.

Ground L - there are compelling reasons why, in the particular
circumstances of the case, the penalty notice should be cancelled (whether or
not any of grounds A to K apply).

Publicity and associated enforcement

Mid Devon District Council’'s Communications team will highlight the anti-
social aspects of littering and to announce the new powers. Part of such
communications plan will be the publicising of successful enforcement. When
communications are published the District Council will adhere to the Data
Protection Act 2018.

Page 43



vt abed

District Officer witnesses litter offence from Vehicle

I

District Officer completes full witness statement on
the same day as offence took place

|

District Officer sends the completed statement to the
business support team who will log on an electric system,
witness statement to be saved to case

l

Electric system will generate reference number which will
be used when making awnmxip of vehicle enquiry

DVLA enquiry is logged using secure log in

Annandiy

Ownership details provided, copy of the
information is saved to case

F

Vehicle has no ownership details; police
report is logged wsing online form.

Letter sent to owner of vehicle with a fixed Penalty
natice attached content of penalty refer to Part 2 (5)

Customer appeals FPN in
writing

v

Fee amount paid

Rejection letter sent to Registered owner of vehicle
registered owner of vehicle appeals to adjudicator within
(part4 15 (1) 28 days (part 4 16 (1)

v

l Appeal accepted for reasons stated in Part 4 14 (1) Follow functions of litter authority following

Adjudication Part 4 17 (1)

If FPN remains unpaid refer to
Part24(1)




1 Working
day

Within 7
Working
days

15 Days

Appendix B
Littering from
vehicles

Littering from Vehicle timescales

Add littering offences to the current sheet in the littering folder.

For Littering Issues, if not already on Idox, log via MDDC website. Update ldox
record.

If witnessed personally, take photographic evidence and complete a written report or
e-mail.

If withessed by a member of the public, take a witness signed statement from them
including what was actually witnessed and not just circumstantial evidence (and
obtain photos if available).

A local authority may make an enquiry using the Driver & Vehicle Licensing Agency
(DVLA’s) Web Enabled Enquiry (WEE) system to request a vehicle keeper’s details
(at time of event) after witnessing or receiving reports regarding an alleged littering or
fly-tipping offence from a stationary or moving vehicle.

The enquiry via the WEE system must be made within 7 days of the date of event (ie
the date of the alleged incident).

Ensure there is sufficient evidence in existence, prior to accessing the WEE system,
to ensure a successful prosecution and retain this evidence for subsequent audit
inspections (on Idox for fly-tipping/littering issues).

The member of staff making the WEE system enquiry must see this evidence for
themselves.

If CCTV footage showing waste being dumped from a vehicle is being relied upon,
this must be unambiguous and seen by the member of staff making the WEE system

enquiry.

If a vehicle registration number plate or any documentation is found in amongst fly-
tipped waste, no enquiries can be made via the WEE system as it is purely
circumstantial.

Once vehicle keeper’s details are received, send letter enclosing a Fixed Penalty
Notice (FPN).

If payment is not received after fourteen days, issue a reminder letter.

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



Devon

DISTRICT COUNCIL

Compulsory Recycling Policy

Date of issue: January 2020
Review Date: January 2030

1
Page 47



Contents
1. Introduction
2. Compulsory recycling, Section 46 Policy

3. Enforcement Procedure

2
Page 48



1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

2.0

2.1

2.2.1

222

2.4

2.5

2.6

Introduction

In November 2015 Mid Devon District Council introduced a Compulsory
Recycling Policy, in line with the above legislation, aimed at encouraging
residents to put their waste out in the correct containers and at the correct times,
as prescribed by Mid Devon District Council.

Current recycling procedures are specified on the Mid Devon District Council
website.

In the autumn of 2015 Mid Devon District Council introduced a weekly food
waste kerbside collection using blue food caddies and an opt-in fortnightly
chargeable garden waste collection service using a brown bin.

One of the purposes of introducing compulsory recycling is to increase
recycling performance and to reduce costs for the Council. This has had a
positive effect by reducing the amount of waste.

The Environmental Protection Act 1990 legislation is aimed at encouraging
everybody to use the right containers for the right kind of materials.

Education and Enforcement

Everyone should take responsibility for the waste they produce and Mid Devon
District Council aims to educate local residents, businesses and visitors to
increase awareness and understanding of their role in responsible waste
management. This may be through targeted campaigns, the Mid Devon District
Council website, leaflets, posters, events and working with community groups.

Mid Devon District Council has a statutory duty under the amended
Environmental Protection Act 1990 (“the Act”) to keep the streets clean and
clear of litter and refuse. This legislation also gives Mid Devon District Council
the powers to tackle local environmental quality issues and to undertake
enforcement.

Mid Devon District Council recognises that residents may take time to get
accustomed to the service requirements contained in this policy.
Consequently Mid Devon District Council will adopt an approach that will always
offer advice, support and guidance as the first and preferred way.

Mid Devon District Council are aware that resorting to the use of formal powers
may be necessary in some circumstances and is committed to seeing such
measures applied in an open, reasonable and proportionate way.

A Notice under Section 46 (1) of the amended Environmental Protection Act
1990 needs to have been served on a property before any enforcement action
can be pursued for this type of offence.

This Notice formally requires the occupier to place the waste for collection in
receptacles of a kind and number specified and effectively sets the ground
rules for the way household waste should be managed by residents.

3
Page 49



2.7

2.8

2.9

3.0

3.1

3.1.1

3.2

3.2.1

3.2.2

3.3

3.3.1

This Notice is in addition to the information provided on the Mid Devon District
Council website.

Serving a Section 46 (1) Notice does not imply that a household is not managing
their waste properly and, as such, the notices may be served on as many
properties as appropriate to enable a consistent and fair approach to
enforcement across the district.

The following identifies the approach that may be taken in the more serious
cases, for example, where the requirement to place the correct substance or
article of waste into the correct kind of receptacle is continuously and
persistently ignored and where this behaviour continues despite the informal
actions detailed at Stages One and Two below.

Enforcement Procedure

Stage One

On the first occasion, and where a Section 46 (1) Notice has already been
served, officers who witness incorrect presentation, such as the presentation
of excess ‘side waste’ or contamination with non-recyclable waste, will advise
householders with the use of a ‘nudge letter’ that seeks to remind them of
how they must present their waste for collection in the future. A sticker may
also be used to help draw the residents’ attention to the problem.

Stage Two

Following Stage One, if the problem persists or there is a reoccurrence, then
consideration should be given to moving the case to Stage Two which is a
written warning under section 46A of the Act. This warning can only be given
if:

(@) a person has failed without reasonable excuse to comply with a
requirement under the section 46 Notice; and

(b) the person's failure to comply:
(i) has caused, or is or was likely to cause, a nuisance, or

(i) has been, or is or was likely to be, detrimental to any amenities of the
locality.

The warning remains in force for a year.
Stage Three
Continued failure to comply with the collection requirements, as defined in the

Notice under Section 46 (1), could result in formal action being taken against
the occupants if:

Page4 50



(a) The person has again failed without reasonable excuse to comply with the

Section 46 (1) Notice requirement identified in the warning under Section 46A
and the person's failure to comply has had, or is or was likely to have, the
effect described in Condition B (see above); or

(b) The person has failed without reasonable excuse to comply with a Section 46

3.3.2

3.4

3.4.1

3.4.2

3.4.3

Note

Notice requirement that is similar to the one identified in the warning under
46A and the person's failure to comply has had, or is or was likely to have, the
effect described in Condition B (see above).

A Notice of Intent would be served on the occupants of the property from
which the incorrectly presented or contaminated receptacle originated or
appears to have originated. A Notice of Intent can be issued each time there
is an infringement, provided the conditions set out above are met, within a year
of giving a written warning. The Notice of Intent informs the occupant that the
Council intends to require them to pay a Fixed Penalty. The occupant has
28 days within which to make representations as to why they should not have
to pay it. If representations are received and considered to be valid, the
requirement for the Fixed Penalty will be withdrawn. Otherwise, the case will
continue to the next formal stage.

Stage Four

If no representations are received, or if they are received and they are not
considered valid, the named occupants will be issued with a Final Notice
requiring payment of a Fixed Penalty within 28 days. If the Fixed Penalty is
paid, then no further action is taken in relation to the infringement. An early
payment discount may be applied. The occupier has a further 28 days to
appeal to a First Tier Tribunal against the issuing of the Fixed Penalty Notice.

The tribunal is external to Mid Devon District Council and has the power to
uphold or withdraw the requirement to pay the Fixed Penalty. Mid Devon
District Councils delegated officer (ie District Officer) must therefore record their
considerations and these should be sound to withstand scrutiny at the First Tier
Tribunal. The Fixed Penalty Notice is now a civil penalty (rather than a criminal
offence) that would be enforced through the civil courts. If the Fixed Penalty is
upheld then Mid Devon District Council will pursue unpaid Fixed Penalties in
accordance with its procedures for debt recovery.

The Fixed Penalty rate is set at £80.00 and reduced to £50.00 if paid within 14
days of issue. The discount period is to encourage settlement at an amount
that is sufficient to act as a deterrent to future offences.

There are detailed statutory requirements setting out what the Notices should contain.
All Notices served must comply with the statutory requirements to be valid. Standard
Notices are produced to ensure compliance. All stages must be completed within 6
months of the first notice being issued.

5
Page 51



DISTRICT COUNCIL

Street Scene Services
Phoenix House

The Occupier Phoenix Lane
> Tiverton
z EX16 6PP

website:  www.middevon.gov.uk
contact:  Street Scene Services

Your Ref: telephone: 01884 255255

Our Ref: 20/>/WASTE e-mail:  streetscene@middevon.gov.uk

Date: > 2020

Dear Occupier

RECEPTACLES FOR HOUSEHOLD WASTE
SECTION 46 OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ACT 1990
Premises: >

Mid Devon District Council, as your waste collection authority, has a duty by virtue of Section 46
(1)(a) of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 to arrange for the collection of household waste
from any premises.

Please find enclosed a Notice which sets out the requirements of the Council of when and how to
put out your waste and recycling - this Notice is served on you under Section 46 (1) of the
Environmental Protection Act 1990. You are obliged by law to comply with this Notice.

Please note that Mid Devon District Council may take enforcement action if these requirements
are not followed.

If you require black or green recycling boxes and/or a blue food caddy, please order via the
website (www.middevon.gov.uk/do-it-online/) under the heading ‘Waste and Recycling’ and the
option ‘Request a new waste container’ or call the above telephone number. An opt-in
chargeable service for garden waste is also available.

If we can help you in any other way with recycling or you have any queries, please contact the
Council via the above telephone number or e-mail address. Further information can also be
found on our website as detailed above.

Yours faithfully

District Officer

6
Page 52


http://www.middevon.gov.uk/do-it-online/
http://www.middevon.gov.uk/

DISTRICT COUNCIL

Abandoned Vehicle Policy

Date of Issue: January 2020
Review date: January 2030

Page 53



Contents

1. Introduction

2. The process

3. Notice periods

4.  Contact details

5. Costings

6. Relevant legislation
7.  Further information

Appendix A: Operational Policy — Schedule of steps
Appendix B: Prescribed sums and charges for removal

Page 54



1.0 Introduction

1.1 Local authorities have a duty under Section 3 of the Refuse Disposal (Amenity)
Act 1978 to remove a vehicle which is abandoned on a road (including
private roads) or land in the open air, subject to certain conditions.

1.2.1 Mid Devon District Council is not required to remove an abandoned vehicle

situated on open air land if the cost of removing it to the nearest highway is

unreasonably’ high.

1.3 Relevant legislation:

Refuse Disposal (Amenity) Act 1978

The Removal and Disposal of Vehicles Regulations 1986

The Removal, Storage and Disposal of Vehicles (Prescribed Sums and
Charges) Regulations 2008

Criminal Justice Act 1982

2.0 Process

2.1 Mid Devon District Council will inspect each vehicle that has been reported
as abandoned within the time scale specified in the procedure to confirm that it
should be considered as abandoned.

2.2 The following circumstances may be taken into account when assessing
whether a vehicle has been abandoned for the purpose of the Council’s
statutory duty:

If the vehicle is taxed and in an abandoned state or untaxed.
If it has been stationary for a significant? amount of time.

If it is damaged, burnt out, run down, un-roadworthy.

If it is missing one or more vehicle registration plates.

If it is on any land in the open air or any land forming part of a
Highway/Road.

1 clearly inappropriate, excessive

2 An amount of time which is large enough to be important or affect a situation to a noticeable degree, vehicle has been in situ
for 2 months or more.

3

Page 55



3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

Removal, Storage and Disposal

If a vehicle is abandoned? then the vehicle will be dealt with according to the
standard procedure set out in Annex A.

If a vehicle is on land open to air Mid Devon District Council may make
enquiries to determine the status of the land. If the land is occupied*, Mid
Devon District Council may serve a 15 day notice on the occupier of the land
stating its intent to remove the vehicle. If the occupier objects, Mid Devon
District Council cannot remove the vehicle from the land. If the occupier does
not object, Mid Devon District Council must remove the vehicle after the 15 day
notice period.

If Mid Devon District Council is satisfied that the land is not occupied, the
Council may remove an abandoned vehicle in accordance with steps set out
below, as appropriate.

If a vehicle is taxed and displays a valid registration plate but is in an
abandoned state the Council will contact DVLA to establish the registered
keeper of the vehicle. The Council will then serve a 7 day notice on the
registered keeper to remove the vehicle from the land.

If a vehicle is not taxed, or it does not have a valid registration plate or visible
VIN number, the Council may remove the vehicle without any notice to the
registered keeper / owner.

If Mid Devon District Council is not able to establish the registered keeper or
owner, or if the recipient of a 7 day notice fails to comply, Mid Devon District
Council may dispose of the vehicle.

If an abandoned vehicle is in such a condition that it ought to be destroyed, Mid
Devon District Council can dispose of the vehicle after its removal without any
notice to the owner.

Mid Devon District Council will dispose of a vehicle as it sees fit, i.e. by sale,
auction or destruction. Any recovered vehicle that may be of significant value
should be brought to the attention of the Group Manager of the service for a
decision on disposal/sale.

Where Mid Devon District Council has been notified of an abandoned vehicle
by a third party, that party will be notified of the outcome to any case.

3.10 Mid Devon District Council may recover any cost of removal, storage or

disposal from the registered keeper for abandoning their vehicle. Mid Devon

3 Definition of abandoned. A vehicle that has been left unattended on public property for more than twenty-four hours and lacks
current registration plates or two or more wheels or other parts which renders the vehicle totally inoperable.

4 Definition of occupied. Possession; control; tenure; use. In its usual sense “occupation” is where a person exercises physical
control over land.

4

Page 56



4

District Council is not permitted to recover any costs from an occupier of land
upon which a vehicle has been abandoned. Initial removal: £150, Storage: £20
per day from the date of removal. These prices may change to reflect inflation.

Prosecution

4.1 In appropriate cases Mid Devon District Council may prosecute the offender of

5.1

5.2

5.3

6.1

7.1

an abandoned vehicle. The offence of abandoning a vehicle on conviction is a
summary offence. If found guilty an individual or business may be liable to pay a
fine not exceeding level 4 on the standard scale shown in appendix B (currently
£2,500, but subject to changes in legislation), or imprisonment for a term not
exceeding three months, or both. °

Enforcement

Where possible, Mid Devon District Council may seek to recover any costs of
removing/storing vehicles from the Registered Keeper(s). If the above is not
possible, costs may be charged against the Street Scene and Open Spaces
budget.

In accordance with The Removal, Storage and Disposal of Vehicles (Prescribed
Sums and Charges) Regulations 2008 the Council may serve a fixed penalty
notice on a registered keeper / owner of an abandoned vehicle, requiring
payment of £150.00 within 14 days from the date of the notice.

If the registered keeper / owner fails to pay the fixed penalty notice before the
notice period expires, the Council may prosecute the offender.

Financial Implications

The cost to Mid Devon District Council of dealing with abandoned vehicles is
currently offset by the nominal scrap value of the vehicle. The contractor used
by Mid Devon District Council waives their fee for works undertaken removing
vehicles as they retain the scrap value. Any changes to this arrangement would
require a review of this policy as Mid Devon District Council does not budget to
meet this statutory function.

Data Security and additional information
Abandoned vehicle reports are logged on the Driver Vehicle Licensing Authority

(DVLA) Waste and Electronic Equipment electronic database. After 2 years
worksheets will be deleted in line with the DVLA data retention guidelines.

5 Refer to the Operations Directorate Enforcement Policy

5

Page 57



7.2

DVLA check printouts are stored in a locked cabinet and destroyed after a
period of time as specified by the DVLA. In addition, all enquiries are recorded
in a separate log to act as an audit trail, and are also kept in a locked cabinet.

7.3 If an enquiry is made by Mid Devon District Council on an incorrect Vehicle

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

Registration Mark, details of the enquiry must be deleted from all internal
systems but an audit trail must be kept for 2 years; this is recorded in the log.

Before performing a DVLA check, the Council’s authorised Street Scene
business support employee must have read the guidance issued by the DVLA
and understand the evidence that must be in place before making a request.

It is the responsibility of the police to move or remove vehicles that are on the
highway and in a position to endanger other road users, i.e. obstruction.

Vehicles that have been involved in a road traffic collision are the responsibility
of the register keepers / owner’s insurance company.

A SORN is a Statutory Off-Road Notification which must be declared to the
DVLA when a vehicle is not going to be used for a period of time. The vehicle
must be kept away from the highway and on private land which the registered
keeper owns or has permission from the owner to use for storage. For example,
a driveway to a house, in a garage or on an allocated parking space.

Page 58



Appendix A
TO ADANDONED VEHICLE POLICY
DATED NOV 19

Abandoned vehicle procedure

1) Vehicle reported as abandoned by customer

1
Working
day

2) IDOX record created validations checks carried out.

3) Check Tax status on vehicle using https://www.gov.uk/check-vehicle-tax
3.1 If the vehicle has valid tax, close case and inform customer.
3.2 No valid tax allocate to District Officer.

4) Allocated District Officer attends site
2 4.1 District Officer must take photos of the vehicle
Working 4.2 Documents the vehicle is abandoned
days 4.3 Check tax status again
4.4 Record the time, date, location, make, model and registration number.

5) District Officer sends photos and details of exact location of the abandoned vehicle
back to admin staff. Admin staff check that the details reported by the customer and
the District Officer match.

6) Authorised admin staff make DVLA enquiry Ensure the DVLA guidance is read
before making any enquiry.
7 Working 6.1 The make and model details of the vehicle match the ones on the abandoned
days vehicle.

6.2 The date of event entered is the date in which the District Officer attends site and
> carries out checks to the vehicle.

6.3 The enquiry must be made within 7 days of the date the vehicle was first sighted

by the District Officer, not the date reported by the customer.

6.4 The correct registration number is entered before submitting the request.

6.5 The Vehicle registration number is submitted in the correct field.

7) If a registered keeper is identified refer the case back to the District Officer and
request the 7 day notice to be applied. Request they take photos of the notice
attached to the vehicle.

8) If no registered keeper is identified refer the case back to the District Officer and
request the 24 hour notice to be applied. Request they take photos of the notice
attached to the vehicle.

Working 9) Once the notice has been attached to the vehicle and the photos have been taken,

days send the 7 day notice letter to the registered keeper; get another member of the team

7

Page 59


https://www.gov.uk/check-vehicle-tax

14
Working
days

15
Working
days

to check the letter and ensure the dates correspond and car details are correct
before sending to the keeper.

10) If no registered keeper is identified after 24 hours the District Officer attends the
location again to ensure the vehicle is still on site, if so a request is made to the scrap
metal hauliers for removal. The location, make, model and registration details must
be given.

11) After the 7t day if no response from the registered keeper the District Officer
attends the location again to ensure the vehicle is still on site, once the second site
visit has been carried out a second DVLA enquiry must be made to ensure the
details of the registered keeper are the same as the enquiry previously made. If
these are the same, a request is made to the scrap metal hauliers for removal. The
location, make, model and registration details must be given.

12) If the registered keeper contacts Mid Devon District Council and advises the
vehicle is not abandoned, the case is closed. NO further DVLA checks are carried

out. Report untaxed vehicle to the DVLA, advise the customer the vehicle needs to
be taxed or SORN on private land.

13) Update the IDOX case ensuring all details are recorded. Ensure letters are saved
including the certificate of destruction which is provided by the scrap metal hauliers.

14) Close the IDOX case and refer to legal services for cost recovery.

Page 60



Appendix B

TO ADANDONED VEHICLE POLICY
DATED NOV 19

Vehicle position and Vehicle Vehicle Vehicle Vehicle
condition equal to or | exceeding 3.5 exceeding 7.5 exceeding
less than tonnes MAM tonnes MAM 18 tonnes
3.5 tonnes | but equal to or | but equal to or | MAM
MAM less than 7.5 less than 18
tonnes MAM
Vehicle on road, upright | £150 £200 £350 £350
and not substantially
damaged or any two
wheeled vehicle
whatever its condition or
position on or off the
road
Vehicle, excluding a two | £250 £650 Unladen—£2000 | Unladen—
wheeled vehicle, on £3000
road but either not
upright or substantially Laden-£3000 | Laden—
damaged or both £4500
Vehicle, excluding a two | £200 £400 Unladen—£1000 | Unladen—
wheeled vehicle, off £1500
road, upright and not
substantially damaged Laden—£1500 | Laden—
£2000
Vehicle, excluding a two | £300 £850 Unladen—£3000 | Unladen—
wheeled vehicle, off £4500
road but either not
upright or substantially Laden—£4500 | Laden—
damaged or both £6000
9

Page 61




The prescribed sum in respect of removal, for the purposes of sections 101A(3), 101A(4)
and 102(2)(a) of the 1984 Act and sections 4(5) , 4(6) and 5(1)(a) of the 1978 Act, in respect
of vehicles set out in column 1 of Table 1 shall be the sum specified in relation to those
vehicles in columns 2 to 5 of that Table, the particular sum to be determined by reference to
the MAM of the vehicle as described in row 1 of that Table and, for vehicles exceeding 7.5
tonnes MAM and not falling within row 2, whether the vehicle is laden or unladen.

10

Page 62



DISTRICT COUNCIL

Stray Dog Policy

Date of Issue: January 2020
Review date: January 2030

Page 63



N o o bk~ W»

Contents

Introduction

The principle

The Legislation and process
Penalties and payments

Contact details

Appendix A: Microchipping Policy

Appendix B: Collar and Tag Policy

Page 64



1.0

1.1

2.0

2.1

2.2

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.3.1

Introduction

The Environmental Protection Act (1990) (EPA) referred to as ‘The Act
appoints an officer “for the purpose of discharging the functions for dealing
with stray dogs found in the area of the authority”.

The principle

Mid Devon District Council is responsible for the seizure and transport of stray
dogs:

e Patrolling the District and enforcement of dog fouling legislation;

e Encouraging responsible dog ownership through presentations and talks;

Members of the public who find a stray dog are required by the Environmental
Protection Act 1990 to either return to its owner, or report it to the local
authority. The finder will be contacted within an hour. Mid Devon District
Council does supply a collection service during normal working hours' and will
endeavour to collect the dog by the end of the day.

The legislation and process

The current legislation requires a dog in a public place to be fitted with a collar
and tag bearing the name and address of the owner (see also microchipping
policy). Where a stray dog has a form of identification, or the owner of the
dog is known, the District Officer will make every effort to return the dog to its
rightful owner. However, if the owner cannot be contacted a ‘notice of
seizure’ (s.149 (3) & (4) EPA 1990) will be issued. The notice specifies that
the dog has been seized, retained at kennels and that it is liable to be
disposed of it is not claimed within seven clear days from the date of the
notice.

The owner of a stray dog is ‘not entitled’ to the return of the animal until they
have paid all the expenses incurred and a further prescribed sum (s149
(5)EPA 1990). Should the dog not be claimed or the owner declines to pay
the sums outstanding, the ownership of the dog is legally transferred to the
Council after seven clear days. The Council is then entitled to sell or re-home
the dog (except for the purposes of vivisection) or to have it humanely
destroyed.

Seizure of a dog

The Environmental Protection Act 1990 specifies that in each case, a dog
seized as a stray is required to be detained and a notice of seizure served
upon the owner (where known). In addition, the policy of Mid Devon District
Council is that, on the first occasion that a dog is seized, the District Officer

1 Normal working hours between 9am — 17:00pm Monday to Friday

3

Page 65



3.4

3.4.1

3.4.2

3.5

3.5.1

3.6

3.6.1

3.7

3.7.1

3.7.2

will make all reasonable efforts to identify the owner and return it to them
before taking it to the kennels. The District Officer carries a scanning device
to identify dogs fitted with a microchip. If the address of the owner is
identified, the District Officer will either visit or telephone. If contact is made,
the dog will be returned to the owner.

Returning a dog

A dog will only be returned to an address if there is someone able to receive
the dog; it will not be left at an unoccupied property, for example where the
owner is out or with any person under the age of 18 years of age.

Mid Devon District Council currently insists on cash or debit/credit card for the
full amount (statutory fee, handling fee, kennelling fees, plus any veterinary
costs incurred) before a stray dog is released to a claimant. Once all fees
are paid the District Officer will arrange to deliver the dog back to the owner.
The owner will be required to be at home to receive the dog and sign for its
receipt.

Kennelling Fees

Kennelling fees charged by the contractor plus an additional administration
fee need to be paid.

Out of Hours

Stray dogs will be collected out of hours until 6pm if the dog is detained e.g. in a
garden or with the finder. Patrols for stray dogs will not be carried out between
the hours of 5pm and 11am except in special circumstances. After 6pm details of
the finder will be taken by the Council’s Emergency out of Hours service and
arrangements will be made with the registered kennels for the dogs to be
collected from a designated collection  point. The dog will remain in the care of
the kennels overnight and the District Officer will endeavour to make
arrangements the following day to reunite the dog with the registered owner.

Recovery

Stray dogs will be returned to the owner during office hours to enable
payment to be made. Alternatively the owner can collect the dog from the
Council’'s offices at Phoenix House, Phoenix Lane, Tiverton, Devon EX16
6PP.

Detained dogs will not be released by Mid Devon District Council until all
costs incurred are paid in full. During office hours payment can be made in
person at one of our community offices via debit/credit card or cash.
Alternatively payment can be made on line at
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/do-it-online/miscellaneous/pay-for-it-online/

Page 66


https://www.middevon.gov.uk/do-it-online/miscellaneous/pay-for-it-online/

3.8

3.8.1

3.8.2

3.8.3

3.8.4

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

Unclaimed Strays

Stray dogs are held for a minimum period of seven clear days following
seizure, or following service of a notice of seizure, whichever is the latest.
After this period, ownership of the dog reverts to Mid Devon District Council.

Section 149(6) of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 entitles Mid Devon

District Council to deal with unclaimed stray dogs in one of three ways:

e By selling it or giving it to a person who will, in his opinion, care properly
for the dog;

e By selling it or giving it to an establishment for the reception of stray dogs;
or

e By destroying it humanely and by a qualified veterinary surgeon

No dog shall be sold or given for the purposes of vivisection.

Once transferred to Mid Devon District Council or re-homed to a new owner,
the former owner of a stray dog has no legal claim for the return of the animal.

The details of the person to whom ownership is transferred by Mid Devon
District Council are required to be recorded on a public register. Under
normal circumstances, the majority of unclaimed strays are re-homed and
therefore it is this  information which is recorded in the public register, rather
than any subsequent new owner. The register is available for public
inspection.

Penalties and Payments

Mid Devon District Council currently insists on cash or card payments for the
full amount (statutory administration fee, handling fee, kennelling fees, plus
any veterinary costs incurred) in line with the contractor’s fees before a stray
dog is released to a claimant.

Contact details

Lost or found dogs — telephone Customer First, 01884 255255 (24 hours a
day)

Page 67



DISTRICT COUNCIL

Microchipping Procedure

Date of Issue: January 2020

Review date: January 2029

Page 68

Appendix A Microchip procedure



Contents
1. Introduction

2. The Legislation

3. Procedure

Page 69



1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.2.1

Introduction

On the 6th April 2016 it became compulsory for all dogs to be microchipped.
This move was welcomed by many including Mid Devon District Council
District Officers.

The permanent identification of dogs through microchipping not only has the
benefit of allowing lost and stolen dogs to be re-united with their owners
quickly but will encourage responsible ownership, deter dog theft and help
tackle puppy farming and the associated problems.

Microchipping also has a number of animal welfare benefits including the swift
contact of owners by veterinary surgeons for emergency procedures (for
example dogs that have been involved in road accidents), easy identification
of dogs in properties in emergency situations so that dogs and owners can be
moved and reunited quickly and the easy identification of owners involved in
animal cruelty complaints.

Alongside Mid Devon District Council’s statutory function to seize stray dogs,
District Officers also work closely with Mid Devon District Councils Licensing
Department, Neighbourhood Officers and the Police.

Legalisation

The Microchipping of Dogs (England) Regulations 2015 come into force on
the 6th April 2016 and are made under section 12 of the Animal Welfare Act
2006. These Regulations will provide for the compulsory microchipping of
dogs, the recording of a dog’s identity and keeper's contact details on a
database.

Under the Regulations a keeper means:

In relation to an assistance dog:

e Until the dog ceases working as an assistance dog, the body responsible
for its training and allocation;

e After the dog has ceased working as an assistance dog, the person with
whom it normally resides;

2.2.2 Inrelation to a new born puppy:

e The owner of the bitch which gave birth to it;

2.2.3 In relation to any other dog:

e the person with whom it normally resides.

Page 70



2.3

2.3.1

2.3.2

2.4

2.4.1

24.2

2.5

2.5.1
2.5.2

2.5.3

254

2.6

2.6.1

Obligation to microchip dogs

From the 6th April 2016, every keeper of a dog that has not been implanted
with a microchip by that date and where the dog is older than 8 weeks and not
a certified working dog under the Animal Welfare Act 2006 must ensure that it
is microchipped.

However this does not apply where a Secretary of State approved certificate
has been completed by a veterinary surgeon stating that a dog should not be
microchipped for health reasons (this also applies to imported dogs who must
otherwise be microchipped within 30 days of being imported). The certificate
must state the period for which the dog will be unfit to be microchipped. A dog
is deemed to be microchipped where the implanted chip complies with
requirements detailed in the Regulations and where these details are
recorded on a database by a database operator as specified within the
Regulations.

Change of keeper

From 6th April 2016, where a dog is transferred to a new keeper, the new
keeper must (unless the previous keeper has already done so) record their full
name, address and contact telephone number (if any) and any change in the
dog’s name with the database on which the dog’s details are recorded.

From 6th April 2016, no keeper may transfer a dog to a new keeper until it has
been microchipped unless a certificate has been issued stating that the dog
should not be microchipped for reasons of the animal’s health.

Offences

Offences that will relate to Mid Devon District Council enforcement role are —
Failure to transfer a dog to a new keeper without a microchip (unless a
certificate has been issued stating that the dog should not be microchipped for

health reasons)

Failure to comply with a notice served by an authorised person requiring dog
to be microchipped within 21 days

Obstructing an authorised person who is arranging for the dog to be
microchipped, recovering the cost of doing so and/or taking possession of a
dog for the purposes of microchipping.

Time limits, Penalties and Appeals

The above offences are punishable on summary conviction (Magistrates) by a

fine not exceeding level 2 (£500) on the standard scale with a 6 month time
limit upon discovery of an offence to commence a prosecution).

9

Page 71



2.7

2.7.1

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.2.1

3.2.2

3.2.3

3.2.5

3.3

3.3.1

Appeals

A keeper may appeal to the First-tier tribunal against a notice served requiring
the keeper to have the dog microchipped within 21 days.

The Procedure

In order to enforce the Microchipping of Dogs (England) Regulations 2015 it is
proposed that the Mid Devon District Council District Officers are authorised in
writing by the Local Authority as “authorised persons” in their roles as District
Officers.

In accordance with the Regulations as authorised persons, Mid Devon District
Council District Officers upon receiving a complaint about a dog that is not
microchipped but is required to be so or where a stray dog is picked up and
found to have no microchip but is required to have one then the following
procedure will be followed:-

Serve on the keeper a Notice requiring them to have the dog microchipped
within 21 days. A keeper may appeal against this notice.

Where the keeper has failed to comply with the Notice, arrangements will be
made for the dog to be taken into possession to (a) check whether the animal
has been microchipped and (b) to arrange microchipping of the dog with an
approved implanter.

A written warning will be issued to the keeper advising them that failure to
comply with the Notice is an offence under the Regulations. The letter will also
state that (a) the dog is being taken into possession and (b) give details of the
microchipping appointment.

If a dog is taken into possession and removed from the keeper’s property to
be microchipped then a Notice will be issued to the keeper which will then be
returned to the Mid Devon District Council’s District Offices when the dog is
returned to the keeper.

Change of Keeper

In accordance with the Regulations it is proposed that where it is found that a
dog has been transferred to a new keeper without a microchip (unless a
certificate has been issued stating that the dog should not be microchipped for
health reasons) then the following procedure will be followed:

e A written warning will be issued reminding the keeper of their
responsibilities under the Regulations including the penalties for failure to
comply.

10

Page 72



3.3.2 Where a second complaint is received about the same keeper, the keeper will
be invited in to attend an interview carried out under the Police and Criminal
Evidence Act 1984. Where there is evidence to suggest that an offence has
been committed the case will be forwarded to the Mid Devon District Council
Legal Department for consideration.

11

Page 73



Appendix B Collar and tag procedure

DISTRICT COUNCIL

Collar and Tag Procedure

(To be read in conjunction with
Microchipping Procedure)

Date of issue: January 2020

Review Date: January 2029

12

Page 74



Contents

-_—

. Introduction

Legislation

Offences

Time limits and penalties
Procedure

Exemptions

Appendix 1

© N o o »~ w Db

Appendix 2

13

Page 75



1.0

1.1

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.2.1

222

3.0

3.1

3.2

Introduction

Mid Devon District Council as the local authority has a statutory function to
seize stray dogs. It is noticeable that dogs coming into the custody of the
District Council are rarely those that are wearing a collar and tag.

The legislation

The Control of Dogs Order 1992 came into force on 1 April 1992 and is
made under section 13 of the Animal Health Act 1981. This Order is executed
and enforced by officers of Mid Devon District Council.

Article 2 (Wearing of collars by dogs) states that:

Every dog, whilst on a highway or in a place of public resort, shall wear a
collar with the name and address of the owner inscribed on the collar, or on a
plate or badge attached to it.

This does not apply to the following:

e Any packs of hounds

Any dog while being used for sporting purposes

Any dog while being used for the capture or destruction of vermin

Any dog while being used for the driving or tending of cattle or sheep

Any dog while being used on official duties by a member of Her Majesty’s
Armed Forces or Her Majesty’s Customs and Excise or the police force for
any area

¢ Any dog while being used in emergency rescue work

e Any dog registered with the Guide Dogs for the Blind Association.

Offences

The owner of a dog or the person in charge of a dog who, without lawful
authority or excuse, proof of which shall lie on him/her, causes or permits the
dog to be on a highway or in a place of public resort not wearing a collar as
prescribed in article 2, shall be guilty of an offence under the Animal Health
Act 1981.

Any dog in respect of which an offence is being committed under this Order
may be seized and treated as a stray dog under section 149 of the
Environmental Protection Act 1990.

14

Page 76



4.0

4.1

4.2

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

Time limits and Penalties

Section 71A of the Animal Health Act 1981 (Time limits) states that time limits
for offences are within the period of 3 years starting with the date of the
commission of the offence and within the period of 6 months starting with the
day on which evidence that the prosecutor thinks is sufficient to justify the
proceedings comes to his knowledge.

Section 75 of the Animal Health Act 1981 states that a person guilty of an
offence to which this section applies is liable on summary conviction to
imprisonment for a term not exceeding 6 months or to a fine not exceeding
level 5 Criminal Justice Act 1982 on the standard scale or to both.

Procedure

The Animal Health Act 1981 gives Mid Devon District Council the power to
pursue a prosecution against those who fail to comply with The Control of
Dogs Order 1992.

Where a dog is seen without a collar or tag attached to it bearing details of the
owner, as required by article 2 of The Control of Dogs Order 1992, the owner
will be served with a Collar and Tag Notice.

This Notice gives the owner/person in charge of the dog 7 working days from
the date of the Notice to provide evidence to Mid Devon District Council that a
collar and/or tag bearing the owner’s name and address has been purchased.
Upon presentation of the collar and/or tag, the Notice must be completed by
the inspecting officer and no further action will be taken.

A record should be made of the service of this Notice and a copy kept on file.

Should the owner/person in charge fail to provide evidence within this time
then a further Notice must be served with a letter as detailed in Annex 2 giving
the owner/person in charge of the dog a further 7 working days to produce
evidence of a collar and/or tag.

Failure to produce a collar and/or tag on this occasion will result in an
investigation being carried out into why the owner/person in charge has failed
to present a collar and/or tag to Mid Devon District Council.

The owner/person in charge shall be invited to attend an interview carried out
under the Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984 and where there is evidence

to suggest that an offence has been committed, the case should be forwarded
to Mid Devon District Council’s Legal service for consideration.

15

Page 77



Annex 1

Mid . Street Scene Services
Devon Phoenix House

preTeT comett Phoenix Lane
Tiverton

Devon

EX16 6PP

Tel: 01884 255255

Ref:
Name:
Address:

At....(insert time)....hrs on....(insert date)....a....(insert description of dog)....owned by you/in your
charge, was seen/found straying in....(insert location)....

The dog did not have a collar or tag attached to it bearing details of the owner as required by Article
2 of The Control of Dogs Order 1992.

Consideration will be given to prosecuting you for failing to comply with this requirement unless
within 7 days of service of this Notice you attend the Mid Devon District Council office as above with
a collar and/or tag bearing the owner’s name and address (telephone number will suffice).

Signed: Date:

MDDC Officer:

For office use only:
MDDC office - TAG SEEN AND CHECKED AS BELOW

Details on the tag:

Signed: Date:

MDDC Officer:

(print name)

Annex 2

16

Page 78




DISTRICT COUNCIL

INSERT ADDRESS Street Scene Services
Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane
Tiverton
Devon
EX16 6PP
www.middevon.gov.uk

Street Scene Services

Contact:
Our Ref: INSERT NOTICE REF Telephone 01884 255255
Email: streetscene@middevon.gov.uk

INSERT DATE

Dear Sir/Madam

ANIMAL HEALTH ACT 1981

THE CONTROL OF DOGS ORDER 1992

| write following on from our conversation on (insert date) when | issued you with a Notice under
the above Order requiring you to present a collar and/or tag bearing your name and address
(telephone number will suffice) for your dog. This Notice was served upon you following on from
your dog (insert name, sex, colour and breed description) who was seen/found/handed into the
custody of Mid Devon District Council on (insert date) without a collar and/or tag as required under
The Control of Dogs Order 1992.

To date this Notice has not been complied with. | therefore enclose a further Notice requiring you to
present a collar and/or tag bearing your name and address (telephone number will suffice) to Mid
Devon District Council within 7 days of the date of the Notice. Failure to produce a collar and tag by
this date may result in further enforcement action being taken.

| must take this opportunity to remind you that every dog while in a highway or in a place of public
resort shall wear a collar with the name and address of the owner inscribed on the collar or on a
plate or badge attached to it.

The owner of a dog or the person in charge of a dog who, without lawful authority or excuse, proof
of which shall lie on him, causes or permits the dog to be in a highway or in a place of public resort
not wearing a collar as prescribed in article 2 of The Control of Dogs Order 1992 shall be guilty of an
offence under the Animal Health Act 1981.

17

Page 79



Contravention of The Control of Dogs Order 1992 is an offence against the Animal Health Act 1981.
Upon conviction a Magistrates Court can order a fine of up to £5,000 and/or a term of imprisonment
of up to 6 months.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this letter please contact a Dog Warden on the above
telephone number.

Yours sincerely

Street Scene Services

18

Page 80



Agenda Item 6.

Environment PDG
10 March 2020

PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER - DOGS

Cabinet Member(s): Clir Luke Taylor, Cabinet Member for the Environment

Responsible Officer: Vicky Lowman, Environment & Enforcement Manager
Stuart Noyce, Group Manager - Street Scene and Open
Spaces

Reason for Report: To consider widening enforcement powers, in order to deliver a
cleaner and more sustainable environment across the District within the Mid Devon
District Council Boundary.

To replace current dog control powers across the District which are due to expire in
October 2020.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
That the PDG recommends to Cabinet:

1. To give authority to consult with members of the public and other relevant
stakeholders to introduce a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) under
Section 59 of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014.

2. To set the fixed penalty for breach of the order at the maximum level
permitted of £100.

Financial Implications: Whilst a consequence of enforcement may be an increase
in Fixed Penalty Notices, income generation is not a reason for introducing a new
PSPO.

Budget and Policy Framework: The Council already has measures to control
dogs and the proposed draft PSPO is to ensure that this can continue.

Legal Implications: The current PSPO is due to expire in October 2020. If a new
PSPO is not adopted by then, Officers will not be able to enforce the current
measures designed to curb anti-social behaviour arising from dog fouling and other
matters set out in the new draft order. .

Risk Assessment: As the legalisation changes and our policies are not updated
this may leave the Council at risk of not being able to enforce infringements which
could result in reputational damage for not taking appropriate action against
offenders.

Equality Impact Assessment: The equality issues are addressed through
exemptions — see part 8 of this report.

Page 81



Relationship to Corporate Plan: The Street Scene Enforcement Service is a
frontline service which works throughout the District ensuring cleanliness and
attractiveness of our public realm through both education and enforcement.

Impact on Climate Change: PSPOs require or prohibit certain activities from
taking place in certain places (restricted areas) in order to prevent or reduce any
detrimental effect caused by those activities to local surroundings and people.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 The Council has used dog control orders made under the Clean
Neighbourhood and Environment Act 2005. These became PSPOs under
transitional provisions in the Anti-social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act
2014, but these PSPOs will expire in October 2020

1.2 The Street Scene, Education & Enforcement Team have undertaken an
internal review and have instructed Legal Services to produce a draft PSPO
order. This is attached as Appendix A. Plans have been produced by the
Mid Devon District Council GIS team and form part of Appendix A.

1.3 PSPOs are available to Local Authorities to deal with specific nuisance
problems, in particular areas that are having, or are likely to have, a
detrimental effect on the quality of life for those who live, work or play within
the locality. An order can prohibit or restrict certain activities and is
designed to ensure that the law-abiding majority can use and enjoy public
spaces, safe from anti-social behaviour.

2.0 The draft Public Spaces Protection Order

2.1 The following guidance is provided to aid understanding of the draft PSPO
order .The order is drafted to achieve four main objectives-

1.  Dog fouling

Dogs on leads in

a) cemeteries,

b) parks,

c) when requested by an authorised officer or police constable,
3. Exclusion of dogs from play areas
4. Limiting the number of dogs walked at a time by one person

Prohibiting dog fouling

2.2 The draft order prohibits dog fouling in certain areas within the district of
Mid Devon. The areas where dog fouling is prohibited are known in the
order as “Public Spaces” which is a defined term. The term “Public Spaces”
is defined at clause 1.1 of the draft order to mean land within the district of
Mid Devon, which is open to the air including covered land which is open on
at least one side and to which the public are entitled and permitted to have

2

Page 82



2.3

2.4

Dog on

access, with or without payment, with the exception of Forestry
Commission Land. The district of Mid Devon is shown in Schedule A in the
draft order.

Clause 5.1.1 of the draft order proposes that in any Public Space if a dog
defecates at any time the person in charge of the dog must remove the
faeces from the land forthwith. Clause 5.1.2 of the draft order proposes that
a person in charge of a dog must have the appropriate means to pick up
the faeces and must produce this if required to do so by an authorised
officer or a police constable. The local authority provide bins in parks and
many other public areas which may be used by dog owners. If there is not a
bin around, it should be taken home.

This is a control measure to further assist with tackling dog fouling
concerns. Authorised officers may approach dog owners and request them
to produce a device for (or other suitable means of) removing dog faeces
and transporting it to a bin (whether or not the dog has defecated). If the
owner fails to produce this on request then provided it is on designated land
and the offender is not exempted it would be considered an offence.

Leads

2.5

Clause 6 of the draft order deals with the requirement of dogs on leads.
Dogs must be on leads if any of the following apply:

1. In any public cemeteries which are listed in Schedule B to the order
and shown on the relevant plans to the order

2. In any public parks which are listed in Schedule C to the order and
shown on the relevant plans to the order

3. Ifrequested by an authorised officer or a police constable

Excluding Dogs from children’s play areas

2.6

Clause 7 of the draft excludes dogs from children’s play areas which are
listed in Schedule D and shown on the relevant plans to the order. An
offence is committed if an individual in charge of a dog at any time takes a
dog onto, or permits the dog to enter or remain on, any land to which this
part of the Order applies.

Limit on the number of dogs

2.7

This part of the order limits the number of dogs a person can be in control
of in a public place - unless he/she has reasonable excuse or he/she has
permission from the owner of the land on which the dogs are being
walked/exercised. Clause 8.1 of the draft order provides that four dogs is
the maximum number of dogs that can be walked at one time. This is to
minimise the risk of the dog walker not having full control of the dogs. The
draft also sets out the penalties for failing to comply with the order and
specific exemptions from the order.

3

Page 83



3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

Plans of the land covered by the Order

The first part of the draft order prohibits dog fouling in public spaces within
the district of Mid Devon. The district of Mid Devon is shown in the plan
attached to the draft order in Schedule A.

Secondly, dogs must be on leads if they are within any of the public
cemeteries which are listed in Schedule B and shown on the relevant plan to
the order. The following public cemeteries are proposed for this restriction:

St Matthews Cheriton Fizpaine
Black Dog Crediton
Crediton

Colbrooke

Wembworthy

Halberton

Bradninch

All Saints Culmstock
Culmstock

Hemyock

St Mary’s Hemyock
Uffculme

Uffculme (War Memorial)
St Mary’s Uffculme

St Andrews Cullompton
Tiverton

St Mary’s Willand
Willand Parish Cemetery

The draft order also requires that dogs be on leads in the following parks and
open spaces. Plans of the parks and open spaces can be found in the
attached order at Schedule C:

Beacon Park Crediton
Cromwells Meadow Crediton
Chawleigh Chumleigh
Newcombes Meadow Crediton
Peoples Park Crediton

Queen Elizabeth Drive Crediton
School Road Silverton
Southfield Drive Crediton

St Lawrence’s Green Crediton
Victoria Crescent Crediton
Crossparks Cullompton

Crow Bridge Cullompton
Forcefield Road Cullompton
Meadow Lane Cullompton

Page 84



2.4

Stoneyford Cullompton
Landunvez Place Bradninch
High Bullen Silverton

Great Close Culmstock
Millhayes Meadows Hemyock
Church Road Silverton

Amory Park Tiverton

Bluebell Avenue Tiverton
Blundells Road Tiverton

Burma Star Garden Tiverton
Cottey Brook Tiverton

Cranmore View Tiverton
Cudmore Park Tiverton
Glebelands Road Tiverton
Gornhay Lane Tiverton

Graters Copse Tiverton
Moutbatten Road Tiverton

Oak Close Tiverton

Old Park Tiverton

Palmerston Park Woods Tiverton
Peoples Park Tiverton

Phoenix House Tiverton

St Andrew Street Tiverton
Railway Walk Tiverton

River Exe Recreation Tiverton
Starkey Close Tiverton

The Oval Tiverton

Tidcombe Railway Walk Tiverton
Tree Field Tiverton

West-Exe Recreation Ground Tiverton
Ashley Close Uffculme

Culm Valley Uffculme

Chesnut Drive Willand

Gables Lea Willand

Sycamore Close Play Area Willand
Victoria Close Willand

Willand Moor Road Willand

The draft order prohibits a person in charge of a dog from taking the dog (or
permitting it to enter) into the following enclosed children’s play areas
Schedule D:

Barns Close Bradninch

Townlands Bradninch

Station Road, Bray Close Burlescombe
Barnfield Credtion

Chaffinch Drive Credtion

Churchlands Bow Crediton

Fernworthy Copplestone

Page 85



Fulda Crescent Crediton
Glebelands Cheriton Bishop
Godfreys Garden Bow
Greenaway Morchard Bishop
Greenway Crediton

Lapford Play Area Crediton
Lords Meadow Crediton (1)
Lords Meadow Crediton Skate Park Crediton
Lords Meadow Crediton

New Buildings Sandford Crediton
Queen Elizabeth Drive Crediton
Spinning Path Gardens Crediton
St Martins Close Bow
Sunnymead Copplestone

Town Barton Sanford Crediton
Tuckers Meadow Crediton
Walnut Drive Crediton

Ash Drive Cullompton

Bockland Close Cullompton
Dove Close Cullompton

Conifer Close Cullompton
Haymans Close Cullompton
Haymans Green Cullompton
Headweir Road Cullompton
Knightwood Cullompton

Larks Drive Cullompton

Linden Road Cullompton
Ploudal Road Cullompton
Rivermead Cullompton

Siskin Chase Cullompton
Spindlebury Road Cullompton
Starlings Roost Cullompton
Tanners Close_Clover Drive Cullompton
Tufty Park Cullompton

Water Meadow Cullompton
Ellahayes Hele

Logan Way Hemyock

Millhayes Hemyock

Cornlands Sampford Peverell
Amory Park, Tiverton

Ashley Rise Tiverton

Banksia Close Tiverton

Coles Mead Tiverton
Cotteylands _ Cameron Close Tiverton
Cudmore Park Tiverton

Everett Place Tiverton

Halsbury Road Tiverton
Hawthorne Road Tiverton
Orchard Leigh Tiverton

Page 86



4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Palmerston Park Tiverton
Primrose Close Tiverton

Priory Road Tiverton
Puddington Play Area
Queensway Tiverton

Spencer Drive Tiverton
Starkey Close Tiverton

The Hams BMX Track Tiverton
Tiverton Adventure Playground
Trickey Close Tiverton
Waylands Road Tiverton
West-Exe Recreation Ground & Pool Tiverton
Wilcombe Tiverton

Culm Valley Way Uffculme
Pathfields Uffculme

Pippins Field Uffculme

Harpitt Close Willand

Mallow Court Willand

Orchard Way Willand
Recreation Ground Willand
South View Willand

Victoria Close Willand
Worcester Crescent Willand

Legal Implications

Under the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014, a Local
Authority, after consultation with the public, Police, Crime Commissioner and
other relevant bodies, are able to make a Public Spaces Protection Order
(PSPO), if evidence of a nuisance exists. Under Section 59 of the Act, a
Local Authority may make a PSPO if satisfied on reasonable grounds that
two conditions are met.

The first condition is:

a) Activities carried on in a public place within the authority's area have had
a detrimental effect on the quality of life of those in the locality, or

b) It is likely that activities will be carried on in a public place within that
area and that they will have such an effect.

The second condition is that the effect, or likely effect, of the activities:
a) is, or is likely to be, of a persistent or continuing nature,

b) Is, or is likely to be, such as to make the activities unreasonable, and
c) Justifies the restrictions imposed by the Order.

A Public Spaces Protection Order identifies the public place referred to and
sets out a number of conditions, such as;
a) Prohibiting specified things being done in the area,

7

Page 87



4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

6.0

6.1

b) Requiring specified things to be done by persons carrying on specified
activities in that area, or
c) Covering both of those prohibitions.

Prohibitions or requirements may be imposed if they are reasonable to
impose through the order —
a) To prevent the detrimental effect referred to from continuing, occurring
or recurring, or
b) To reduce the detrimental effect or to reduce the risk of its continuance,
occurrence or recurrence

An interested person may appeal to the High Court to question the validity of
a PSPO, or a variation of an Order. An appeal must be made within the
period of 6 weeks beginning with the date on which the Order or variation is
made. Articles 10 and 11 of the Human Rights Act 1998 regarding freedom
of expression and freedom of assembly and association have been
considered and no issues have been identified.

The Council must satisfy its public sector equality duties under the Equality
Act 2010 and at the same time as or following the outcome of consultation it
will be necessary to undertake an Equality Impact Assessment to ensure that
the Council has properly understood and assessed the potential impact of
the proposed PSPO in terms of equality issues.

The enforcement of breaches of the order will be initially enforced through
the use of a fixed penalty notice and then to criminal prosecution in the
Magistrates’ Court if not paid.

Reason for Recommendations

The Council receives a significant number of complaints about dog fouling
and out of control dogs in public places each year. In 2017/18, there were
more than 100 reports to the authority in relation to dog fouling.

PSPOs are available to local authorities to deal with specific nuisance
problems in particular areas that are, or are likely to have a detrimental effect
on the quality of life of people in the area.

Dog fouling is unsightly and unpleasant and in turn can lead to serious illness
in humans, such as Toxocariasis, from direct contact with the faeces on the
ground which can also lead to blindness. Particular concern is raised in
relation to children and sports users using parks and open spaces

Consultation Process
Consultation with residents and relevant stakeholders will take place before a

final decision on the PSPO is made. This will allow the Council to introduce
orders, which are relevant, necessary and consistently enforced across Mid

Page 88



6.2

6.3

7.0

7.1

Devon within the Mid Devon District Council boundary. The following will be
consulted:

All Parish& Town Councils in Mid Devon

Chief Constable of Devon Cornwall Police

Police & Crime Commissioner

All neighbouring Local Authorities

Operational Managers of all Council departments within Mid Devon
District Council

Community Centres

The Assembly Members and Members of Parliament
All Councillors

Ramblers & Walking Groups

Animal Welfare Groups

The Kennel Club

Boarding Kennels within the Mid Devon district.
Sports Clubs

Members of the public.

The consultation will include opening and closing dates of when consultees
can respond on this matter and will take place, according to the consultee,
via:

Letters

Mid Devon District Council’s website
Newspaper Advert

Email

For those who cannot access the internet, other options will be advertised,
such as the option to send a letter or e-mail. Officers may also decide to
undertake direct consultation in a number of parks and public space areas
during the consultation period to ensure views from users are captured.

Mid Devon District Council will also consult with the owners and occupiers of
the land affected as far as practicable.

Enforcement

For breaches of the PSPO, the Council may issue a fixed penalty notice in
order to provide an alternative to prosecution. The proposed penalty of £100
is designed to maximise the deterrent. The fixed penalty is not payable on
the spot but must be paid within 14 days. |If there is a refusal to pay the
fixed penalty, the case may be taken to court — with a potential fine of up to
£1000 plus costs.

Page 89



8.0 Exemptions

8.1 Clause 10 of the PSPO sets out certain exemptions. These cover those
needing assistance dogs or with some form of disability which might prevent
them from complying with the Order. There are also exemptions for certain

working dogs i.e. those involved in law enforcement, military duties, statutory
emergency services and search/rescue.

Contact for more Information: Vicky Lowman Environment & Enforcement Manager
(01884 244601 vlowman@middevon.gov.uk)

Circulation of the Report: Clir Luke Taylor, Cabinet, Leadership Team

10

Page 90



DISTRICT COUNCIL

Public Spaces Protection (Dog Control) Order
2020

Section 59 of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime
and Policing Act 2014

Page 91



Contents

=

Introduction

Scope

Duration

Title

Dog Fouling

Dog on Leads

Dogs Excluded (Enclosed Children’s Play Areas)
Limit on number of dogs
. Offences and Penalties
10. Exemptions

11. Appeal

12. Validity (Severance)

©COoNoOr®ON

Page 92



Introduction
Pursuant to Section 59 of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014.

Mid Devon District Council (in this Order called “the Council”), in exercise of its powers under
Section 59 of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 (“the Act”) and of all
other enabling powers, after consultation carried out in accordance with the Act, and being
satisfied that uncontrolled and irresponsible dog walking in public places has a detrimental
effect on the quality of life of the local community and that the conditions set out in Section 59
of the Act are met, hereby makes the following Order.

1. Definitions and Interpretation

1.1 In the following provisions of this Order, the following terms shall have the meanings
hereby respectively ascribed to them:-

“Authorised Officer” means a person who is authorised in writing by the Council for the
purposes of this Order

“District of Mid Devon” means the land shown edge red on the plan marked “District”
and referred to in Schedule A

“Person in Charge” means the person who has the dog in his possession, care or
company at the time the offence is committed or otherwise, the owner or person who
habitually has the dog in his possession

“Police Constable” means any person lawfully designated and authorised by a Chief
Officer of Police to exercise the powers and duties of a Police Constable

“Public Spaces” means land within the District of Mid Devon, which is open to the air
including covered land which is open on at least one side and to which the public are
entitled and permitted to have access, with or without payment, with the exception of
Forestry Commission Land

1.2 Except when the context otherwise requires, the singular includes the plural and vice-
versa; and the masculine includes the feminine and vice-versa.

1.3 Reference to an Act of Parliament, statutory provision or statutory instrument includes a
reference to that Act of Parliament, statutory provision or statutory instrument as
amended, extended or re-enacted from time to time and to any regulations made under
it.

2. Scope

This Order applies to the Public Spaces, Parks and Open Spaces cited in this Order within
the District of Mid Devon, as indicated on the plans in Schedules A,B,C and D hereto.

3. Duration

This Order shall come into effect on | 12020 and shall remain in force for a period of 3
years from this date, unless extended by further orders made under the Council’s statutory
powers.

4, Title

This Order may be cited as “The Mid Devon (Public Spaces Protection) (Dog Control) Order
2020” and imposes the following requirements and prohibitions.

Page 93



5. Dog Fouling
5.1 In any Public Spaces -

5.1.1 If a dog defecates at any time, the Person in Charge must remove the faeces from
the land forthwith; and

5.1.2 A Person in Charge of a dog must have with them an appropriate means to pick up
any faeces deposited by that dog, and must produce this if requested to do so by
an Authorised Officer or Police Constable.

5.2 For the purposes of Article 5.1.1 -

5.2.1  Placing the faeces in a receptacle on the land which is provided for the purpose or
for the disposal of waste, shall be sufficient removal from the land; and

5.2.2  Being unaware of the defecation (whether by reason of not being in the vicinity or
otherwise), or not having a suitable device or means of removing the faeces shall
not be a reasonable excuse for failing to remove the faeces.

6. Dogs on Leads

6.1 Inany of the public cemeteries listed and shown in Schedule B to this Order, any Person
in Charge of a dog, at any time, must put and keep the dog on a lead and under proper
control.

6.2 In any of the of public parks listed and shown in Schedule C to this Order, any Person
in Charge of a dog, at any time, must put and keep the dog on a lead and under proper
control.

6.3 In all other Public Spaces a Person in Charge of a dog, at any time, must put and keep
the dog on a lead and keep it under proper control when directed to do so by an
Authorised Officer or Police Constable.

6.4 For the purposes of Article 6.3, an Authorised Officer or Police Constable shall only give
a direction to put and keep a dog on a lead if such restraint is reasonably necessary to
prevent a nuisance or behaviour by the dog likely to cause alarm, distress or disturbance
to any other person or animal or bird on the land.

7. Dogs Excluded (Enclosed Children’s Play Areas)

A Person in Charge of a dog is prohibited from taking that dog onto, or permitting the dog to
enter or remain on any enclosed children’s play area (which are Public Spaces) described or
listed in Schedule D to this Order.

8. Limit on number of dogs
No person in any Public Spaces shall be in charge of more than 4 dogs at any time.
9. Offences and Penalties

9.1 Any failure to comply with the requirements or prohibitions imposed in Articles 5, 6, 7 or
8 of this Order shall constitute a criminal offence, unless:

9.1.1 The person has a reasonable excuse for failing to do so;

9.1.2 The owner, occupier or other person or authority having control of the land has
consented (generally or specifically) to his failing to do so; or

Page 94



9.1.3 The person is exempt under Article 10 of this Order.

9.2 Any person guilty of an offence under this Order shall be liable, on summary conviction,
to a fine not exceeding level 3 on the standard scale (on the date of this Order, this is
set at £1,000).

9.3 A Fixed Penalty Notice may be issued by an Authorised Officer or Police Constable to
anyone believed to have committed an offence under this Order. The Fixed Penalty
shall be £100.00. Payment of the Fixed Penalty of £50.00 within 14 days from the date
of the Fixed Penalty Notice will discharge the liability for prosecution.

10. Exemptions

10.1 The requirements and prohibitions imposed by this Order shall not apply to any person
who:

10.1.1 s registered as blind, sight or hearing impaired under the National Assistance Act
1948, or any other legislation;

10.1.2 has a disability which affects his mobility, manual dexterity, physical coordination, or
ability to lift, carry or otherwise move everyday objects, in respect of a dog trained
by a registered charity and upon which he relies for assistance; or

10.2.3 is using a working dog for purposes of law enforcement, military duties or statutory
emergency services (search and rescue).

11. Appeal

Any interested person (defined as an individual who lives in the restricted area or who regularly
works in or visits that area) may question the validity of this Order, pursuant to Section 66 of
the Act, on application made to the High Court within 6 weeks from the date of the Order.

12. Validity (Severance)

If any provision of this Order is held invalid or unenforceable for any reason by a court of
competent jurisdiction, such provision shall be severed and the remainder of the provisions
of the Order shall continue in full force and effect as if the Order had been executed with the
invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision eliminated.

THE COMMON SEAL OF Mid Devon District Council
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:-

Authorised Signatory

Page 95



THE SCHEDULES

List of Plans
SCHEDULE A District of Mid Devon
Plan 1 — Map of District
SCHEDULE B - Public Cemeteries

Plan 2 — St Matthews Cheriton Fizpaine
Plan 3 — Black Dog Crediton

Plan 4 — Crediton

Plan 5 — St Andrews Colbrooke
Plan 6 - Wembworthy

Plan 7 — Halberton

Plan 8 — Bradninch

Plan 9 - All Saints Culmstock

Plan 10 — Culmstock

Plan 11 — Hemyock

Plan 12 — St Mary’s Hemyock

Plan 13 — Uffculme

Plan 14 — Uffclume

Plan 15 — St Mary’s Uffculme

Plan 16 — St Andrews Cullompton
Plan 17 — Tiverton

Plan 18 — St Mary’s Willand

Plan 19 — Willand Parish Cemetery

Page 96



SCHEDULE C -- Parks & Open Spaces
Plan 20 - Amory Park Tiverton

Plan 21 — Ashley Close Uffculme

Plan 22 — Beacon Park Crediton

Plan 23 - Bluebell Avenue Tiverton
Plan 24 - Blundells Road Tiverton
Plan 25 - Burma Star Garden Tiverton
Plan 26 - Chawleigh Chumleigh

Plan 27 - Chestnut Drive Willand

Plan 28 - Church Road Silverton

Plan 29 - Cottey Brook Tiverton

Plan 30 - Cranmore View Tiverton
Plan 31 - Cromwells Meadow Crediton
Plan 32 - Crossparks Cullompton

Plan 33 - Crow Bridge Cullompton
Plan 34 - Cudmore Park Tiverton

Plan 35 - Culm Valley Uffculme

Plan 36 - Forcefield Road Cullompton
Plan 37 - Gables Lea Willand

Plan 38 - Glebelands Road Tiverton
Plan 39 - Gornhay Lane Tiverton

Plan 40 - Graters Copse Tiverton

Plan 41 - Great Close Culmstock

Plan 42 - High Bullen Silverton

Plan 43 - Landunvez Place Bradninch
Plan 44 - Meadow Lane Cullompton
Plan 45 - Millhayes Meadows Hemyock
Plan 46 - Moutbatten Road Tiverton
Plan 47 - Newcombes Meadow Crediton
Plan 48 - Oak Close Tiverton

Plan 49 - Old Park Tiverton

Plan 50 - Palmerston Park Woods Tiverton

Page 97



Plan 51 - Peoples Park Crediton

Plan 52 - Peoples Park Tiverton

Plan 53 - Phoenix House Tiverton

Plan 54 - Queen Elizabeth Drive Crediton
Plan 55 - Railway Walk Tiverton

Plan 56 - River Exe Recreation Tiverton
Plan 57 - School Road Silverton

Plan 58 - Southfield Drive Crediton

Plan 59 - St Andrew Street Tiverton

Plan 60 - St Lawrence’s Green Crediton
Plan 61 - Starkey Close Tiverton

Plan 62 - Stoneyford Cullompton

Plan 63 - Sycamore Close Play Area Willand
Plan 64 - The Oval Tiverton

Plan 65 - Tidcombe Railway Walk Tiverton
Plan 66 - Tree Field Tiverton

Plan 67 - Victoria Close Willand

Plan 68 - Victoria Crescent Crediton

Plan 69 - West-Exe Recreation Ground Tiverton

Plan 70 - Willand Moor Road Willand

Page 98



SCHEDULE D - Enclosed Children’s Play Areas
Plan 71 - Amory Park, Tiverton

Plan 72 - Ash Drive Cullomtpon

Plan 73 - Ashley Rise Tiverton

Plan 74 - Banksia Close Tiverton

Plan 75 - Barnfield Credtion

Plan 76 - Barns Close Bradninch

Plan 77 - Bockland Close Cullompton
Plan 78 - Chaffinch Drive Credtion
Plan 79 - Churchlands Bow

Plan 80 - Coles Mead Tiverton

Plan 81 - Conifer Close Cullompton
Plan 82 - Cornlands Sampford Peverell
Plan 83 - Cotteylands _ Cameron Close Tiverton
Plan 84 - Cudmore Park Tiverton

Plan 85 - Culm Valley Way Uffculme
Plan 86 - Dove Close Cullompton

Plan 87 - Ellerhayes Hele

Plan 88 - Everett Place Tiverton

Plan 89 - Fernworthy Copplestone
Plan 90 - Fulda Crescent Crediton
Plan 91 - Glebelands Cheriton Bishop
Plan 92 - Godfreys Garden Bow

Plan 93 - Greenaway Morchard Bishop
Plan 94 - Greenway Crediton

Plan 95 - Halsbury Road Tiverton

Plan 96 - Harpitt Close Willand

Plan 97 - Hawthorne Road Tiverton
Plan 98 - Haymans Close Cullompton
Plan 99 - Haymans Green Cullompton
Plan 100 - Headweir Road Cullompton
Plan 101 - Knightwood Cullompton

Page 99



Plan 102 - Lapford Play Area

Plan 103 - Larks Drive Cullompton

Plan 104 - Linden Road Cullompton
Plan 105 - Logan Way Hemyock

Plan 106 - Lords Meadow Crediton (1)
Plan 107 - Lords Meadow Crediton Skate Park Crediton
Plan 108 - Lords Meadow Crediton

Plan 109 - Mallow Court Willand

Plan 110 - Millhayes Hemyock

Plan 111 - New Buildings Sandford

Plan 112 - Orchard Leigh Tiverton

Plan 113 - Orchard Way Willand

Plan 114 - Palmerston Park Tiverton
Plan 115 - Pathfields Uffculme

Plan 116 - Pippins Field Uffculme

Plan 117 - Ploudal Road Cullompton
Plan 118 - Primrose Close Tiverton

Plan 119 - Priory Road Tiverton

Plan 120 - Puddington Play Area

Plan 121 - Queen Elizabeth Drive Crediton
Plan 122 - Queensway Tiverton

Plan 123 - Recreation Ground Willand
Plan 124 - Rivermead Cullompton

Plan 125 - Siskin Chase Cullompton
Plan 126 - South View Willand

Plan 127 - Spencer Drive Tiverton

Plan 128 - Spindlebury Road Cullompton
Plan 129 - Spinning Path Gardens Crediton
Plan 130 - St Martins Close Bow

Plan 131 - Starkey Close Tiverton

Plan 132 - Starlings Roost Cullompton

Plan 133 - Station Road, Bray Close Burlescombe

Page 100



Plan 134 - Sunnymead Copplestone

Plan 135 - Tiverton Adventure Playground

Plan 136 - Town Barton Sanford

Plan 137 - Townlands Bradninch

Plan 138 - Trickey Close Tiverton

Plan 139 - Tuckers Meadow Crediton

Plan 140 - Tufty Park Cullompton

Plan 141 - Victoria Close Willand

Plan 142 - Walnut Drive Crediton

Plan 143 - Water Meadow Cullompton

Plan 144 - Waylands Road Tiverton

Plan 145 - West-Exe Recreation Ground & Pool Tiverton
Plan 146 - Wilcombe Tiverton

Plan 147 - Worcester Crescent Willand

Plan 148 - Tanners Close Clover Drive Cullompton

Plan 149 - The Hams BMX Track Tiverton

Page 101



20T abed

Schedule A




€0T abed

Schedule B




0T abed

Schedule C




GOT obed

Schedule D




This page is intentionally left blank



Schedule A
G, eet S Phoenix House -
Street Scene  Plan 1 Phosnix Lans, Tiverton Ex1serp TV C
Scele 1:245,373 @ A4 ot 05 February 2020 Tel: 01884 266265 Devon
Drg. No. Mid Devon District Boundary Producedby GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

Page 107

i s | Sreppep—




This page is intentionally left blank



Schedule B
Street Scene Plan 2 Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP
z Scsle  1:750 @ A4 Dte 06 February 2020 Tel: 01884 265255

Drg. No. 5t Matihew's Church, Prosuced by GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk
Cheriton Fitzpaine

Cheriton Barton

GP
CHURCH U
CROSS

q@ Crown copyright and database rights 20620. OS Licence Esi

Page 109



N/

Street Scene Plan 2 Phoenix House gm n—

Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Scale . Date ,.
1:1,000 @ A4 24 January 2020 Tel: 01884 255255 °Q<°=

Org. No. Cemetery, Black Dog Produced by GMS Unit

Website: g..—sa,ﬂﬂm<o_§.m9<.gx DISTRICT COUNCIL

o

N\

Hele Lane

White Witches " ,
Burial Ground
(Non MDDC Owned)
127.6m
Hele Lane Bridge 'm

|© Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292.]

-

Page 110



Street Scene  Plan4 Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

|5 111,130 @ A4 bate 05 February 2020 Tel: 01884 255255 UQ<°—.-
Dro.No. Crediton Cemetery Produced by GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

RED HILL CROSS

Chapel

Cemetery
(MDDC owned)

y © Crown copyright and database rights 2020 OS Licence 100022252. 11

r w— s W - — N“ - A

Page 111



Street Scene Plan 5 Phoenix House A
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g—ﬂ-
é scle  1:750 @ Ad Date 24 January 2020 Tel: 01884 255255 U evon

Oro.No. St Andrew's Church Cemetery, | Prouced by GMS Uit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk  pjsTRICT COUNCIL

“_ ;MV
g

right and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292,
.Nv i . - . .

e
=% ﬂJV j ‘ )\ [© Grown copy

Page 112



7@

Street Scene Plan {

Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Scle  1:1,000 @ A4

Date 27 January 2020

Tel: 01884 255255 UQ<°—.—

Drg. No. Cemetery, Wembworthy

Produced by GMS Unit

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

Coronation Villas

Wembworthy

© Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292,

Page 113



j Street Scene

N

Plan #

Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Scale  1:1,250 @ Ad

Date 27 January 2020

Devon

Tel: 01884 255255

Drg. No. Cemetery, Halberton

Produced by GMS Unit

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cemetery
{Non MDDC Owned)

&
4
Chapel
(site o}
Hatverrey,
F.Sam ry mﬂaoﬂ

|© Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292,

 s——

r a—

Page 114



\
4

youupe:g ‘AI9jewa oy tig
v @ 000°L'L  epo

=N
g ueld 9udIG JPANS &

Page 115

j=]
3| g
4
€
Q|5
b5
§~2
S| n
=l o
o
o
52 33
@ =
29 33
g »x x
~ LF
g 3
23 3%
N 4%
Sa =
oY o
& 8
3
m
T 3
2
= v
o
L/
i) =
-t
: R O
2: D
=




N
N

Street Scene

Plan 9

Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Scale  1:750 @ Ad

Date 24 January 2020

Tel: 01884 255255 UQ<°—.-

Gc_BmSox

Drg. No.  All Saints’ Church Cemetery,

Produced by GMS Uniit

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

<

-

o
g

H

( Oid School
_l
'- Vicarage
|

TOWN HILL

O

99.2m

The Old
Forge

(MDDC Owned)

The Cleeve
Craven Coftage

Page 116

0
Crurchwilie

All Saints’
Church

105.9m

FORE STREET

© Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292,
i L . . — nl. b N .




Street Scene

Plan 1o

Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g

Scale

1:1,000 @ A4

Date 27 January 2020

B
7]

L vaed hoze

- finien

Tel: 01884 255255 UQ<°-.-

Drg. No. Cemetery, Culmstock Produced by GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL
{Non MDDC Owned)
L —
|I.|I.I|.I..\
[ZJ Church 111.9m
View 107.9m
TCB
o\ =

@ Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licen

-

ncdecennnwn.
= —

Page 117



Street Scene p|gn

1

Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Scale 11,250 @ A4

Date 27 January 2020

Drg. No. Cemetery, Hemyock

Produced by GMS Unit

Tel: 01884 255255 UQ<°—.-

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cemetery
{Non MDDC Owned)

Shuice]

opyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 10002

2292.

s  a—— I.“. - “f.r - T — . -

y -

Page 118



/ Street Scene Plan!Z

Phoenix House A
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g I ﬂ_

Date 24 January 2020

Tel: 01884 255255 UQ<°-.—

z scle  1:750 @ Ad
Drg. No. St Mary's Church Cemetery,

Hemvock

Produced by GMS Unit

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

/

i

139.0m

R\

Hemyock

Castle

Castle

{remains of)

{MDDC Owned)

2

Burford Cottage

Cashi
Coftage Builders

Walcott Yard

StMary's

Page 119




Street Scene Plan |3 Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP
z Scale  1.750 @ A4 Date 27 January 2020 Tel: 01884 255255
Org. No. Cemetery, Uffculme Produced by GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk
»

© Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292,

Page 120




N

Street Scene Plan 4

Phoenix House o
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g—ﬁ—

Scde  1:1,000 @ A4

Date 27 January 2020

Tel: 01884 255255 UQ<°—.—

Drg. No. Cemetery, Uffculme

Produced by GMS Unit

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

Pord

Siveriands

Fam

GP

ot/

Cemetery
(Non MDDC Owned;

J

89.6m

e%% )

Corks
Fa

X 2

© Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292, _

Page 121

“H Y . — — Y . s —.




Street Scene Plan /5 Phoenix House A
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g-ﬂ— G
Z Scale  1:750 @ Ad . Date 24 January 2020 Tel: 01884 255255

Org. No. St Mary's Church Cemetery, Produced by GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk

Page 122



/ Street Scene p|g, ib

Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Date 24 January 2020

Tel: 01884 255255 —UQ<°,=

\ Sclle  1:750 @ Ad

Drg. Ho. St Andrew’s Church Cemetery,
Cullompton

Produced by GMS Unit

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

El Sub Sta g

O

(MDDC Ownedy

12

XY

—

The Vicarage

Page 123

14

Church Priory
7

Cottage Coitage

© Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292.

T




N

S

l/

Street Scene

Plan |7

Scale  1:2,188 @ A4

Date 24 January 2020

Org. No. Tiverton Cemetery

Produced by GMS Unit

Phoenix

Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

House

Tel: 01884 255255
Website: www.middevon.gov.uk

%

=l

ey

dmw“

BARTON RO

i

,,

Ashdowne House

ex Moor Hous,

De

DISTRICT COUNCIL

S

database rights 2020. OS Lice

von

age

nce 100022292,

-

"= 5 4 S 48 e~ — e —

a
L Tiverton 3
Cemetery €
vw [
Lodge {(MDDC Owned)
Chapel
fom © Crown copyright and
—




G

& Street Scene Plan |3 Phoenix House =N e
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g —a_
z S 11,000 @ A4 — OelPelnuny 2020 Tel: 01884 255255 Devon
—

Drg. No. St Mary's Church, Willand | Produced by GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

© Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022282.

Page 125



Street Scene Plan |9 Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

z Sele 1:1,250 @ Ad Date 06 February 2020 Tel: 01884 255255 Devon

Drg. No. willand Parish Cemetery, Willand | Produced by GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

Issues

&

Meadowcroft Cemetery

(Non $DDC owned

N |

63.4m l)

29

ot qf o
e
N
(N

© Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292,

ra

Page 126




Schedule C

Street Scene PlanXo¢ Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP
Z Scle  1:1,575 @ Ad Date 23 January 2020 Tof: 01884 255268
_ 09 No. Amory Park, Tiverton Produced by GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk

Page 127



N Street Scene Phoenix House "
_ Plan 2.1 Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g —n—
z —* _11.000@ A4 oo 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 255255 UQ<°-.—

0rg. No. Ashley Close, Uffcuime Produced by GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

Page 128




Street Scene Plan 22 Phoenix House gm g %

Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Scale  4- Date
1:1,000 @ A4 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 256255 °Q<°=
Drg.No.  Beacon Park, Crediton Produced by GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL
134.5m
Der
% (@)}
142.2m Upper Deck Al

{Public Pack) & —

<& 1)

Fw (@)

) ©

Georgehilt Cross Dl

Recreation Ground
. €1 Sub Sta
.M_MM Mast
P {Telecommunication)
D 30 D @ 6
(] ! L
®
s d U ﬁ )
m ks rown copyright and database rights . OS Licence 100 2.
T . Ve _—1 Ay - = T




Street Scene PlanZ3 Phoenix House R
| Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g-a— i
Z sede 11,000 @ Ad bste 23 January 2020 Tol: 01884 266265 Devon
- DI COUN

Org. No. gyyabell Avenue, Tiverton Proquced by GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk

B
§

@ Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292,

= — -

Page 130



i

HE
.5"3
1B
mom
AN K
a|l2|l ®
=
g
3 T
)
=
R
[ "
3| 8
HE
ols
=2
nN|s
c (<
=2 N
-
[y
D

§92SSC ¥8810 ‘I8L

FNAOB UOASPPIW MMM :3)ISTIM

Byt p|w dd9 91X3 UOMAAIL ‘aueT X1uaoyd
h - aSNOH X1uaoyd

oAD(q

TIINNOJ Lo1uL8I10

Page 131



Street Scene

Planzs

Scale

1:750 @ A4 Date 23 January 2020

Org. No. Byrma Star Garden, Tiverton

Produced by GMS Unit

Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Tel: 01884 255255
Website: www.middevon.gov.uk

Devon

DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cw

Park

[

Nuea

E .

TCB

£l Sub Sta

d © Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 1000

B L £ -y

Page 132



Street Scene PlanZé Phoenix House =
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g -G—
Scsle  1.750 @ A4 Date 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 255255 °o<°=

2. X0 Chawleigh, Chumleigh Producedby GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

©) Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292,

Page 133



@

gl gl &
o] =
| o
e B
12|l »
5@8
=1l o
U

Q

=

N

!

1} SIND 4q peanporg
Alenuer €2 oeq

¢
2
o

Page 134



\ / Street Scene Plan 2%

Date 23 January 2020

z sale 1750 @ Ad
. Drg. No. church Road, Silverton

Produced by GMS Unit

Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Tel: 01884 255255 °Q<°—.-

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

\

e\

t and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292,

rown copyrig!
£

e —T \ wo—— ——

Page 135



P Phoenix House u
Street Scene lan 29 Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g—a—
Seale 14106 @ A4 Dote 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 255255 UQ<°=

Drg. No. cottey Brook, Tiverton Produced by GMS Uit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

ey
%

. .«.,
i\ Reécreation )
)
'V
v
*

© . {
5 -
S — /1 b,
e

3
g

& ‘& ‘ T

:1"%"-1-_
1 \\"‘ﬁ
illl.“‘
LTI

=
LT3

-
_

1

p
o

¥

()
C.
=
.

i“"—t :
ey o | -—-. :'Fl : -
-
[ 1]

B

==
]

" g “. l\l‘ wm/l\‘w
L

.

J

Page 136



Street Scene Plan 30

Scale  1-750 @ A4

Date 23 January 2020

Org. No. Granmore View, Tiverton

Produced by GMS Unit

Phoenix House e
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g -A—

Tel: 01884 255255 UQ<°=

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

Halls

Page 137



Street Scene Plan 3! Phoenix House =

: Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP i
z o LHo00 g A ¢ _23Jaweny 2020 Tel: 01884 255255 °@<°—.-
- Dro-Ne- Cromwells Meadow, Crediton | Producedby GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk  pigrriet counciL

Page 138







Street Scene Plan 33 Phoenix House =
: Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g —ﬂ
z Sclle  1:1,180 @ Ad Date 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 255255 UQ<°=

Drg. No. Grow Bridge, Cullompton Froduced by GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

Page 140




Street Scene

Plan 34

Scale  1:750 @ A4

Date 23 January 2020

Drg. No. cydmore Park, Ti

Producedby GMS Unit

Tel: 01884 255255
Website: www.middevon.gov.uk

Page 141



Street Scene _u_m:,‘wm

&)

Phoenix House - N
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g—ﬂ— i

Scale  1:1,087 @ A4

Date 23 January 2020

Drg. No. cyim Valley, Uffculme

Producedby GMS Unit

Tel: 01884 255255 UQ<°.,=

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

Coidnarbour Wl
{Working Museum}

_& Crown copyright and database rights 2020. Licence 100022292.

/

Page 142



L\
e
= 'Q
N

o
9C ugly °UIIS 1938

pl w dd9 91X3 UOMAAIL ‘aueT Xiusoyd
- aSNOH X1uaolg

;ngLSIO

Page 143



Street Scene Plan 37 Phoenix House =¥l
: Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP — L dF;
z scde 11,000 @ A4 Date 23 January 2020 ots 1384 268368
: Org. No. Gables Lea, Wiltand Procucedby GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk
— -

Page 144



Street Scene 3 Phoenix House -
Plan Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g -n
Z —_tine M (= 5 Smuany 2030 Tel: 01884 255255 Devon

0rg-No- Glebelands Road, Tiverton Produced by GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

J
o 3 Y'J 3 .qo_is copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292.

Page 145



s1yby aseqeiep pue yybuidos umos

2317 80 °

‘Z6ZZZO00L U

/SN S S R

L]

Page 146

L

glg]l @
- S
5l °| o
-] ®
flz| B
HEL R
< |
Slel| ®
N
IS L
2
g Y
3 o
3
@V
~0
g&
[ ]
g |
£
R EN)
=2
n|e
c (<
S
-
N
o
- 00
& 33
OQO
! 353
gxx
aSOI
N 3
N O @
[ 1 B
N
m<

YN'AOB UOAIPPI MMM :3)ISGIM

I
a
p|w dd9 9X3 uoue
-

o



l;i res 17 3 4
u817 SO 0707 swybu aseqele

‘N

)

R E:;
Bl o
g1z &
gl
21l o
& h
HE
FEES I
H
s o
)
=3
+
1
g
gw
[
Ol
=2
Nls
|2
RN
—~
N
(=)

Page 147

G525ST ¥8810 ‘I3l
1
H

plw dd9 9LX3 UOMAALL ‘aue X|ua
o 8 = asNoH x1uao

¥N"AOB UOASPPIUI MMM 9)SHIM

TIONNOYD LIIYLSIC
UOAS(]




S 11750 @ A4 0 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 255255 Devon
Drg. No. Great Close, Culmstock Producedby GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk  pigrRicT counciL

. Phoenix House =
\! u Street Scene  Plan ¢4 Phoanix Lane, Tiverton Ex1seep IR %

A

Page 148

GREAY CLOSE
- -y
Uimstock L
g&? Sch \
Gi

DD

rown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292.




Plan 42 Phoenix House =
Street Scene Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g-ﬂ—

7 S =
/Z e 1:500 @ Ad e 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 266265 U@<°=

Drg. No. pigh Bullen, Silverton Producad by GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk  pigrrieT couneiL

Page 149



Street Scene Plan 43

Scale 1500 @ Ad

Date 23 January 2020

Org. No. 4 andunvez Place, Bradninch

Progucsdby GMS Unit

Phoenix House =
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g —ﬂ—
Tel: 01884 255255 °0<°=

Website: www.middevon,gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

Page 150



Plan & 4 Phoenix House =
Street Scene Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g —Q

scse  1:1,000 @ A4 Dete 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 256255 °0<°=
Org. No. paadow Lane, Cullompton Producedby GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

TR AL
754

© Crown copyright and database rights 2020, OS Licence 100022292

S A

Page 151



2 @‘:l
UMOs
6uAdod

ue

pp

qele

se
202 swbu o
0

178

ij
f=y
-
g f 5
5| 8
1E »
= o ¢
& = m
3 [{=]
- pe= |
z @
1 1]
g |
& K-S
g 0
: 2
1)
S
~
° H
* [0
Q
5| B
$ln
’ls
213
o5
A
IS
0
0
- 5'3'
$2 22
g. E.,E‘
2.2 ><I
% ok
¥ ::
EN 9(‘
ia d
28 :
3_& 3
a -~
§ S
2 Y,
: -l
b o
< N
.< "0
E- 0
g g
!: ==
F-]
:%
: W
g° PRI
s =
=

Page 152



B

Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Scal . Dat
Z e 11,071 @ A4 © 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 2556255 °°<°=

Org. No. pMountbatten Road, Tiverton Produced by GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

Street Scene Plan 4 Phoenix House g -
id

Q

gy
N
g

Page 153

/

ﬂ\ﬂw\.’\/ _@ Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292.




Street Scene Plan .7

Z Seale  1:1,074 @ A4

Date 23 January 2020

Drg. No. Newcombes Meadow, Crediton

Produced by GMS Unit

Phoenix House =
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g-ﬂ %
Tel: 01884 255255 UQ<°=

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

RS L [ ]

i, —— | Pav

_.ND White Cottage
Play Area
Warkro
Cottage % %
hw % I.ll\llll.lll|||.||ll1||| »
55.7
Newcombes Meadow

CREDITON

Page 154

cw

cH W cw

L]

Priory Cottage

@ Crown copyright and database -mm.—:w 2020. OS Licence ._ESNW

y Tz P " 10 i 9 .




I

sgg.’
g o
o= &
x> | =
(5| g
.@g
z|®
hY)
QO
3
;FQ
Q
g%
I
ols
=2
0n|s
c|<L
S|~
]
o

Page 155

ud
jusoyd

141510 AN'ACH UCAIPDI MMM (3)ISGOM
GSTSST ¥88L0 (9L

A

H

TIONNOD LIINLS

UoA3(

%plw dd9 91 X3 UOHIALL ‘aueT Xjueo
- 9SNoOH X



Street Scene Plan 49

Phoenix House

Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Scdle  1:1,768 @ A4

Date 23 January 2020

Tel: 01884 255255

Dro. No. 014 Park, Tiverton

Produced by GMS Unit

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk

Mid &

Devon

DISTRICY COUNCIL

-~ Play Area

- r TCB

85.0m

EL

Sheltter

153

People's Park

ﬁ-o&: copyright and datab

2

A

ase rights 2020. Licence 100022

e e e~ —

R v |

Page 156



5 Phoenix House =
Street Scene Plan50 Phoenix Lane, Tiverton Ex166pp TR C %

Scele  1:3,505 @ A4 P23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 255265 °Q<°=
Drg. No. paimerston Park Woods, Tiverton| Producedby GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

™ T | ST
AN AN
=W

b

= ——

Page 157



Drg. No. Pegples Park, Crediton Produced by GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

. t Plan! Phoenix House -
\ U Sleet Scene 5! Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX1& 6PP g-n %

. Scale |- Dat
/Z 111,488 @ A4 ° 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 255255 UQ<°=

—

rown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292.

Page 158



Street Scene Plan52 Phoenix House gm n %

Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Scale - Dat
Z 12,334 @ A4 ste 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 266265 UQ<°=

Drg. No. paople’s Park, Tiverton Producedby GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNGIL

TR\ =) B)Y .

Sports Court .0m Pinnex Aliotments
Nursery 5 %

Tiverton Rughy Club

| &7
)
I

dDCETE) (©

L0

Oﬁmgﬁ

826 8\ 1] 0

ays & {ssues
[t} eliguards,

© Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292

o — ~ e s s

Page 159



Street Scene Plan 53 Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Sedle  1:1,000 @ A4 ote 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 255255 °Q<°,_—.—
B9 No. phoenix House, Tiverton Produced by GMS Uit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

Page 160

rown copyright and database rights 2020, OS Licence ScSwer_




—

[
-
(=]
-3
=
(3
=]
=
-
-
(=]
=
-
o
=
Q.
[
-.
-3
_,U
il
c 4
=
e
7]
Pt
"
He
..
o

L
i'ZGZZCOOOl 23uadl
£

@

YYD Z0E' L opos
+Gueld 9UIIS }9341S

NUR SIS &a pasnposg | UOUPID 2AUQ YIBQEZYT USBND g -6yg

020C Atenuer €2 aeq

Page 161

$926ST 8810 ‘I8l
1 ‘aueT] xiuaoyd
asnoH xjusoyd

% p|w dd9 9LX3 uouenlL ‘
-

RN"AOB UOASPPIW MMM :3}ISGOM

TIINNOD LIOMNLSIO
UOAD



Street Scene Plan>~

Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Sedle  1:3 842 @ A4

Date 23 January 2020

Tel: 01884 255255

Org. No. Railway Walk, Tiverton

Producedby GMS Unit

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk

o S

-

#
—] ’
_ [ w_mﬂmﬁ:mﬁm«f 1]
ZAllotments [y
o \.{ e

waellll

» 4
-y \.lw-cr.fﬂ.w‘.lhh

o s /1

>
v

—0

e
.D-m

8

TR /

. 1]
N\ ot b
AR =74
N % //PW
NSNS

N NN
TWO Moors SN /
A Primary a0 ) SN OO 2T
4 : ; ~
Schodl A
7

Crown copyright an

atabase rights 2020.

Mid
Uw<wﬁw

DISTRICT COUNCIL

L |

LR

Licence 1 292.

L W A T




Street Scene Plan56

Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Scale  1:3,287 @ A4

Dste 23 January 2020

Tel: 01884 256255

Drg. No. piver Exe Recreation, Tiverton

Producedby GMS Unit

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk

Mid
U..%%.

DISTRICT COUNCIL

__n - ‘ﬂ “__
\

P

| £
)
\ | Garden Copse

T

Ura;

.’ .
A ParkWood

mmm_o_m Farm

v.
icence 10002229

@nqois n.oaze__. u:..ns_umwm:m:.m,e,..
T rororce= T

Page 163



i .
Street Scene 57 Phoenix House
Plan Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP
z — _1:500@ Ad — 23 Japuary 2020 Tel: 01884 255255 Devon
09 No- School Road, Silverton Producedby GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

\ ]
L
L ® 8
8 g

\

3

H

\

\
I
0,
\ §
Page 164

\ ‘/// \
<y ) L i
~ ﬂ\».., .

OS Licence 10002229

ﬁ-oi: copyright and database rights 2020.

—




Street Scene Plan53 Phoenix House -
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g-ﬁ

Seele  1:1,000 @ A4 Date 23 January 2020 Sot: 01884 256385 °Q<°=
Drg. No. gouthfield Drive, Crediton Producedby GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk  pistrieT couneit

z




Drg. No. gt Andrew Street, Tiverton Progucedby GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

Street Scene Plan 5 Phoenix House -
1 Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g-n
11,000 @ A4 = 2 January 2020 Tel: 01884 255255 °@<°—.-

@ qus:. copyright and database rights 20

*r ri "

Page 166



Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

{5)
g m n Bt

Devon

Tel: 01884 255255

\ Street Scene Plan {0
Z Sele  1:500 @ Ad Date 23 January 2020
- Org. No. g1 { awrence's Green, Crediton | Preduceddy GMS Unit

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

7

ST LAWRENCE'S GREEN

Tk

—
f./;f.U

T

————

Page 167

© Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 10

== ==




N

EIS oy -fag
PV @ 000'L)  opos
19 ueld SUDIS )BdIS

gE
]
2 [ o
g2
[l ES)
2|2
V|
c <
RN,
| S
>
o

Page 168

g529ST 8810 ‘18l
L
H

p|w dd9 91X3 UOMBALL ‘aueT] X|uso
-!.('t'.” - 9SNOH Xiuso

HN'AOB UOASPPIW MMM :9)ISUIM

NNOY AJ1¥LSIA
0ASQ

W
u



N

Street Scene Plan &2

Phoenix House

Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Scale

1:1,000 @ A4

Date 23 January 2020

Tel: 01884 255265

Drg. No. Stoneyford, Cullompton

Produced by GMS Unit

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk

Mid ¥
Devon

DISTRICT COUNCIL

N

L
%, \

>

Play Area A

RIVER DRIVE

© Crown copyright and database ..E_:m 020. OS Licence 100022292.}

I 3 L L | - | — |m

A

1 11 1

I

Page 169



17 80 '020Z S1ybu aseqeiep pue ybirhdod umos) @

‘262220001 8du8d

@

Page 170

HAR

£l °| o

o|l.| ®

Ea"’

2138l »

3 )

22| 8
>3

HEE

5

3 R,

s g

&

i | &

gg
%

o

S|

~g

ol&

2|2

Wl

c|<

S|~

-~ o
[ %)

o

s 23

o go

22 s

Tw =

&l-:l.'.

gn

[4,]

el

3 o

EG!

Y

<

o

3

o«

o

<

=

=

TFINNOD LOIHLSIC
UoA3(Q

p|w dd9 91X UoMBA|L ‘eueT X|
” - 9SNOH Xiua







Street Scene Plan (s

Date 23 January 2020

z sclle  {:1,062 @ Ad
Drg. No. 1igcombe Railway Walk, Tiverton | Froduced by GMS Unit

Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Mid
U._w<wﬁw

DISTRICT COUNCIL

Tel: 01884 255255
Website: www.middevon.gov.uk

3

P——

B =

l‘\“lllnla.rl\‘
ﬁ ard View

C X

— e -

3

s
_ P

s 75.4m
FB

\
N
Page 172

ganna.maswmzm_zwmowo.0mrmao=no=cc=-w.
£ A I




Street Scene Plan g Phoenix House “
&b Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g —ﬂ—
z Seale  1:1,000 @ A4 Date 23 January 2020 Tel: 01384 255255 U°<°=
> Org-No. Tree Field, Tiverton Procucedby GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk  pigrricT couneiL
[ 51

Page 173




Street Scene

Plan p7

Seale -1 352 @ A4

Date 23 January 2020

Org. Ho. victoria Close, Willand

Produced by GMS Unit

Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Tel: 01884 255255
Website: www.middevon.gov.uk

Mid
U..w<w¥w

DISTRICT COUNCIL

GREENWOOD~—

> A.

N b
% o
&
£
4
g )
Recreation Ground &%,
o o 7
A
8 O(Om.m
£y ®
£
~
% &
Play Area Q
v, Daveleigh
% QAV
[y Moor
3 Down
L4 B ﬁﬁmmd
o) £ X
o -
Area
(9]
g
© Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence
P oA O ——_—\. N - — = . L~ . W A 4 -

Page 174



Drg. No. sictoria Crescent, Crediton Produced by GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

Plan % Phoenix House =
Street Scene Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g —G—
z Scsle  1:500 @ A4 bete 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 255255 U@<°=

|

Page 175



—

Phoenix House -
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g—a—

Street Scene Plané9
Z Scale  :1 635 @ A4 Date 93 January 2020
2 Drg. No. Wast.Exe Recreation Ground, Tiverton | Produced by GMS Unit

Tel: 01884 266255 °Q<°=

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

il ? I —

WELLBRO

PH

Page 176

AT
3 ﬂ_.______z—
| -

(e

© Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292.

VA, . ——— .




Street Scene Ppian 70

.

A
Gk »@
/AQ «ﬁv

o&x
ﬁw\
"/ CR <4
NP AL
PN AYd'a\ =
A © Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 10012225 B

Page 177




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 179



O\ Street Scene Plan 72 Phoenix House .
\ Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g -A—
z \ Sesle  1-250 @ A4 Date 23 January 2020 Tel: 01684 265265 °Q<°—.—

Drg. No. Ash Drive, Cullompton Producedby GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

; © Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292.]

Page 180



Street Sce . Phoenix House . e
\ l/ cene Plan 73 Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g—ﬁ_
/z Scde  1:500 @ Ad Dete 23 january 2020 Tel: 01884 255255 UQ<°—.—

i Drg. No. Ashley Rise, Tiverton Produced by SMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL
\ hq L — _ %
' )
J ———
T

——

COLLIEPRIEST VIEW

Il

=

@ Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292,

ra T o —

Page 181



Street Sc Plan 7 Phoenix House -l e
t che + Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g-ﬂ— i
z Scale  1-750 @ A4 Date 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 266265 UQ<°=

Drg. No- Banksia Close, Tiverton Producedby GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk  pisTRICT COUNCIL

rown copyright and database rights 2020, Licence 100022292.
= F — — N S—— = —— 4

Page 182




Street Scene v_m:\wm

Phoenix House -
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g—a_

Scale

1:750 @ A4

Date 23 January 2020

Tel: 01884 255255 °o<°=

Drg. No.  Barnfield, Crediton

Produced by GMS Unit

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

Page 183

_m Crown copyright and databasa rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292

Sth - LY e




DISTRICT COUNCIL

Street Scene Plan 7 Phoenix House .
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g —ﬂ—
z Sesle 1750 @ Ad Oate 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 255255 °Q<°—.—
O No- gams Close, Bradninch Producedby GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk

Page 184

S i=gn
L O L\x/maw -
iEneaen

—
R




Street Scene Plan 77

&)

Phoenix House =g Y
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g-ﬂ—

Seale  1:750 @ A4

Date 23 January 2020

Drg. No. g ckland Close, Cullompton

Produced by GMS Unit

Tel: 01884 255255 °0<°=

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

e Fr e F

© Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292.

Page 185



Page 186



Street Scene Plan 79

Date 23 January 2020

z Sedle  1:500 @ A4
Drg.No. Churchlands, Bow

™’

Producedby GMS Unit

Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Tel: 01884 255255 —UQ<°=

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

B

PR

T

el

Ll ——

24

Y

\TER PARK

P12

|
]
Page 187

—@ Crown copyright and database rights 2020. icence 100022292.
p— X 1  — X T




Street Scene Plan 30 Phoenix House = &
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g —A_
Sedle 1:500 @ A4 Date 23 January 2020
—‘ Tel: 01884 255255 UQ<°=

Drg. No. cgles Mead, Tiverton Produced by GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk  p1sTRICT COUNCIL

Page 188




|.% ueld dUIIS }3d1)S

Page 189

plw dd9 SLX3 UOMOALL ‘eueT Xjueoyd
“ 9SNOH X|Usoyd

TONNOD LO1HLSICO )In'AOﬂ UOA 1 ]
LUOAD 52552 78810 ‘1oL



N

Street Scene Plan <2

Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Scale  1:500 @ A4

Ot 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 255255

Drg.No. Comlands, Sampford Peverell

Producedby GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk

3
5o

Mid &
Devon

DISTRICT COUNCIL

—

"

Playground

© Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292.

T e =

Page 190



N €3 Phoenix House -
Street Scene Plan Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX1& 6PP g-g
z Seale  1:1,093 @ A4 Pete 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 256255 U@<°=

Drg. No. Cotteylands/Cameron Close, Tiverton| Produced by GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

Page 191



/ Street Scene

Plan 3 4

Date 23 January 2020

z Sede  1-500 @ Ad

Drg. No. cudmore Park, Tiverton Producsd by GMS Unit

Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Tel: 01884 255255
Website: www.middevon.gov.uk

Mid
th%w

DISTRICT COUNCIL

Page 192



N

Street Scene Plan §5

Scale  1:500 @ A4

Date 23 January 2020

Org.No.  cyim Valley Way, Uffcuime

Produced by GMS Unit

Phoenix House = ,
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g -n
Tel: 01884 255265 UQ<°—.—

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

CAUMONT CLOSE

Page 193






Street Scene Plan &7 Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g-ﬂ—
, z 1500 @ A4 % 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 255255 U@<°=

019 Mo Ellerhayes, Hele Produced by GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

— lll

© Crown noB:.u_: m:; database :.u_:a 020, O _..nn___ow 100022292,

Page 195







Street Scene Plan 39

Date 23 January 2020

Z Seale  1:500 @ A4

Ovg. Ho. Fernworthy, Copplestone

Produced by GMS Unit

Phoenix House

35y
- oy e
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g-ﬁ— s

Tel: 01884 256256

Devon

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

Licence 100022292,

Crown copyright and database rights 2020.

Page 197



Scale - Date
Z 1:500 @ A4 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 255255 Uw<°=
Org.No.  Fyida Crescent, Crediton Produced by GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

Oy Phoenix House -
ﬁ/ Street Scene  Plan 90 Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g-ﬂ— %

Page 198




Street Scene  Plan |

Phoenix House -
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX156 6PP g-a %

z Scale  1.750 @ A4 Date 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 255255 °0<°=
— Drg.No. Glebelands, Cheriton Bishop | Producedby GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL
> 7
Waddington Hillview
House
Hillside
House

&L

SO
&>

Page 199

rown copyright and databass rights 2020. OS Licence ._mcmmuwum.m

S—




\ / Street Scene Plan g2

N

Sede  1:500 @ A4

Dsle 23 January 2020

Drg. No. Godfreys Garden, Bow

Producedby GMS Unit

Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Tel: 01884 255255
Website: www.middevon.gov.uk

Mid&
Devon

DISTRICT COUNCIL

Page 200




N

Street Scene Plan 93

Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Seale  1:500 @ A4

Date 93 January 2020

Tel: 01884 255255

Drg. No. Greenaway, Morchard Bishop

Producedby GMS Unit

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk

Devon

DISTRICT COUNCIL

T

]
i

oo, e —

Play

24

—

N

N

33

GREENAWAY

14

® Crown copyright and database rights

I B 1 - — | B 1 LR

Page 201



N

Street Scene Plan 94 Phoenix House = E e
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP - il
Scale  1.750 @ A4 Date 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 255255 °°<°=
Drg.No. Greenway, Crediton Producedby GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

{7

WEST TOWN

gqois copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292.

Page 202



Street Scene Plang5
z Scale  4-500 @ A4 Date 23 January 2020
( Org. No. Halsbury Road, Tiverton Produced by GMS Unit

Phoenix House —
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g—g %
Tel: 01884 266255 °0<°=

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

|
\
Page 203

O ABNESTYH

e

|© Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292,

—




Street Scene Plan 76

S 1750 @ A4

Dste 23 January 2020

Org-No.  Hapitt Close, Willand

Proguced by GMS Unit

Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Tel: 01884 255255
Website: www.middevon.gov.uk

Mid
Uh<wﬁw

DISTRICT COUNCIL

© Crown copyright and database rights 2020. ©S

A N il o

Page 204



E

Street Scene Pplan 97

Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Sede  1:500 @ A4

Date 23 January 2020

Drg. No.  Hawthome Road, Tiverton

Produced by GMS Unit

Tel: 01884 256255 °Q<°,.—.-

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

T

i .

ROMANS WAY

T L7

Page 205

> —— | A

@ Crown copyright and databass rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292,

et L W Y 1 11



iE| 2
g o
Flzg| &
E%gt
-
59 8
g
g7 ®
gl | =
g o
L= 3
g
= NQ
cQ
X
AR
HE
ol|&
=2
7
c (<
S |8
~
N
[==]
3 33
(1]
! 33
o X X
& §F
N 3 e
g‘l @
~ [ ]
(4,
[4,]

144510 HN"AOB UOAIPPIW MMM :3)ISTIM

uoA3(g
% p|w ddo 9LX3 uoMaAlL ‘o

Page 206



Street Scene Plan 99

Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Seale  1:500 @ A4

Date 23 January 2020

Tel: 01884 255255 °Q<°=

Org. No. Haymans Green, Cullompton

Produced by GMS Unit

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

k 1

® Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292.

——t X - = X - —_i T

Page 207



N o0 Phoenix House A
m/ Street Scene Plan/ Phoenix Lane, Tiverton Ex16 6P W1l B2

z \ Sale  1:500 @ A4 Owe 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 255255 UQ<°=

Org. No. Headweir Road, Cullompton Producedby GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

Page 208



aseqejep pue 1yhuhkdod umosy @

@

el 2
'] o
z(z] B
& | 3
(5| @
0| o
alzl 3
O o
c
)
2 T
s 3
[S)
gé-?
g |
g@
[ A
O|l®
=2
7R R
c|<
2N
= |
N
Q

Page 209

s+ TO
ol ==
o o 0
o S8
P ) -
® 0 XX
(=]

-
s> b3
EX 35
ES ‘_'o
2o =
2" 2
) o
P 3
=
Q
o)
<
=
=

THHONNOD 1J1H¥LSIQ
UOAS(]
e plw dd9 81X3
“‘.g!" ]




\// Street Scene Pplani02

Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Seale  1:500 @ A4

Dste 23 January 2020

Tel: 01884 255255

Drg-No. | apford Play Area Produced by GMS Unit

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

Piaying Field

L | 1 l— r!ll/_l

N

Page 210

Chwreh of St Thomas

of Canterbury

\,li\\\\
Hﬁﬁ m
|

1

Eﬁﬁfﬂf

© Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence ,_oaommumﬂ_\




Street Scene Pplan |03

Phoenix House =
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g-ﬂ

Sesle  1:500 @ A4

Date 23 January 2020

Tel: 01884 255266 c¢<°—.—

Org. No. | arks Drive, Cullompton

Producedby GMS Unit

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

Play

5 o

Ps

BULLFINGH c108%

\\\\\\\“

ul
i
Page 211

© Crown copyright and database rights 2

DA .




Street Scene pjan oL+
z Sede  1:500 @ A4 Date 23 January 2020
Org. No. 1 inden Road, Culompton Produced by GMS Unit

Phoenix House =
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g —ﬂ—

Tel: 01884 255255 UQ<°—.—

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

N

Page 212



Org- No. | ogan Way, Hemyock Produced by GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk  pisrrict couneiL

Street Scene P! Phoenix House -
_ S an 163 Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g—ﬂ—

Z - TS0 @ A oo _23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 256255 °Q<°—.-
J

!’ ..., @.J\l’ ATANAN
Q —zw ~_~.o. mml_%mu:uw uoeawmnmN.

© Crown no_mfmar. and database rig
T g = — rmm =" ™I

Page 213




Street Scene Plan j0b Phoenix House g- g %

Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

/z 17500 At Oete 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 255255 °0<°—.-

Drg. No. Lords Meadow, Crediton Produced by mgm c=mn E@—QW#Q“ si.amﬂﬂ@<°=.ﬂo<.=—n DISTRICT COUNCIL

A

Ppg Sta
F8

Foothalf Ground

;. \O\\

© Crown ooeﬁ_n—z u:. .29.53 :u_:u 2020. OS Licence 100022292. _
"

Page 214




Street Scene Plan|c7 Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Z Sele  1:750 @ A4 Ot 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 2656255 °Q<°.=

Drg. No. | ords Meadow Skate Park, Crediton | Produced by GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

P

and database rights 2020. OS Licence &eewmmwm.m

© Crown copyright
) T —— — 1

kY N N

Page 215



Phoenix House =
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g -ﬁ—

Tel: 01884 255255 °0<°=

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

Street Scene Plan jog
z Scale 11 540 @ Ad Date 93 January 2020
Drg-No. ) ords Meadow, Crediton Producedbty GMS Unit

ot

dz.o

el
A\

© Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292.

—

Page 216



e 10 Phoenix House =
\ Street Scene Plan /05 Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g—ﬂ— %
/z Seale  1:500 @ A4 Date 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 255255 °0<°=
)

Org. No.  pallow Court, Willand Producedby GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

Page 217



Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

/z = 150a M Dete 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 2556255 UQ<°=

Org. No. Millhayes, Hemyock Produced by GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

\ i Street Scene Planjo Phoenix House

=

Page 218



Street Scene Plan i

Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Scale  1:750 @ A4

Date 23 January 2020

Tel: 01884 255255

Org. No. New Buildings, Sandford

Producedby GMS Unit

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk

Midz
Devon

DISTRICT COUNCIL

Long Ridge

2

TCcB

Q:

Goslings

Aotearoa

Rogues

Pepperiake

0
NN

Merryfield ©® Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292.

A

—

Page 219



mnqmmn Scene Plan |

Scile  1:500 @ A4 Date 23 January 2020

Dr9. M. Orchard Leigh, Tiverton Produced by GMS Unit

Phoenix House

Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Tel: 01884 255255

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk

Mid
U..ﬂ%w

DISTRICT COUNCIL

—ﬂ-oi: copyright and database rights

T005557)

—_—

Page 220



Plan 113 Phoenix House a :
\ Street Scene Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g-ﬂ— R
/Z Sedle  {:1,000 @ A4 Dete 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 265256 UQ<°—.—

Drg-No.  Orchard Way, Willand Produced by GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk  pigtrict councit

Page 221




ri +I ya - A S r i
2N SO 0707 sy aseqeiep pue Jybuldods umosy @
&

@

Page 222

gl gl @
; =
gl " 3
—
glx] =~
28| O
s @l Q
S5 8
7% ®
-
3 R
=3
g g
.y

g| 8
IS
sf_
[l
2|2
[
C|<
2|
Lol | =]

N

f]

- U o
2s 33
u.-- 8g
%2 33
O_g » X
s> 53
n 3 =
ig 8
35 2°
=& <
s s
@ o
§ =
3 m
Q x
P >
= o

)
il 0

| ]|

s



Street Scene Plan 115 Phoenix House -
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g-ﬂ—

sede  1:500 @ A4 Oate 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 265255 UQ<°=
Drg.No.  pahfields, Uffculme Produced by GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

Page 223

© Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292,

pan

A —




o " i)
Plan i1 Phoenix House - 0 Voo
Street Scene ! mv Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g—g K ddee
z Sclle 1750 @ Ad Dste 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 256256 Devon
! i DISTRICT COUNCIL

Drg-No.  pippins Field, Uffculme Producedby GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk

Page 224



Street Scene Plan //'7 Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP
z —— 0@ 25 Januany;2020 Tel: 01884 255265 UQ<°=

Drg. No. pioydal Road, Cullompton Producedby GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNGIL

Page 225



. Plan Phoenix House -
\. SHESEScene g Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g-ﬂ_ %

é Scale 1500 @ A4 Date 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 255256 U°<°=

Org.No. primrose Close, Tiverton Producedby GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

=N

_

o
)
.
/

g m
ey W ﬁ

1 — © Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292.
a .I~| — ] | ! —Uw c £ . < Q & 4 i r 4




Street Scene Plan |19

Seale  1:750 @ A4

Date 23 January 2020

Phoenix House -
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g—ﬂ %
Tel: 01884 256266 °Q<°=

Org.No. priory Road, Tiverton

Producedby GMS Unit

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

N——"

Play Area

vAl

i

L

%
©

A2

© Crown copyright and database rights 2020, OS Licence 1 i
L — — 1 e — P T— —

Page 227



Street Scene Plan)zo Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

z Scale  1-1,000 @ A4 Date 93 January 2020 Tel: 01884 255255
Drg-No.  pyddington Play Area Producedby GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk

Devon

DISTRICT COUNCIL

203.2m

CHAPEL CROSS

o —

\//!lﬂi}l’l

—@ Crown copyright and database rights 2020. O

Summeriea

icence 100022292

2

.
£

LY

Page 228



2 Phoenix House 2
Street Scene Plan | Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g—ﬂ— e

| . —
z Sele  1:500 @ A4 ® 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 255255 °Q<°—.—

Org.No.  yeen Elizabeth Drive, Crediton| Prodused by GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

Page 229

@ Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292,

. = 5 -




Scal N Dat i
* 1:500 @ A4 ° 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 255255 °Q<°=

Dr9.No. Queensway, Tiverton Producedby GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk  pisrrier couneit

< Phoenix House =
Q Street Scene Piani22 Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g-ﬂ— %

Page 230




, Phoenix House -
Street Scene Plan (23 Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g-ﬂ- %
Z_ sesle 1:1,000 @ A4 bste 0§ February 2020 ol GARREESISS Devon

Drg. NoRecreation Ground, Willand | Producedby GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk  pistRicT couneiL

Page 231



N

S| g
Em
D=
\‘
3 (8
_§©
gl’
3
g

Bld 3uads 193AS

H21 u

Page 232

4sia %n-A0B uoAIpPI
q 652GSZ ¥88L0 (191

plw dd9 91X3 UOMBALL ‘auer] Xiusoyd
n asNoH Xiuaoyd

%



z Sele  1:500 @ Ad Dste 23 January 2020

Phoenix House

Street Scene Plan 1es Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Mid
U._w<wﬁw

DISTRICT COUNCIL

Tel: 01884 255255
Website: www.middevon.gov.uk

Org. No. giskin Chase, Cullompton Producedby GMS Unit

P

L]

Play

Area

rown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292,

Y LT

Page 233



tr N Phoenix House
} Street Scene Plan | 26 Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

/E Sede  1:500 @ A4 Dete 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 255255 UQ<°=

Drg.-No.  gouth View, Willand Produced by GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

v

N /J =

-~ \
%& Q

7 - q .
& \w 7 © Crown copyright and database rights 2020. icence 101022292.
.// &\ ?. . e .mv< 2 - S u__. L Y - =

Page 234



\ l/ Street Scene Plan 23

N

Phoenix House =
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g —H—

Seale  1:500 @ A4

Dat= 23 January 2020

Tel: 01884 255265 °°<°=

Org.No.  gpencer Drive, Tiverton

Producedby GMS Unit

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

Page 235

ight and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292.

© Crown copyr
y o o 7 v y — T =




N

Street Scene Plan 2%

Phoenix House -
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g —ﬂ—

Sedle  1:500 @ A4 Date 23 January 2020

Drg. No. gpindlebury Road, Cullompton | Producedby GMS Unit

Tel: 01884 256255 UQ<°=

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

X

L )

© Crown copyright and database rights 2020. O Licence 100022292,

_ ™= - am— " =

Page 236



Street Scene Plan 29

Seale  1:500 @ A4

Date 23 January 2020

Drg- No. spinning Path Gardens, Crediton

Produced by GMS Unit

Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Tel: 01884 255256 UQ<°=

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

Page 237



Street Scene Plan 130

Sedle  1:500 @ A4

Date 23 January 2020

Drg.No. g¢ Martins Close, Bow

Produced by GMS Unit

Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Tel: 01884 255255
Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

203

q

Page 238




Street Scene Plan |3}

Phoenix House -
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g-ﬂ—

Seale  1:500 @ A4

Date 23 January 2020

Tel: 01884 255255 UQ<°—.—

Drg. No. Starkey Close, Tiverton

Prodused by GMS Unit

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

1

i

rown copyright and database rights 2020. Licence 100022292.]

W s . rAN y 4 . 4 Y - -

Page 239



Street Scene 132, Phoenix House =
Plan 15 Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g —ﬁ—
Z — _THan 0 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 255256 °°<°=

Drg.No. starlings Roost, Cullompton Preduced by GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

\

OO

ll.ll.ll.lf\

Page 240

2

SN A

e

_© nqoﬂﬂ_ copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 10002

B




Street Scene Plani3 Phoenix House =
3 Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g-n
Scale  1-750 @ A4 Date 23 January 2020 Tol: 01884 256255 UQ<°—.—

Drg. No- Station Rd/Bray Close, Burlescombe | Produced by GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

Page 241




VO O0SLL  omss
uads j9aNs

U SINO 4q pasnpaig auojsajddon
enuer ¢z b

JINA0 LO1N1$10 AN"AOB UOASDPPILI MMM :3)SAIM
UoAa(g §5295Z p88L0 191

@

helueld 9

pl w dd9 91X3 UOMAAIL ‘aueT XIuaoyd
= asnoH xiuaoyd



Drg. Mo. Tiverton Adventure Playground | Producedby GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk  pisrrier counciL

£ - Phoenix House -
Street Scene Plan 135 Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP id %
Z scde 11 066 @ A4 Date 23 January 2020 Tl U8 SATEEES UQ<° 1)
. 4

Page 243



Phoenix House

Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Tel: 01884 255255

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk

Mid
Uw<w¥w

DISTRICT COUNCIL

]

Street Scene Plan 136
Z K Scsle  1:500 @ A4 Date 23 January 2020
- Drg. No. yown Barton, Sandford Progucedby GMS Unit
—
7

\/ o

- /W

Crown copyright and database rights 0. OS Licence 100022292

Page 244



Page 245



Phoenix House

Street Scene Plan 133 Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Devon

DISTRICT COUNCIL

Scale  1:500 @ A4 Date 23 January 2020

Producedby GMS Unit

Tel: 01884 255255
Website: www.middevon.gov.uk

Drg. No. rickey Close, Tiverton

Page 246



. i%)
Street Scene Plan 39 ERCenic Johae: 1] 2l
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP 10 &
Scal - Dat ¢
Z e 1750 @ Ad e 23 January 2020 Thte 01520 JEETEE °0<°
Drg.No.  Tyckers Meadow, Crediton Producedby GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

Page 247




Street Scene Plan 146

Phoenix House e
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g —A&

Sesle 1750 @ Ad

Date 23 January 2020

Tel: 01884 255255 °Q<°=

Drg. Ne. Tyfty Park, Cullompton

Produced by GMS Unit

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

4

= /C

e

——T]

o~
~

s [

o
-

9 Crown copyright and database rights 2020. Licence 1900

- . . . —

Page 248



B)

Street Scene Plan /4] Phoenix House = o uts
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g—n i i
Z sl 1:750 @ A4 Date 23 January 2020 o8 01504 26675E Devon

Org.No.  victoria Close, Willand Producedby GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

© Crown copyright and database rights 2020, OS Licence
[or T p— —— < — —

Page 249



Street Scene Plan 14 Phoenix House P
/ bl Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g_a—

2\ Scale  1:500 @ A4 Dete 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 255256 °Q<°=

Dr9. No- - walnut Drive, Crediton Produced by GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNGIL

© Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292,

i

Page 250



Street Scene Plan i4+3

Phoenix House -
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g —&

Scale  1:500 @ Ad

Date 23 January 2020

Tel: 01884 2556255 °m<°=

Drg. No. water Meadow, Cullompton

Producedby GMS Unit

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

%& L

Page 251

—ﬂ@ Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292.




x Street Scene Plan 1./

Date 23 January 2020

z scsle 1500 @ Ad
Drg-No.  Waylands Road, Tiverton

Producedby GMS Unit

Phoenix House =
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g —A_
Tel: 01884 255255 UQ<°=

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

—~J

Iy

<y

g
40

rown copyright and database rights . icence 1

.‘r 1 F.\ s h;“-|b.|.‘f||q v o s 72 7 7

Page 252



Street Scene Plan (45

Sedle  1:750 @ Ad

Date 23 January 2020

Drg. No. West-Exe Recreation Ground & Pool,
Tiverton

Produced by GMS Unit

Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Tel: 01884 255255 °Q<°=

Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

Westexe

rown copyright and databass rights 2020. OS Licence 100022292.)

-1

Page 253



Street Scene Plan /46

Sesle  1:1,000 @ A4

Date 23 January 2020

Drg.No.  wilcombe, Tiverton

Produced by GMS Unit

Phoenix House
Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP

Tel: 01884 255255
Website: www.middevon.gov.uk

/

1]

|

1

ﬂ

J

=

1 g&m(lw
AL

/ﬂw “1 A /_; L |
uﬁ AN




Street Scene Plan /47 Phoenix House gm ﬂ— %

Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX18 6PP

z Scsle  4:500 @ Ad Dets 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 265255 U@<°=

Drg.No.  worcester Crescent, Willand | Producedby GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

Vi %\/V ._H
J

rown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence 1090
WY ra ra ré -

Jaycroft

L
;

- ‘@
o
O

Page 255




Street Scene Plans j4y Phoenix House - ,
* Phoenix Lane, Tiverton EX16 6PP g —ﬂ_ 3

Scal . Dat
cale  1:500 @ Ad ®® 23 January 2020 Tel: 01884 255255 °Q<°=

Drg. No. Tanners Close/Clover Drive, Cullompton | Produced by GMS Unit Website: www.middevon.gov.uk DISTRICT COUNCIL

© Crown copyright and database rights 2020. OS Licence ,_ooonnnwn._.
11

T — DA A Y T




Street Scene Plan /49




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 7.

ENVIRONMENT POLICY DEVELOPMENT GROUP
10™ MARCH 2020

CLIMATE CHANGE ADVISORY GROUP

Cabinet Member(s): Clir Elizabeth Wainwright, Cabinet Member for Climate
Change; ClIr Bob Deed, the Leader of the Council

Responsible Officer: Kathryn Tebbey, Head of Legal (Monitoring Officer)
Reason for Report: in light of Clir Wainwright’'s appointment to the Cabinet, to
consider whether to recommend to Cabinet the creation of a Climate Change
Advisory Group in lieu of the Environment PDG’s Net Zero Working Group.
RECOMMENDATION: that
1 it be Recommended to Cabinet that -

(a) a Climate Change Advisory Group be established;

(b) the membership of the Group comprise eight Members - 3

Conservative, 2 Liberal Democrat, 2 Independent and 1 Green (not

politically balanced); and

(c) the terms of reference be finalised by the Group, unless the Cabinet
wishes to set the general terms in line with those in this report; and

2 it be Resolved that in the event that Cabinet agrees to establish a
Climate Change Advisory Group, that the Net Zero Working Group be
dissolved.

Financial Implications: there is no specific budget for discrete climate change
projects at the moment. However, cabinet has indicated their intention to review the
capital budget early in the next financial year with a view to establishing how the
council’'s investment programme can better reflect the emerging Corporate Plan
(2020-24) including ambitions on reducing Carbon emissions. In terms of meetings,
the new CCAG would meet on a frequency as defined by the group itself.

Budget and Policy Framework: See above.

Legal Implications: As set out in this report.

Risk Assessment: A co-ordinated approach to Climate Change will greatly assist
the Council to as a whole to meet corporate plan and other policy objectives. It will
underpin the Council’s climate emergency declaration.

Equality Impact Assessment: None directly arising. As with any work of the
Council, equalities issues should be at the heart of all proposals and decision-

making.

Relationship to Corporate Plan: The proposed recommendations would create an
advisory group on an issue central to the emerging Corporate Plan (2020-24).

Cli Ch Advi G
V1|mate ange Advisory Group Page 259



Impact on Climate Change: The proposed recommendations would create an
advisory group on an issue central to the emerging Corporate Plan (2020-24). The
group will be able to advise Cabinet on how best to achieve the Council’s
commitments with regard to the Devon Climate Declaration agreed by the Council in
June 2019 — as well as helping to shape policy to go through appropriate PDGs
before feeding into Cabinet.

1.0

1.1

1.2

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

A&l

Introduction/Background

CliIr Elizabeth Wainwright has been appointed to Cabinet with the portfolio for
Climate Change. Consequently, she cannot continue to sit on the
Environment PDG. Whilst Clir Jo Norton has taken her place, some thought
has been given to Clir Wainwright's particular interest in and portfolio
responsibility for Climate Change — and how she might continue to facilitate
and enable policy development whilst being a member of the Cabinet.

It must also be remembered that the Environment PDG has created a Net
Zero Working Group which meets informally. Again, Clir Wainwright can no
longer sit on that working group.

Options

Clir Wainwright would like to continue with work on climate change beyond
the day-to-day workings of a Cabinet member. Whilst this can be done
informally by liaising with officers and members, it would be good to give
some specific forum.

Whilst the current arrangements could continue unchanged and Clir
Wainwright works separately on her portfolio work, Members might consider
that it would be useful to join up this work in a suitable forum. On a similar
basis, the Planning Policy Advisory Group was established in 2011 to be such
a forum.

A Climate Change Advisory Group could perform a similar role whether
through advising Cabinet, gathering information or hearing evidence and
ideas. It could also work with officers to develop cohesive plans to reduce the
environmental impact of Council services and help devise strategies,
initiatives and identify opportunities. Any policy or decision would still come
up through the Environment PDG in the usual way and then on to Cabinet.
Whilst it would not meet in public, the outcomes/output would, if requiring a
decision, be through the PDG, Cabinet and, in some cases, the Council. This
would ensure openness and transparency at the key decision points.

The terms of reference could be left quite loose to enable the Group to
respond to the evolving climate change debate. For example, the terms could
be along the following lines:

e To gather information, ideas and evidence to inform the Council’s
response to climate change, including meeting, as appropriate, with
various individuals, organisations, communities and stakeholders

Climate Change Advisory Group Page 260



2.5

2.6

3.0

3.1

e To work with officers in devising actions, initiatives, strategies and
policies to mitigate climate change and accordingly make
recommendations to Cabinet (via the PDGs where appropriate)

e To identify challenges and opportunities for the Council in meeting the
terms of the Devon Climate Declaration adopted on 26t June 2019.

The Environment PDG, if minded to recommend a Climate Change Advisory
Group, could leave the terms of reference and membership numbers to the
Cabinet to decide. It could be subject to a schedule of meetings, but might
better be left to meet on a ‘need to meet’ basis.

Unless the membership of the Climate Change Advisory Group is set at 12
members, applying the political balance rules would mean that no Green
councillor would have a seat on the Group. A Group of 12 members seems
unnecessarily large. Therefore, it is recommended that the membership be 8
councillors, but that the group is not politically-balanced. However, to ensure
that all political groups have a presence, it is suggested that the 8 Members
are — 3 Conservative, 2 Liberal Democrat, 2 Independent and 1 Green.

Consequences

If Members of the Environment PDG agree to recommend that a Climate
Change Advisory Group is established and Cabinet agrees, it would seem
sensible to re-consider the continued value of the Net Zero Working Group.
With the risk of duplication of work and effort, it is suggested that the
Environment PDG might choose to dissolve the Working Group and a
recommendation is made for that purpose.

Contact for more Information: Kathryn Tebbey, Head of Legal (Monitoring
Officer) (01884) 234210 ktebbey@middevon.gov.uk

Circulation of the Report: Cabinet Member; Chairman of Environment PDG;
Leadership Team

List of Background Papers: None.

A&l

Climate Change Advisory Group Page 261


mailto:ktebbey@middevon.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8.

HOMES POLICY DEVELOPMENT GROUP
17 MARCH 2020

HOUSING SERVICE CAR PARK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Cabinet Member(s): Councillor Simon Clist, Cabinet Member for Housing
Responsible Officer: Mrs Claire Fry, Group Manager for Housing Services

Reason for Report: The Housing Service Car Park Management Policy requires
review by virtue of time bar

RECOMMENDATION:

1 That the Homes Policy Development Group (PDG) agrees to the
proposed changes set out in the tracked policy

2 That the PDG recommends to Cabinet that the Policy be adopted as
amended

Financial Implications: The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is ring fenced and
subject to specific financial controls.

Budget and Policy Framework: The situation relating to car parking is complicated.
The Housing Service owns some car parks and others are the responsibility of the
General Fund. In addition, permit parking arrangements have been introduced on
some, but not all, estates.

The Neighbourhood Team manages car parking on housing estates and there is a
staffing budget within the HRA to ensure that this is adequately resourced. The
Neighbourhood team is currently working on a project to document all the different
arrangements which exist with regard to each car park on the Housing estate,
together with the rights of those who have exercised their right to buy. This policy
has been in use for several years and serves to ensure consistency of approach.
The review is timely because it allows for reference to virtual permits, which are now
issued by Streetscene instead of paper permits.

The provision of permit parking does yield a small income but this is negligible when
compared to the resources required to manage car parking issues, which may
sometimes be very emotive and therefore very time consuming for Officers.

Legal Implications: The tenancy agreement defines the Council’s relationship with
tenants and sets out the rights and responsibilities of both parties. There is a section
within the standard agreement which sets out the position with regard to vehicles
and parking. Other residents may park on our estates and this can be more difficult
to manage especially if the Council does not have a legal relationship with those
people.

Risk Assessment: Car parking issues can be highly emotive and it is important to
ensure that these are managed fairly in a consistent manner to avoid giving cause
for complaint that one resident has been treated more or less favourably than any
other.

MDDC Report Housing Service Car Park M t Pqtt
s eport Housing Service Car Park Managemen T—T%.@e 263



Equality Impact Assessment:. The Tenant Involvement and Empowerment
Standard contains a specific expectation that registered providers of social housing
such as the Council shall demonstrate how they respond to tenant’s needs in the
way they provide services and communicate with tenants. The Housing Service
requests diversity data from tenants to enable compliance to be monitored and
makes a note of any communication needs relating to residents living in other
housing tenures if they notify Officers about this.

The use of a policy helps to ensure that service delivery is consistent and fair.

Officers will undertake home visits if someone is unable to come into the office to
discuss an issue.

Relationship to Corporate Plan: The Housing estate must be managed efficiently
and effectively and the new Corporate Plan also includes themes relating to
community and environment which are relevant to this policy.

Impact on Climate Change: The Housing Service has actively invested in energy
efficiency; extensive use of solar PV and air source heat pumps already exists. The
ongoing circa £170M 30 year maintenance programme has a significant focus on
ensuring energy efficiency. Where sustainable options are available they are
utilised; however, it is acknowledged that where there is a significant cost differential
that plays heavily in the choices made.

We recognise that the provision of sustainable communities is important. As part of
our commitment to meeting the provisions of the Tenant Involvement and
Empowerment Standard within the Regulatory Framework for Social Housing, the
Council offers a menu of involvement, which provides opportunities for tenants to get
involved in service delivery. Tenants scrutinise the work of the Service and are also
involved in the development of our newsletter which is published periodically. We
use this and social media to promote sustainability and therefore publish information
relating to a variety of topics including fuel efficiency, recycling and healthy living.

Officers sometimes have to respond to emergencies such as those associated those
arising from serious incidents of anti-social behaviour. In such cases, safeguarding
concerns will take priority in order to minimise risk and it is accepted that the ability
to manage such issues effectively may have an environmental impact which would
not occur if work can be planned in advance and managed in a more co-ordinated
way.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 The Council is committed to improving the Housing Service and having an
effective car park management policy enables staff to refer to this for
guidance on the best course of action under the circumstances. Reference to
the policy should ensure that all cases are treated consistently although the
policy does offer some discretion to enable reasonable adjustments to be
made where necessary.

1.2  This policy identifies the approach of the Housing Service to managing car
parks and other parking issues on our estates.

\I\;I?I)Z)g)c Report Housing Service Car Park Managempgg% 264



1.3

1.4

1.5

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.5

2.4

2.5

2.6

V3.8

The existing policy has been in use since it was adopted in 2011. Following a
review, a number of amendments have been suggested. These changes
have been included on the policy document contained within Appendix 1 and
are shown as tracked changes for ease of reference. The tracked changes
have affected the formatting of the document. Once the final draft has been
agreed, it will be retyped and properly formatted.

The Council’s standard tenancy agreement contains a section which relates to
the tenant’s obligations relating to vehicles and parking. Any enforcement
action initiated in response to a breach of relevant tenancy conditions will be
taken in accordance with the provisions of the Housing Act 1985.

It has been suggested that the next review of the policy should take place in
ten years, unless changes in legislation require an earlier review, and this
amendment has been suggested as a tracked change in the updated draft of
the policy.

Changes to the Draft Policy

With regard to vehicle repairs, the wording has been amended to ensure that
it has reflects the provisions of the tenancy agreement. The tenancy
agreement states that tenants must not carry out major repairs to vehicles at
their homes. It states that tenants are allowed to carry out general
maintenance and repairs such as topping up windscreen washer fluid, oil or
water, changing tyres, putting in a new sound system or changing windscreen
wipers and so on. However, this is conditional on them not causing a
nuisance.

In addition, an amendment has been made to ensure that it is clear that
residents must not block access to dropped kerbs.

Section 7 of the draft policy has been updated to take account of the new
arrangements relating to parking permits whereby those who have a permit
are issued with a virtual permit. The requirement for the permit holder to
update their vehicle details as and when necessary has been clearly stated.
Responsibility for this lies with the permit holder and the policy clearly states
this to avoid any confusion.

The policy has been amended in section 8 and this explains that the Housing
Service will make any necessary enquires to find out who owns a vehicle
which appears to be abandoned.

A new section has been added to the policy to clarify the responsibility of the
Housing Service with regard to the management of any parking issues arising
in areas where the Council’s Off-Street Parking Places Order applies.

The section relating to equality and diversity has been amended to reflect
what is included in other Housing Service policies.

The Housing Service posted an invitation to tenants on social media asking
them if they wanted to be involved in the review of the car park management
policy on 30 December 2019. The post noted that a focus group was planned

MDDC Report Housing Service Car Park Management Pc'tyége 265



but also explained that tenants also had the option to request involvement by
email discussion in the policy review. Unfortunately, no volunteers came
forward.

3.0 RECOMMENDATION

3.1 Members are asked to consider the content and the proposed changes; and
to agree a recommendation relating to the adoption of the revised policy to the
Cabinet. In the meantime, the policy will be reviewed and revised to reflect
any legislative requirements and/or other guidance or good practice.

Contact for more Information: Mrs Claire Fry, Group Manager for Housing
Services, tel: 01884 234920 and cfry@middevon.gov.uk

Circulation of the Report: Councillor Simon Clist, Cabinet Member for Housing
[yes/no — name of Cabinet Member], Cabinet, Leadership Team seen and approved
[yes/no]

List of Background Papers:

\I\;I?I)Z)gc Report Housing Service Car Park Managempgg% 266


mailto:cfry@middevon.gov.uk

Mid Devon District Council

Car Park Management Policy

Policy Number: HSG v3.87

JanuaryMarch 202046

Page 267



Car Park Management Policy

Version Control Sheet
Title: Car Park Management Policy

Purpose: To review the Car Park Management Policy in accordance with good
practice and relevant legislative requirements.

Owner: Group ManagerHeusing-Services-Manager for Housing Services
cfry@middevon.gov.uk

Telephone number 01884 234920

Date: JanuaryMarch 202016
Version Number: v3.87
Status: Review Policy

Review Frequency: Every 104 years or sooner if required and in accordance
with changes in good practice and legislation

Next review date: JanuaryMarch 203020
Consultation This document was sent out for consultation to the following:

Cabinet Member
Staff

Copoaictegnibor
LeadershipManagement Team
PDG Decent-&-Affordable-Homes Policy Development Group

Document History
This document obtained the following approvals.

Title Date Version
Approved

Cabinet Member 28-9.1513/02/2020

Cormmeg st B

Management TeamlLeadership Team 424-4603/03/2020

Homes Policy Development GroupPBG-Decent& | 26-4-4617/03/2020

Affordable Homes

Cabinet 1216 37

Car Park Management Policy v3.8 Dec 20197-8-Feb-16 Page 2

Page 268




Car Park Management Policy

Introduction

This policy statement outlines Mid Devon District Council's (MDDC), Housing
Services approach to dealing with car parking in and around neighbourhoods. This
includes housing amenity, residential and permit holder car parks. We recognise
that tenants and residents in some areas have no or limited means of transport and
rely on a car. Many of our estates were built when levels of car ownership were not
so high. Tenants and residents are encouraged to use Council car parks to reduce
congestion on roads, to reduce parking issues and to promote safer communities.

Scope

This policy explains how the Housing Service will manage car parking on Council
land which_belongs to the Housing Revenue Account and which is utilised by a range
of users, such as Council tenants, leaseholders, owner occupiers, tenants of
Registered Providers and private landlords. This policy covers the following points
and should be read in conjunction with the related documents highlighted below.

Parking responsibilities

Amenity/residential/permit holder car parking
Inconsiderate parking

Liability for theft, damage and vandalism to vehicles
Maintenance of housing estate car parks

Related Documents
a. Tenancy Agreement
b. Property Deeds or Lease
c. Policy relating to tenancy changes
d. Anti-social behaviour Policy and Procedures
e. Recharge Policy

Definitions
The following definitions apply to this policy:

¢ Resident — any Council tenant, registered provider or private tenant, lodger,
leaseholder, owner-occupier or business user

¢ Tenant — means anyone who holds a Council tenancy or is a leaseholder with
MDDC

¢ Vehicle — any car, motorcycle, caravan, trailer, trailer tent, motorhome, van,
lorry, horsebox, boat, motor scooter or similar

e Council owned land —is land owned by MDDC, including all estates or
amenity, residential and permit holder car parks

e Council property — a MDDC home including gardens or shared communal
areas

e Abandoned vehicle - any vehicle which the owner no longer wants that has
been left on Council land. The vehicle may be in poor condition, unmoved for
some time or have no valid insurance or tax

Car Park Management Policy v3.8 Dec 20197-8-Feb-16 Page 3

Page 269



5.1

6.1

Car Park Management Policy

Non-roadworthy vehicle - any vehicle that is not fit to be driven on the open
road, vandalised or parked on Council land and could potentially be a danger
to others.

Our parking responsibilities

Increased car ownership can lead to congestion on our housing estates and escalate
parking issues. As part of our day to day car park management we will are

Foemeneibleo e el dac-

Implementing car parking controls;

Takinge appropriate action to manage car parks efficiently and effectively;
Reservinge the right to charge for unauthorised parking or withdraw a permit;
Takinge appropriate action to resolve issues, for example unauthorised and
inconsiderate parking or nuisance;

Removinge offensive graffiti within one working day of being notified;
Acting swiftly to contact the owner of a vehicle where an unauthorised or
abandoned vehicle is parked on Council land before arranging the vehicle’s
removal and disposal. However where this has failed, we may give due
notice to remove the vehicle before arranging for its removal and disposal;
Takinge other appropriate enforcement action, where required;

——Enforcinge vehicle repair activity. This will be in accordance with the Tenancy

greement;-and

Resident parking responsibilities

We manage parking using the resources available and ask that tenants and
residents take responsibility for parking. In order to do this we ask those who park on
Council land or live on our estates including members of their household or visitors
to their home, to:-

Only park in the designated parking space that has been allocated, where
applicable;

Ask visitors not to park in designated parking spaces which do not belong to
the tenant or resident;

Not leave untaxed, SORN, non-roadworthy or abandoned vehicles on Council
land;

Not park commercial lorries, trailers, horseboxes, camper vans or caravans
on Council land except with prior written consent from us;

Not park any vehicle that exceeds two tonnes unladen weight on any Council
land;

Not park or leave any vehicle on Council land other than in areas set aside for
parking;

Park vehicles considerately for neighbours;

Avoid obstructing access to other properties, vehicles or access points;

Allow accessibility for Emergency Services and Council vehicles;

Car Park Management Policy v3.8 Dec 20197-8-Feb-16 Page 4

Page 270

‘[Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, No bullets or numbering ]




7.3

7.4

Car Park Management Policy

¢ Avoid causing noise nuisance to neighbours or driving at an inappropriate
speed around Council land;
e Only carry out vehicle repairs in accordance with the Tenancy Agreement;Net

R T ]

e Precautions must be taken to minimise the possibility of an outbreak of fire,
and any vehicle materials must be disposed of correctly;

¢ Not use power tools to undertake car maintenance. Cordless vacuum
cleaners may be used;

¢ Avoid playing loud music from vehicles parked on Council land;

¢ Not park any vehicle where it will churn up the grass verge;

e Display permits prominently in vehicles, either on the dashboard or
windscreen;

¢ Not sell or exchange a permit with another person;

e Not use Council land for the purpose of accommodation, such as camping;

e Avoid rigging up any cables from a property to a vehicle parked on Council
land;

¢ Not chain or tie any animal to a vehicle to graze on Council land or property;

e Avoid leaving any person or animal in a vehicle on Council land or property for
a prolonged period which will have a detrimental effect on their wellbeing;

e Prevent doing anything which interferes with or is likely to interfere with the
security or safety of any Council land or cause damage, deface, or apply
graffiti to any property or structure we own;

¢ Not use any Council land for criminal activity or immoral purposes;

e Not use Council land for the purpose of running a business without prior
consent;

o Not block access to drop kerbs; and

e Prevent doing anything that may put someone at risk. Any health and safety
issues should be reported to us immediately.

Amenity/residential/permit holder car parking

Tenants and residents are responsible for the actions of members of their household
and visitors to their home. Where a tenant or resident abuses the use of Council land,
we will take enforcement action.

All tenants and residents are expected to follow the terms of parking conditions as
stated on their parking permits (if applicable), displayed on boards at designated car
parks or conditions attached to written consent issued by us.

Tenants and leaseholders of this Council or owner occupiers of ex MDDC Council
properties have to comply with the parking conditions set in their tenancy
agreement, lease or deeds.

The parking of any vehicle other than a car, a motorcycle or light van, is not allowed
on Council land or property unless prior written consent from us has been granted.

Car Park Management Policy v3.8 Dec 20197-8-Feb-16 Page 5

Page 271



Car Park Management Policy

7.5 We do not permit vehicles with a Statutory Off Road Notification (SORN) to park on
Council land. However, we may grant consent to park a SORN vehicle at a Council
property with an approved hard standing or garage.

7.6  Parking is on a first come, first served basis at amenity and residential car parks.

7.7  Anyone can use Council amenity car parks or park on our estates, regardless of their
tenure status or whether they are resident on that estate or not.

condition

[.8 We will issue one virtual permit free of charge to each leaseholder (where this is a

f their lease) and tenant household. This will be for residential and permit holder only car <«—{ Formatted: Indent: Left: -1.3 cm, Hanging: 1.3 cm

parks, where applicable.

permitfor-that specific car park

[/.9 At residential car parks, only vehicles issued with a virtual permit for displaying a

ill be allowed to use the non-designated spaces. If there is ample parking for tenants or <~ { Formatted: Indent: Left: -1.3 cm, Hanging: 1.3 cm

residents, we may decide to allocate spaces for visitors.

’7.10 Virtual pPermits issued for permit holder car parks are allocated for designated ___—{ Formatted: Font: Not Bold
spaces.
Where we have more spaces than households or a tenant/resident requests an additional

parking space, a permit will be offered for an annual fee (at the current rate for the

financial year as determined by Councillors). Vehicles must not be parked in any

space other than where the permit allows.

7.11 In permit holder car parks, where demand outstrips the supply of parking spaces, an
applicant can be added to a waiting list. If a space becomes available, priority will be
given to a tenant who lives on the estate followed by a tenant who lives elsewhere.

If there are still spaces available, a non-Council tenant will then be offered the
permit.

|7.12 We will not offer an additional virtual erreplacement-permit where the tenant or
resident

has an outstanding debt with the Council. Once the debt is cleared, we will consider
the request.

—ltis the responsibility of 4_#.__[ Formatted: Indent: Left: -1.3 cm, Hanging: 1.3 cm

the permit holder to change their vehicle details on their virtual permit if they change
their vehicle details.

7.14 Permits are allocated to households, not vehicles and they are transferable to
individual users within that household. Visitors including carers may also use a
resident’s permit, however the permit owner must update the vehicle details on their

virtual permit.-by-displaying-it-in-their-vehicle. Any vehicle parked where a virtual

| Car Park Management Policy v3.8 Dec 20197-8-Feb-16 Page 6

Page 272



Car Park Management Policy

| permit is required -not-displaying-a-permit-(where-applicable)-is liable to enforcement

action.

E.15 Duplicate permits can be requested, however, only one vehicle with a virtual permit

is allowed to park at any one given time. There will be a charge for non-Council
tenants for this service.

7.16 A tenant or resident can terminate their permit in writing to us at any time. If a tenant
has a permit and they move to another property which is not on the current estate,
they are no longer eligible to hold that permit. They will be required to surrender the
permit when they vacate their property.

7.17 Disabled spaces are for use by drivers and/or passengers with mobility difficulties.
These spaces are not for specific users and can be used by any vehicle displaying a
blue badge on a first come, first served basis. We expect tenants and residents not
to abuse the use of a space.

7.18 We reserve the right to recharge the tenant or resident for any costs incurred from
the misuse of Council land caused by them, members of their household or visitors
to their home. All recharges will be dealt with in accordance with the Housing
Services Recharge Policy.

8. Inconsiderate parking

8.1 We will work with tenants and residents to find reasonable solutions to parking
problems. However, we are unable to take any enforcement action where the
problem occurs on the highway or private land.

8.2  Where the Council does not own the land, our powers to manage parking problems
are limited; this will include parking on pavements, or in front of dropped kerbs. We
will offer advice to a tenant or resident when they raise concerns.

8.3  We are unable to limit the number of vehicles a household owns. However, we may
offer solutions to resolve parking issues, for example, grant permission for a hard
standing or offer a garage to rent, where the relevant criteria is met.

8.4  The Housing Service will make any necessary enquiries to ascertain who owns any ~__—{ Formatted: Font: Bold )
vehicles which appear to have been abandoned on our land. In some cases, this ~{ Formatted: Font: 12 pt )
may involve checking on the DVLA database to see if vehicles are taxed and have
the appropriate MOT certificate.

8.5 In addition, our Officers may investigate further in order to ascertain the name and ___{ Formatted: Font: Bold )
address of the registered keeper. ~{ Formatted: Font: 12 pt )

D. Trafffic Requlations Order (TRO)Off-Street Parking

D.1 Where a parking space is included within the Council’'s Off-Street Parking Places Pﬂw Formatted: Heading 3, Indent: Left: -1.3 cm, Hanging: 1.3

Order, -Fraffic Regulation Orderis-in-plasewe will comply-with-the restrictions cm, Adjust space between Latin and Asian text, Adjust space

between Asian text and numbers

| Car Park Management Policy v3.8 Dec 20197-8-Feb-16 Page 7

Page 273



Car Park Management Policy

L ion for-anv.t .

8.2 Tthe Housing Service will liaise with district officers in the Street scScene team to

/{ Formatted: Font: Arial

153.

ensure that appropriate enforcement activity takes place. where-any-breachesof the

/{ Formatted: Font: Arial, Not Bold, Font color: Auto

Liability for theft, damage and vandalism to vehicles

We are not responsible for vehicles parked on Council land or property including
liability for damage, theft or vandalism.

Maintenance of housing estate car parks

Neighbourhood Officers carry out six monthly neighbourhood walkabouts and
monthly communal inspections, which include inspecting our car parks. They will
inspect car parks routinely, report any repairs and address any health and safety
risks.

pu

-

References
e The Road {Traffic Act 1991

Equality and Diversity

The Housing Service will tailor its services to meet the diverse needs of individuals.
The aim will be to foster good relations with people when providing services to
eliminate discrimination and to promote opportunity of equality. All action taken by
us will be in accordance with the requirements of current legislation.Fre-Housing

|1§3.14 This Policy has been written in line with current relevant legislation. The policy

will be

reviewed and revised to reflect any legislation requirements and/or other guidance or
good practice. The next review of this Policy is due January 20320 and every ten four
years thereafter.

Car Park Management Policy v3.8 Dec 20197-8-Feb-16 Page 8

Page 274

D {Formatted: Normal, No bullets or numbering

— Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm, Adjust space between Latin
and Asian text, Adjust space between Asian text and numbers

|

- [ Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm

)




Agenda Item 9.

HOMES POLICY DEVELOPMENT GROUP
17 MARCH 2020

HOUSING SERVICE GARAGE MANAGEMENT POLICY

Cabinet Member(s): Councillor Simon Clist, Cabinet Member for Housing
Responsible Officer: Mrs Claire Fry, Group Manager for Housing Services

Reason for Report: The Housing Service Garage Management Policy requires
review by virtue of time bar

RECOMMENDATION:

1. That the Homes Policy Development Group (PDG) agrees to the
proposed changes set out in the tracked policy

2. That the PDG recommends to Cabinet that the Policy be adopted as
amended

Financial Implications: The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is ring fenced and
subject to specific financial controls. The Housing Service is funded through the
HRA and therefore maintaining the revenue stream is a key priority. Income arising
from the rental of garages is accounted for within the HRA.

Budget and Policy Framework: The HRA contains a budget for garage income
and there is also provision for repairs and maintenance. Some garages are not fit for
purpose and others are located on sites where there is no demand for the amenity.
For this reason there is an ongoing reviewing of these assets.

The Neighbourhood Team manages garages and there is a staffing budget within
the HRA to ensure that this is adequately resourced

Legal Implications: Those individuals who rent garages and garage ground rent
plots from the Housing Service are obliged to sign a tenancy agreement which sets
out the relationship between both parties and their respective obligations.

Risk Assessment: The garages and garage ground rent plots located on the
Housing estate are a valuable asset and it is important that they are managed well to
maximise the income which can be derived from it.

Equality Impact Assessment: The Tenant Involvement and Empowerment
Standard contains a specific expectation that registered providers of social housing
such as the Council shall demonstrate how they respond to tenant’s needs in the
way they provide services and communicate with tenants. The Housing Service
requests diversity data from tenants to enable compliance to be monitored and
makes a note of any communication needs relating to residents living in other
housing tenures if they notify Officers about this.

Reference to relevant policy helps to ensure that service delivery is consistent and
fair.

MDDC Report Housing Service Garage Management Polj
vaa P 9 ge Manag Pade 275



Officers will undertake home visits if someone is unable to come into the office to
discuss any issue.

Relationship to Corporate Plan: The Housing estate must be managed efficiently
and effectively and the new Corporate Plan also includes themes relating to
community and environment which are relevant to this policy.

Impact on Climate Change: The Housing Service has actively invested in energy
efficiency; extensive use of solar PV and air source heat pumps already exists. The
ongoing circa £170M 30 year maintenance programme has a significant focus on
ensuring energy efficiency. Where sustainable options are available they are
utilised; however, it is acknowledged that where there is a significant cost differential
that plays heavily in the choices made.

We recognise that the provision of sustainable communities is important. As part of
our commitment to meeting the provisions of the Tenant Involvement and
Empowerment Standard within the Regulatory Framework for Social Housing, the
Council offers a menu of involvement, which provides opportunities for tenants to get
involved in service delivery. Tenants scrutinise the work of the Service and are also
involved in the development of our newsletter which is published periodically. We
use this and social media to promote sustainability and therefore publish information
relating to a variety of topics including fuel efficiency, recycling and healthy living.

Officers sometimes have to respond to emergencies such as those associated those
arising from serious incidents of anti-social behaviour. In such cases, safeguarding
concerns will take priority in order to minimise risk and it is accepted that the ability
to manage such issues effectively may have an environmental impact which would
not occur if work can be planned in advance and managed in a more co-ordinated
way.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 The Council is committed to improving the Housing Service and having an
effective garage management policy enables staff to refer to this for guidance
on the best course of action under the circumstances. Reference to the policy
should ensure that all cases are treated consistently although the policy does
offer some discretion to enable reasonable adjustments to be made where
necessary.

1.2  This policy identifies the approach of the Housing Service to managing
garages and garage ground rent plots on our estates.

1.3  The existing policy has been in use since it was adopted in 2011. Following a
review, a number of amendments have been suggested. These changes
have been included on the policy document contained within Appendix 1 and
are shown as tracked changes for ease of reference. The tracked changes
have affected the formatting of the document. Once the final draft has been
agreed, it will be retyped and properly formatted.

1.4  The Housing Service uses rental agreements when letting garages and
garage ground rent plots which define the contractual relationship between

\I\;II;)IZC Report Housing Service Garage Managemepl’dbb 276



1.5

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

each party.

It has been suggested that the next review of the policy should take place in
ten years, unless changes in legislation require an earlier review, and this
amendment has been suggested as a tracked change in the updated draft of
the policy.

Changes to the Draft Policy

Currently, the Housing Service differentiates between those people who rent a
home from the Council and non-tenants, with regard to the rental of garages.
Council tenants are charged less if they rent a garage. The draft policy has
been amended to facilitate any future changes to this policy if a decision was
made to align the two rental charges.

The clause relating to vehicle maintenance has been amended to bring it into
line with the relevant clause within the Council’s standard tenancy agreement
relating to homes in management and the revised draft car park management
agreement. The tenancy agreement states that tenants must not carry out
major repairs to vehicles. It states that tenants are allowed to carry out
general maintenance and repairs such as topping up windscreen washer fluid,
oil or water, changing tyres, putting in a new sound system or changing
windscreen wipers and so on. However, this is conditional on them not
causing a nuisance. The garage management agreement also states that
tenants are expected to take precautions to minimise the possibility of an
outbreak of fire, and that materials are disposed of correctly.

A further amendment makes those who rent garage ground rent plots from the
Council responsible for disposing of them before the tenancy ends. It new
clause also makes it clear that Housing Service will recharge the former
tenant if any structure requires removing and the resulting debris requires
disposal. This is particularly important because many existing structures on
garage ground rent plots were made of materials containing asbestos.

Reference to rent free weeks has been removed to take account of any
changes to rent debit frequency. The relevant clause has been amended to
state that garage rent is due weekly as specified in the tenancy agreement.

It is not uncommon for the Housing Service to find belongings in a garage or
on a garage ground rent plot once the tenancy has ended. In such
circumstances, a charge will be raised until such time as the articles are
removed. This reflects the fact that the garage or garage ground rent plot
cannot be re-let until such time as the items have been removed. The draft
policy has been amended because the charge made can no longer be
described as rent.

The section relating to equality and diversity has been amended to reflect
what is included in other Housing Service policies.

The Housing Service posted an invitation to tenants on social media asking
them if they wanted to be involved in the review of the garage management
policy on 30 December 2019. The post noted that a focus group was planned

MDDC Report Housing Service Garage Management Polpage 277

V44



but also explained that tenants also had the option to request involvement by
email discussion in the policy review. Unfortunately, no volunteers came
forward.

3.0 RECOMMENDATION

3.1 Members are asked to consider the content and the proposed changes; and
to agree a recommendation relating to the adoption of the revised policy to the
Cabinet. In the meantime, the policy will be reviewed and revised to reflect
any legislative requirements and/or other guidance or good practice.

Contact for more Information: Mrs Claire Fry, Group Manager for Housing
Services, tel: 01884 234290, email: cfry@middevon.gov.uk

Circulation of the Report: Councillor Simon Clist, Cabinet Member for Housing,
[yes/no — name of Cabinet Member], Cabinet, Leadership Team seen and approved
[yes/no]

List of Background Papers:

\I\;II;)IZC Report Housing Service Garage Managemepl’dbb 278


mailto:cfry@middevon.gov.uk

Mid Devon District Council

Garage Management Policy

Policy Number: HSG v4.43

January 202046

Page 279



Garage Management Policy

Version Control Sheet
Title: Garage Management Policy

Purpose: To review the Garage Management Policy in accordance with good
practice and relevant legislative requirements.

Owner: GroupHeusing-Services-Manager
cfry@middevon.gov.uk

Telephone number 01884 234920
Date: January 202046

Version Number: v4.43

Status: Review of policy

Review Frequency: Every 104 years or sooner if required and in accordance
with good practice and changes in legislation

Next review date: January 20320

Consultation This document was sent out for consultation to the following:
Cabinet Member
Staff

Somme et
LeadershipManagement Team
Homes Policy Development Group

PDG Decent & Affordable Homes

Document History
This document obtained the following approvals.

Title Date Version
Approved

Cabinet Member 22/6/1513/02/2020

Copoaictegnibor e

LeadershipManagement Team e

Homes Policy Development GroupPBG 26/14/1617/03/2020

Cabinet 11246 43

Garage Management Policy v4.43-/5-Mar-2042-Feb-2010-Dec-198-Feb-16 Page 2

Page 280




Garage Management Policy

1. Introduction

This policy statement outlines Mid Devon District Council’s (MDDC), Housing
Service approach to letting and managing garage and garage ground rent
plots (GGRP’s). Residents are encouraged to take on garage and GGRP
tenancies to free up congestion on roads, promote safer communities and
prevent access problems on estates due to overcrowding of vehicles.

2. Scope

This policy applies to how we manage garage and GGRP’s allocations and
terminations. This policy covers the following points and should be read in
conjunction with the related documents as stated below:-

Allocation of garages and GGRP’s
General use

Repairs

Rent

Termination of tenancies

Insurance

Demolition of plots and development
Bereavement and succession rights

3. Related Documents

®PoooTo

Garage Agreement

GGRP Agreement

Income Management Policy
Recharge Policy

Policy relating to tenancy changes

4. Definitions

The following definitions apply to this policy:

Garage includes the structural building and the garage forecourt area
Garage Ground Rent Plots (GGRP) are plots of land purposely let for
parking a vehicle. They are let as a hard standing and are suitable for
erecting a prefabricated garage by the tenant, if required, subject to
approval

Resident includes MDDC tenants, freeholders, leaseholders and
private tenants

Tenant means anyone who holds a Council tenancy with Mid Devon
District Council

Vehicle any car, motorcycle, caravan, trailer, trailer tent, motorhome,
van, lorry, horsebox, boat, motor scooter or similar

5. Allocations and lettings

5.1  Waiting lists are open to all residents aged eighteen or over regardless of their

Garage Management Policy v4.43-/5-Mar-2042-Feb-2010-Dec-198-Feb-16 Page 3

Page 281



Garage Management Policy

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.1

5.12

6.1

6.2

tenure status, subject to meeting the relevant criteria.

Businesses may apply for a garage to store a vehicle for business purposes.
They may also store other items but not use the garage as a retail outlet or for
advertising purposes.

Garage rent will be charged at a higher rate for businesses, private tenants,
home owners, leaseholders and former tenants, compared to current tenants
of a Council dwelling. However, the Council reserves the right to vary the rent
by giving the tenant of a garage one week’s written notice or one month’s
written notice for a GGRP before any changes take place.

It is the responsibility of the tenant to notify us of any changes.

Registered charitable organisations are charged rent at a discounted rate as
long as proof of charitable registration is provided.

GGRP rent is charged at the same rate for all residents.

Waiting lists will be established and maintained in date order, however,
priority will be given to Council tenants who rent a dwelling from us over a
non-Council tenant when being allocated.

A Council tenant who is in rent arrears or has other housing related debts will
not be eligible for a garage or GGRP.

In all cases the applicant will be required to enter into a garage or GGRP
agreement. Garage tenancies are weekly agreements and GGRP tenancies
are yearly agreements. Joint tenancies are not offered.

If a former tenancy was breached, we have discretion over whether to grant a
new tenancy over the next two years.

A tenancy will be revoked if it is found that applicant knowingly gives false or
misleading information to obtain a tenancy.

A prospective tenant may view the garage or GGRP prior to signing up for the
tenancy. However, they will be responsible for returning the keys that they
signed for. If they do not return the keys or lose them, they will be recharged
for the replacement of any locks or keys.

General use of garage/GGRP

We will not be responsible for any loss, deterioration or damage to a vehicle
or any items stored in a garage or GGRP.

Tenants must not keep an untaxed vehicle in the garage or GGRP unless a
valid Statutory Off Road Vehicle Notification (SORN) has been made to the
Driver and Vehicle licensing Agency (DVLA).

Garage Management Policy v4.43-/5-Mar-2042-Feb-2010-Dec-198-Feb-16 Page 4

Page 282



Garage Management Policy

6.3  Tenants must not park a vehicle that exceeds two tonnes unladen weight on
any Council land.

6.4 Tenants are not permitted to re-let, assign or sublet all or part of the garage or
GGRP or accept rent from another party for the use of it.

6.5 Garages or GGRP’s are not permitted to be used for the purpose of
accommodation.

6.6 Tenants are expected not to continuously run the engine of vehicles whilst in
the garage or on GGRP, except when entering and leaving. They must not
cause annoyance or nuisance to neighbouring properties including garages or
GGRP’s.

6.7 Vehicle repairs are only permitted in accordance with the Tenancy
Agreement; i Y i icle

the-oil—Precautions must be taken to minimise the possibility of an outbreak of fire,
and materials must be disposed of correctly.

6.8 Tenants are not permitted to use power tools to undertake car maintenance.
Cordless vacuum cleaners may be used.

6.9 Tenants must be able to close doors on any structure that has been erected
on a GGRP or garage doors. They are to avoid causing obstruction to access
routes to any other garage, GGRP, roadways, footpaths, forecourts, premises
or site.

6.10 Tenants must not make any structural alterations or additions to the garage.

6.11 Itis a condition of the tenancy agreement that tenants must comply with all
relevant planning permission and building control consent for erecting any
structures on a GGRP. Permission should be sought from us prior to works
commencing.

6.12 Tenants are responsible for disposing of any structures on a GGRP prior to
the tenancy ending. Any structures in place, we will charge the tenant for its
removal and disposal.

6.132 The cost of any repairs, maintenance or replacement of a garage or GGRP as
a result of misuse or wilful damage by the tenant, or any other person
connected with them, will be dealt with in line with the Housing Services
Recharge Policy.

7. Repairs
7.1  Tenants are required to give employees or contractors working for the Council

reasonable access in order to carry out repairs to the garage, GGRP or
neighbouring properties.

P#"{ Formatted: Indent: Left:

-0.3 cm

Garage Management Policy v4.43-/5-Mar-2042-Feb-2010-Dec-198-Feb-16 Page 5

Page 283



Garage Management Policy

7.2

7.3

7.4

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

9.1

9.2

We will not be responsible for repairing or maintaining any structure that has
been erected on a GGRP. Any structures are to be kept in good repair and
condition throughout. This will be the responsibility of the tenant.

If a tenant is unable to use a garage whilst repairs are being carried out and a
suitable neighbouring garage is void. This will be offered to the tenant
temporary at the same rent as the existing garage tenancy. If there is either
no suitable neighbouring void garage or the tenant declines the offer of one,
the existing tenancy will be temporarily terminated. In this case rent will not be
charged for the garage requiring repairs providing the keys are returned to us.
The tenancy will resume when the repairs to the garage have been
completed.

In the event that a garage or GGRP tenancy is terminated because the whole
or a substantial part of the site needs to be redeveloped, we will try to offer
the tenant a suitable alternative garage or GGRP but cannot guarantee the
location.

Rent
The rent may be varied by giving the tenant of a garage one week’s written

notice or one month’s written notice for a GGRP before any changes take
place. These charges may increase or decrease from time to time — usually

once a year.

GGRP rent is due yearly. If a tenant is unable to pay the full amount in
advance they are advised to make an arrangement to clear the arrears.

Garage and GGRP arrears will be dealt with in line with the Housing Services,
Income Management Policy.

Terminations

We will not normally end a garage or GGRP tenancy without the tenant’s
agreement unless there is a breach of tenancy conditions (or the tenant is
deceased and there is no succession). As the tenancy is not for a dwelling
the tenant has no security of tenure. The tenancy can be ended by serving
one week’s notice to quit on the tenant with a garage and one month’s notice
to quit on the tenant with a GGRP.

A tenant holding a garage tenancy may terminate their tenancy with one
week’s written notice ending on a Sunday.

Garage Management Policy v4.43-/5-Mar-2042-Feb-2010-Dec-198-Feb-16 Page 6

Page 284



Garage Management Policy

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

10.

10.1

1.

12.

121

A tenant holding a GGRP tenancy may terminate their tenancy with one
month’s written notice.

Where items have been left in a garage or on a GGRP the former tenant will
be given every opportunity to remove the items. A charge Rent will continue
to be raisedeharged until the former tenant either removes the items or they
give us written permission to dispose of them. In the event that items are not
removed within one calendar month, we will remove and dispose of any items
and the former tenant will be recharged for any costs incurred.

If there is any outstanding rent or recharges when the garage or GGRP
tenancy is terminated then the former tenant must make arrangements to pay
any outstanding debts.

A tenant holding a GGRP tenancy is renting land on which a garage can be
built. In some cases, the plot may have an existing structure on it when let.
The tenant will be required to remove any structures from the GGRP when the
tenancy ends unless we have agreed that it can remain or the tenant has
negotiated a sale with the new tenant. In this instance, the tenant will be
responsible for the negotiation and exchange of finances with the other party
prior to the tenancy ending. Failure to remove the structure, if required, may
result in us arranging removal of it and recharging the cost of the work to the
former tenant.

When a garage or GGRP tenancy is terminated, vacant possession is
required, with all rent paid up to date, any items removed and the property left
in a clean and tidy condition. Keys are to be returned by 12 noon on the
Monday following the tenancy end date.

If the keys are not returned or they have been lost we will recharge the tenant
for the replacement of any locks or keys.

Insurance

We will insure the structure of the garage; this does not include structures that
have been erected on a GGRP by a tenant or previous tenant. The tenant is
responsible for insuring their own vehicle and personal possessions together
with any property stored in the garage or GGRP.

Demolition of plots and development

The demolition of individual garages, blocks of garages and GGRP’s will only
be carried out where there is a requirement due to a health & safety risk or a
business case is in place to demolish and redevelop the site.

Bereavement

Where a tenancy has ended due to the tenant passing away, the tenancy may

be offered to a surviving member of the tenant’s household. Proof of
residency will be required before re-letting the garage/GGRP.

Garage Management Policy v4.43-/5-Mar-2042-Feb-2010-Dec-198-Feb-16 Page 7

Page 285



Garage Management Policy

12.2

13.

13.1

14.

14.1

If the surviving member of the tenant’s household is not a tenant of a Council
dwelling then the rent will revert back to the charge that non-Council tenants
receive if they decide to take on the tenancy. If the tenancy is declined or
after 28 working days has not been accepted it will be treated as a normal
void. This will be dealt with in line with the Housing Services policy relating to
tenancy changes.

Equality and Diversity

The Housing Service will tailor its services to meet the diverse needs of
individuals. The aim will be to foster good relations with people when
providing services to eliminate discrimination and to promote opportunity of
equality. All action taken by us will be in accordance with the requirements of
current legislation.tailors-its-servicesto-meet the diverse needs-of individuals.

Review

This Policy has been written in line with current relevant legislation. The policy
will be reviewed and revised to reflect any legislation requirements and/or
other guidance or good practice. The next review of this Policy is due January
20320 and every tenfour years thereafter.

Garage Management Policy v4.43-/5-Mar-2042-Feb-2010-Dec-198-Feb-16 Page 8

Page 286



Agenda Item 10.

CABINET
23 APRIL 2020

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF PLANNING, ECONOMY AND REGENERATION

CULLOMPTON AND WELLINGTON NEW RAILWAY STATIONS PROJECT -
GOVERNANCE, PROCESS, PROJECT FUNDING AND NEXT STEPS

Cabinet Member(s): Councillor Graeme Barnell, Cabinet Member for Planning
& Regeneration

Responsible Officer: Mrs Jenny Clifford, Head of Planning, Economy and
Regeneration

Reason for Report:
1. To set out proposed governance arrangements in order to seek to establish
clear lines of decision making for the project going forward; and

2. To identify the next steps for taking forward the project.
RECOMMENDATION:

1. That the governance arrangements set out in Appendix 1 be agreed; and
2. That the overview of the process be noted.

Financial Implications: In 2016 Mid Devon District Council, Taunton Deane
Borough Council (now Somerset West & Taunton Council), Cullompton Town
Council and Wellington Town Council agreed to contribute £100k towards feasibility
work; the District Councils contributing £40k each and the Town Councils £10k each.
To date £31,281 has been spent on timetabling and initial feasibility work.

It is estimated that to complete the first formal stage of the project, production of a
Strategic Outline Business Case is needed. This will cost approximately £200-250k.
The project has monies unspent from previous committed contributions towards the
project amounting to £68,719, but there is clearly a shortfall which will still need to be
funded. A government funding bid has been submitted and we await the outcome of
that process. The financial implications will need to be reassessed once a decision
on the government funding has been received.

Servicing the governance arrangements (set out in section 3 below) can be met from
existing budgets.

It is too early to know how much it will cost to complete delivery of the two railway
stations; however the Strategic Outline Business Case will establish an indicative
cost. It will also provide a basis for exploring further funding opportunities.
Importantly once a scheme has completed a Strategic Outline Business Case and
satisfactorily progressed to the ‘Decision to Develop’ stage it is much more likely to
benefit from government funding.

MDDC Report Cullompton Railway Stations Project
VR i Y **  Pade 287



Budget and Policy Framework: As explained above there are existing funds
available from partners totalling £68,719. Additional funding would be needed to
complete the Strategic Outline Business Case (SOBC) in its entirety. Once the
partners know whether the government funding bid is successful a decision would
need to be made as to whether to continue with the full Strategic Outline Business
Case, undertake first stage of SOBC only or discontinue the project.

The Local Plan Review includes a site allocation for a Cullompton Railway Station.

Legal Implications: No significant legal implications anticipated at this time as a
result of the governance structure proposed. Legal implications could arise
throughout the project development process. Should these arise they will be
reported to Cabinet through future update reports.

Risk Assessment:

Robust, suitable and appropriate governance arrangements for the new stations
project are necessary to drive the project progress, allow it to operate efficiently and
to build relationships with stakeholders. Effective governance arrangements will also
ensure that best use is made of funding opportunities. The governance
arrangements provide a structure within which the project will develop and be
accountable.

Risks will be constantly reviewed as the project develops. Decisions whether to
continue with the project will be made at each significant gateway milestone as
explained later in the report. This will allow the opportunity to withdraw from the
project should the risks outweigh the likelihood of satisfactory delivery.

Equality Impact Assessment: No equality issues are identified for this report at
this stage. As the project goes forward it will need to consider the views from
representatives from protected groups that the project has the potential to impact
upon.

Relationship to Corporate Plan: The proposal for a new railway station contributes
to all four corporate priorities of economy, homes, community and environment and
is central to the delivery of many of aims identified within the Corporate Plan. It is a
significant strategic project which could have a national profile.

Impact on Climate Change: The strategic outline business case for the new railway
station proposal would need to part of a multimodal approach to catering for the
demands from new development in the area. Sustainable transport is an important
part of that assessment. The project would also need to consider pedestrian and
cycle access.

1.0 INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND

1.1  There have been long established aspirations to reinstate stations at
Cullompton and Wellington. A key driver for delivering these projects is that
both areas are proximate to significant planned growth. It is considered that

MDDC Report Cullompton Railway Stations Project
i P P Y *Page 288



this can be part of a more general enhancement to the rail service between
Bristol and Exeter.

1.2 A site for a new railway station, north of Station road in Cullompton, is
allocated within the emerging Local Plan. Network Rail carried out a timetable
study in 2017 to explore whether a service could be provided calling at
Cullompton and Wellington. In January 2019 an initial feasibility study has
been undertaken by WSP Consulting to check station arrangements fit within
the allocated footprint and to assess if there are any signal issues. It
concluded that subject to topographical, structural and ground investigation
surveys, a new station at Cullompton could be accommodated. Signal D181
would however need to be relocated. Similarly Wellington was also assessed
favourably.

2.0 OVERVIEW OF THE PROCESS
Rail Network Enhancement Pipeline

2.1 In March 2018 the Government published the Rail Network Enhancement
Pipeline ‘A New Approach for Rail Enhancements’ (RNEP). This process sets
out the key stages that rail enhancement projects (including the provision of
new stations) will need to undertake to be successful. There are five stages
of activity separated by formal investment decision gateways. The first three
stages, “Determine”, “Develop” and “Design” relate to project development.
The last two stages “Deliver” and “Deploy” focus on construction and at this
stage all investment decisions would have been taken. Each of these key
stages is separated by decision gateways to determine whether or not to
proceed with the enhancement. The first three stages will all require a
suitable and government compliant business case.

Stage 1: Decision to  Stage 2: Decision to . 5tage 3: Decision to Stage 4: Stage 5:

Acceptance

Determine Develop Develop Design Design Deliver Deliver Deploy

Rail Network Enhancements Pipeline, A New Approach for Rail Enhancements, Department for
Transport, March 2018

2.2 The Cullompton and Wellington Railway Stations Re-instatement project is
currently at stage 1. The project will need to have a Strategic Outline
Business Case (SOBC) before it can progress to the next stage. The SOBC
will need to be agreed by Government before it will engage in “Decision to
Develop” discussions. The following information will also be required to move
through the “Decision to Develop” gateway:

e A description of a clear, benefit for rail users, which should be in line
with the government’s priorities for rail;

e A clear plan of action for the “Develop” stage, with anticipated costs for
that stage;

e An indicative cost for the enhancement, were it to progress to
completion;

MDDC Report Cullompton Railway Stations Project
MDDC Rep P y ¢ Page 289



2.3

2.4

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

A&l

e Assurance that other transport solutions and interventions have been
considered,;

e Demonstration that rail demand has been considered in the proposed
enhancement; and

e An indication of whether the project might be suitable for private
investment or alternative delivery models.

Continuous Modular Strategic Planning (CMSP)

In April 2020 Network Rail is set to embark on a Continuous Modular Strategic
Planning (CMSP) study for the Bristol to Exeter rail corridor as part of its long
term planning process. This will replace the route studies that have been
undertaken in the past. It is envisaged that this work will take approximately
one year to complete. If the Cullompton & Wellington Station re-opening
project Strategic Outline Business Case could be developed during 2020 it
would provide an opportunity to inform Network Rail’'s CMSP work and raise
its profile nationally.

Financial Implications of Developing an SOBC

Estimating the cost of an SOBC is not always straightforward given that every
scheme is different. However officers have undertaken discussions with
industry experts and considered the cost of SOBCs for station re-opening
projects elsewhere and have arrived at a broad estimate of costs. It is
estimated that, building on the existing work done to date, to complete an
SOBC would cost approximately £200-250k. As explained in the financial
implications section above the District Council, along with Somerset West and
Taunton Council, have assisted the local MPs in submitting an expression of
interest to the Department for Transport’'s (DfT’s) ‘Restoring your Railway
Fund’ under the ideas programme. Cabinet will be updated once a decision
has been made as to whether the scheme has been successful in receiving
government funding. At this stage a decision will need to be taken as to
whether the full strategic outline business case is pursued.

PROJECT GOVERNANCE

Governance arrangements are important so as to establish a structure for the
project, identify decision making, reporting lines, linkages to wider activities
and how stakeholders will interact and participate. It is also important to
establish a clear governance structure to drive momentum, achieve progress
against milestones and manage work streams.

Agreed governance arrangements would also assist in establishing a
consensus over the approach to the project in terms of: respective roles and
responsibilities for key aspects of the project, general project management,
together with stakeholder engagement.

Work on this project has to date been based on meetings held by the Devon
and Somerset Metro Officer meeting with the occasional meeting with MPs.
At the last Devon and Somerset Metro meeting it was decided, in recognition

MDDC Report Cullompton Railway Stations Projectpage 290



4.0

4.1

of the respective County Council’s (i.e. Devon County Council & Somerset
County Council) being unable to commit sufficient time/resource to be the
project sponsor, that the two District Councils (Somerset West & Taunton
Council & Mid Devon District Council) would undertake this role for the initial
stages of this project. Also at this meeting it was considered that to move this
project forward the establishment of clear governance arrangements were
needed. Proposed governance arrangements are set out in Appendix 1.

NEXT STEPS

Subject to approval of the above recommendations, the next steps to advance
to the ‘Decision to Develop’ gateway of the Rail Network Enhancement
Pipeline would be as follows:

e If invited as part of government funding assessment, present scheme to
the DfT ‘Restoring your Railway’ team, although we now understand that
due to social distancing requirement projects are being assessed via
board meetings held virtually;

e Assess level of funding available and consider the scale of additional
District Council and partner funds needed to progress the project;

e Set up a working group to further refine the scope of the Strategic Outline
Business Case requirements and initiate the procurement process;

e Establish contact with senior officials within the rail industry and the DfT to
continue to raise the profile of the project;

e Ensure that there is engagement with Network Rail through the
Continuous Modular Strategic Planning (CMSP) process;

e Continue to seek funding opportunities,

e On competition of the SOBC, and it being approved by Government,
undertake discussions with DfT as to whether the project should proceed;
and

e |f decision made to continue a review of governance arrangements would
be needed.

Contact for more Information: Adrian Welsh, Group Manager — Growth,
Economy and Delivery
awelsh@middevon.gov.uk

Jenny Clifford, Head of Planning, Economy
and Regeneration
jclifford@middevon.gov.uk

Circulation of the Report: Clir Graeme Barnell

List of Background Papers: Rail Network Enhancement Pipeline ‘A New Approach
for Rail Enhancements’.DCLG prospectus locally led garden villages, towns and
cities https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/rail-network-enhancements-pipeline
Restoring Your Railway Fund Guidance (Department for Transport) January 2020
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/re-opening-beeching-era-lines-and-stations

A&l

MDDC Report Cullompton Railway Stations Project Page 291


mailto:awelsh@middevon.gov.uk
mailto:jclifford@middevon.gov.uk
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/rail-network-enhancements-pipeline

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1
Proposed Project Governance Arrangements

Cullompton and Wellington Railway Station Project:
Phase 1 (SOBCQ)

January 2020

Background

This paper proposes potential governance arrangements for the first phase of the
Cullompton and Wellington Railway Station Project, for which the end product will be a
Strategic Outline Business Case (SOBC). Governance arrangements are important so as to
establish a structure for the project, identify decision making, reporting lines, linkages to
wider activities and how stakeholders will interact and participate. It is also important to
establish a clear governance structure to drive momentum, achieve progress against
milestones and manage work streams.

Agreed governance arrangements would also assist in establishing a consensus over the
approach to the project in terms of: respective roles and responsibilities for key aspects of
the project, general project management, together with stakeholder engagement.

Work on this project has to date been based on meetings held by the Devon and Somerset
Metro Officer meeting with the occasional meeting with MPs. At the last D&S Metro
meeting it was decided, in recognition of the respective County Council’s (i.e. Devon
County Council & Somerset County Council) being unable to commit sufficient
time/resource to be the project sponsor, that the two District Councils (Somerset West &
Taunton Council & Mid Devon District Council) would undertake this role.

It is considered that the next step in moving this project forward is to establish clear
governance arrangements for the first phase of the project; acknowledging that as the
project progresses further, the governance arrangements may need to change too. This
paper sets out a governance proposal for consideration by the group.

Governance Proposal

The proposed Governance structure, shown in Appendix A, is set up to oversee the
development of the Strategic Outline Business Case (SOBC) and initial feasibility. The
structure may need to change if the role turns to overseeing delivery of the project.

lof4
Page 293



In some respects the proposed governance structure simply formalises aspects of the
current arrangements whilst supplementing them with other elements necessary for taking
the project forward. This proposal is considered to provide an appropriate basis for robust
decision-making and project co-ordination to take the project through the next stages of its
development. These governance arrangements are consistent with established project
management good practice.

The various elements are explained in more detail below.
The Project Board

Roles and Responsibilities

The Project Board will have the overall initial responsibility for overseeing the development
of the Strategic Outline Business Case (SOBC) for the project. It will be accountable for the
success of the SOBC and has responsibility and authority for the project delivery, subject to
necessary District Council Cabinet/Executive approvals as project sponsors. It is likely that
the Project Board will be required to meet at least three times a year to enable it to be well
informed of progress and issues. Key roles and responsibilities are listed below:

e Champion the new stations initiative, its delivery and reporting to respective
corporate management teams and elected members to ensure corporate support
and buy in;

e Facilitate and promote joined up delivery and to engage with and secure support at
a strategic level from key stakeholders and partners;

e Setthe overall direction of the project;

e Monitor overall progress & risks;

e Ensure appropriate resources are in place;

e Make decisions on strategic issues and resolve showstoppers; and

e Provide ‘upwards’ high level liaison into Government bodies.

Composition/Membership of the Project Board
The composition of the Board would largely resemble the membership of the meetings
previously held with the MPs. It is proposed that the Membership would include the
following representatives:

e SWT Leader/Portfolio Holder

e MDDC Leader/Portfolio Holder

e SWT/MDDC Senior Officers

e SCC Senior Officer/Portfolio Holder

e DCC Senior Officer/Portfolio Holder

e Heart of the South West LEP representative

e Rail Operators

20f4

Page 294



e Passenger Representative

e Network Rail

e Local MPs

e Representative from Wellington TC
e Representative from Cullompton TC

Steering Group

Roles and Responsibilities
The Steering Group will focus on the day to day project management of the SOBC and will
manage and implement the project plan. It will identify and oversee the project working
groups and to do so effectively is likely to need to meet at least once every 6 weeks to
generate and maintain momentum in the project. The group focuses on driving the SOBC
forward, including implementing the Project Plan.
The Steering Group will report to the Project Board.
Key roles and responsibilities are listed below:
e Preparation of tender documentation to commission a Strategic Outline Business
Case;
e Day to day project management and implementation of the project plan;
e (Co-ordination of input from partner organisations and drawing in technical
expertise as required;
e Liaison with DfT and potential funding partners;

e Preparation of risk management assessments;

Composition/Membership of the Steering Group
The composition of the Steering Group would be very similar to the current officer group. It
is proposed that the Membership would include the following representatives:

e SWT Officers

e MDDC Officers

e Heart of the South West LEP transport representative

e Rail Operators

e Network Rail

e DCCand SCC Officers (as required)

Working Groups
To ensure the project delivers its ambitions, it is anticipated that working groups would be
set up, as required, to take forward task and finish technical projects. These working

groups would include members of the steering group and would call in assistance from
other technical experts as required.

30f4
Page 295



Stakeholder Engagement

The steering group will need to call on others to help develop the project. This will include a
range of technical experts and stakeholders. Likely stakeholders would include:

Technical Rail/Transport Advisors

Freight Operators

Western Power

Environment Agency

Health & Safety Executive

Homes England

Highways England

Historic England

Transport Forum (including representatives from business, transport, Sustrans and
passenger/road user representatives)

The nature of this engagement will evolve as the projects develop.

Project Sign Off

The lead authorities will need to seek approval on key decisions from their respective

Cabinet/Executive.



/6¢ 9bed

Community,
TCs, Ward

Members

Landowners,
Developers

'\

/

| S |

Working Groups
(as required) e.g.
Finance and Delivery Models
Stakeholder Management
Showcase Event

50f4

APPENDIX A

Stakeholders

Technical Advice
Freight Operators
Western Power
Environment
Agency

HSE

Homes England
Highways
England

Historic England

' Transport Forum




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11.

CABINET

23 APRIL 2020
CLEANING CONTRACTORS

Cabinet Member(s): Clir Simon Clist, Cabinet Member for Housing and
Property Services, Clir Nikki Woollatt, Cabinet Member
for the Working Environment and Support Services.

Responsible Officer: Andrew Busby, Group Manager for Corporate Property
and Commercial Assets.

Reason for Report: For Cabinet to review the results of the tender exercise for the
corporate cleaning that includes offices, leisure centres and public conveniences.

RECOMMENDATION:

1 To award the cleaning contract to supplier(s) for Lots 1,2,3,4 and 6 to Supplier
B; and

2 Not to award a contract for Lot 5 at this time.

Financial Implications: The tendered Lots were established to incorporate essential
cleaning requirements as detailed in this report. The financial results of the tender
exercise can be met from the budget available in the 2020/21 financial year.

Budget and Policy Framework: This cleaning contract will be met from existing
operational budgets. It is necessary to clean the working environment to comply
with the legislation set out under the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974.

Legal Implications: This provides a robust framework for managing and controlling
the service levels of our preferred provider(s) carrying out our cleaning requirements
who will be managed via our standard terms and conditions, including the tender
evaluation for quality.  The performance of the contract shall be monitored on a
monthly basis through a series of reports and formal meetings, which will have
Health and Safety as a priority standing agenda item.

Risk Assessment: As part of the contract award the contractor(s) will be required to
provide a suitable and sufficient risk assessment taking into consideration the
dynamics of each site, mobile and lone working. The assessment will consider the
risks to their employees, Mid Devon employees and customers in all of the service
delivery areas to the community. All cleaning consumables used during the service
provision will have been subject to a Control of Substances Hazardous to Heath
(COSHH) assessment.  All of the outsourced services will be carried out in
accordance with the Councils Code of Conduct.

Equality Impact Assessment: There is no negative impact to equality as existing
staff would be protected under TUPE regulations.

Relationship to Corporate Plan: Property assets are linked to the delivery, vision
and priorities of the Council. The way that the Council manages its land and property
assets has a direct impact on the quality of services delivered, as well as maximising
the value derived from our property holdings for the on-going contribution in

MDDC Report [Cabinet —Cleaning Contractors 260320
V2] port{ 9 ] Page 299



balancing the Councils budget. To maximise the value derived from all Council
property for its stakeholders, by delivering an efficient and fit for purpose corporate
property solutions service.

Impact on Climate Change: Quality questions form 60% of the tender return,
bidders are required provide a quality statement on how their service delivery model
makes provision for its environmental impact. Scope 3 emissions will be reduced as
the service delivery model will be more efficient.

1.0 Introduction
A project team was created with the aim of completing the task of rationalising
and tendering a Corporate Cleaning solution across our estate.

1.1 The tasks included but were not limited to, cleaning lots which grouped
together activities and business unit requirements. Corporate Property &
Commercial Assets (CPCA) have collated cleaning specifications and fiscal
data from business units which formed the basis of the tender.

1.2  The lots initially include the Corporate Sites, Leisure Dry Side and HRA stock,
these may need further breakdown dependant on the capability, and the
Council have ensured SMEs were in a position to bid.

1.3  The project team considered the grouping of activities to determine the correct
packages ensuring that they did not exceed the capabilities of suppliers.

2.0 Vision and Objectives
The project was a financial and service quality requirement designed to let
new contract(s) or use existing framework cleaning contract(s) to deliver
consistent, value for money cleaning services to the council. These
contract(s) are designed to improve the working conditions and extend the life
of assets and their fixtures and fittings. The new contract(s) will provide the
opportunity to reduce reporting lines for the various activities and afford the
responsible person for cleaning services time to monitor and manage cleaning
activities across the estate.

2.1 This will in turn ensure the expectations of our internal customer are met and
the assets receive a reliable service provision.

2.2  The aim of the cleaning tender was designed to future proof the cleaning
services across the council, reducing costs and improving quality year on year
for the life of the contract(s) let. Successful completion of the tender has
provided the council with options to improve service delivery, consistency and
economies of scale for both cleaning services and cleaning consumables.

\I\;I?z?c Report [Cabinet —Cleaning Contractors ZGOfigj)ége %OO



2.3 Existing Cleaning Arrangements

2.31 Corporate cleaning is presently completed by a combination of directly
employed staff with 7 post holders, 2.44 FTE out of the 3.62 FTE posts budgeted
for from the 19-20 financial year and third party service providers. This solution
does not provide an economic cleaning provision to a standard that removes the
risk to employees and customers in the corporate assets of operating in an
environment that is not clean. The current delivery model is disjointed and costly
in repeat cleans of the same areas to cover for poor quality.

2.32 There are regular gaps in this provision which create frustration to our
internal and external customers, this approach creates uncertainty which
increases the risk element.

2.33 Window cleaning, gutters, roads and pathways are presently completed on
an ad hoc basis which is not efficient or cost effective, and a number of service

providers are used for these services which does not give an economy of scale

that is commensurate with a viable and economic solution.

2.34 Voids cleaning is currently completed by a service partner, there has been
more than one provider in recent years which has led to inconsistencies in the
service delivery. The voids cleaning process forms part of a two week timeframe
from the stock being empty to the premises being occupied again. The process
requires a pre void clean price based on an inspection prior to the exit of the
present occupier; this may involve needle sweeps/collection and disposal of
needles, blood/faeces/body fluids/fat/grease and large amounts of filth. The
number of cleans required depends on the number of voids the current average
is 280 per year, this could be higher or lower.

2.35 Mid Devon Leisure operates in excess of 100 hours each week, 362 days
per year, inclusive of non-participating spectators 1,023,126 visits were recorded
in 2018/19. With high levels of footfall through the facilities cleaning is a
significant factor and forms part of the daily duties for the front line staff; whilst
Duty Officers check the standards and walk the facilities continuously throughout
the operational hours. The majority of these duties are completed by the
lifeguards during their rotations on and off of poolside duties.

2.36 Best practice guidelines are that rotation cycles away from the poolside
environment are necessary to maintain maximum vigilance during the duty
period, where observation of the bathers is the primary duty. Infection control
dictates, the priority for the lifeguard team is ensuring the wetside (swimming
pools, changing and toilet facilities) areas are cleaned and maintained as this is
the highest risk area of infection and contamination, this work stream will be
retained as a leisure activity.

2.37 Cleaning of the dryside areas (receptions, courts, halls, meeting/training
areas, saunas, toilets and public walkways), including the replacement of
consumables during operational hours is completed by the lifeguards.

2.38 The specific timings for duties is based on customer flow in order to
miminalise disruption to the consumer.

MDDC Report [Cabinet —Cleaning Contractors 260320
Vo epert S ' Page 301



3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

V2]

Their duties also include:

Support to the fitness gym and class studios
Dealing with instances of unplanned contamination
Faecal incidents

Spillages of food/drinks

Litter picking

Equipment maintenance

Property checks

Health & safety record keeping

Retail stock management.

O O O O O O O O O

Dryside cleaning is regularly noted as being below standard by the users, and
periodic cleaning can currently only be undertaken once per week due to
lifeguard duty priorities.

2.39 Carlu Close offices, toilets and shower facilities are presently completed
by a third party service provider. This solution has had a number of service
providers who have found it a difficult environment to operate in and have not
been capable of completing the required security element, ensuring the site is
secure post cleaning activities.

2.40 This has produced a service delivery model that is not value for money
or delivered to a standard that removes the risk to employees and customers
in the corporate asset.

Scope of the Cleaning Contract

Internal Stakeholders
e Mid Devon Leisure
e Building Services (HRA)
e Waste Depot

The above business areas will be affected with changes in working practices
around the delivery and procurement of consumables, cleaning services and
the introduction of periodic cleaning activities. It is the aim of the project team
to award contract(s) commencing in the 2020/21 fiscal year.

Project Benefits

The tangible benefits are that the Cleaning Service provision will operate in a
safe and compliant manner in future years; an outsourced cleaning provision
will provide innovation, an industry best practice standard of cleaning by
subject matter experts, which will improve the working environment.

Outsourcing cleaning services affords the council the time to concentrate on
our core competencies; the management of the cleaning and janitorial
resources payroll, employee benéefits, sick leave and other HR tasks are
completed by the strategic service partner(s).

The service partner(s) will be able to make adjustments based on the council
needs, if the business requires more cleaners during a busy time, the

MDDC Report [Cabinet —Cleaning Contractors ZGOfigﬂége 302



company will be able to provide it, if the business requires fewer, and the
company will also allow you to scale back.

5.0 Scope of Lots
The scope of the Lots that have been tendered are as follows:

» LOT 1 - Project - Office Building Cleaning and Public Conveniences— to
Include: Phoenix House - Old Road - Pannier Market - Chapels - Common
Room (Westfield Road) - Amory Park
Office - Empty bins, clean desks & chairs, hoover floors, clean
windowsills, clean blinds (high levels, door frames, vents, lights)
Kitchens — Empty bins, clean sides, clean white goods, hand towels,
mop/hoover floors
Toilets — Clean toilets, clean sinks, replenish toilet rolls and hand towels,
wipe partitions, wipe window sills, mop floor
Public Areas — Hoover floors and stairs, clean banisters, clean
windowsills, lift doors, glass banisters

» LOT 2 - Project — Window Cleaning Internal & External and Gutters — to
Include: Phoenix House - Carlu Close - Old Road - Exe Valley Leisure
Centre - Culm Valley Leisure Centre - Lords Meadow Leisure Centre -
Pannier Market - Bus Station — Amory Park

» LOT 3 - Specialist Voids Cleaning — HRA Stock
Builders Clean - Hoover floors, carpet cleaning, clean windowsills, clean
blinds (High Levels, door frames, vents, lights)
Kitchens - Clean sides, clean white goods, mop/hoover floors
Toilets — Clean toilets, clean sinks, wipe walls/partitions, wipe window
sills, mop floor
Living Areas — Hoover floors and stairs, clean banisters, clean windowsills

Externals — Cleaning of doors, windows, rain water gutters.
» LOT 4 - Project — Play areas, roads and pathways

» LOT 5 - Project — Leisure Dry Side

Y

LOT 6 — Project — Carlu Close — A separate lot is require due to future
relocation and the operational nature/difficulties this site presents. To
ensure the current SME service provider is able to compete, Lot 1 will be
for office cleaning as a standard for all sites and a separate Lot for Carlu
that will allow the council to have contract options upon award.

MDDC Report [Cabinet —Cleaning Contractors 260320
Vo epert S ' Page 303



6.0 Financial Information

6.1  An indicative budget of circa £155k had been identified based on current run

rates, this will have a separate cost control sheet, once the initial

assessments and any consultant costs have been agreed. The cleaning
contract will deliver value for money by improving efficiencies as well as the

standard of cleaning across the whole portfolio.

MDDC Report [Cabinet

V2]

—Cleaning Contractors 2601129é.ge g04

LOT Location Tender Description Breakdown Costs £

Lot 1 Phoenix House Materials 873.86

Library — Subcontractors 840.00

Office Cleaning Staffing 28,800.37

Subcontractors 25,435.28

Materials 4,912.42

Public Staffing 17,803.78
Conveniences

Materials 1,084.33

Cemeteries Subcontractors 55.00

Amory Park Subcontractors 800.00

Common Room Staffing 2,413.43

Subcontractors 100.00

Total LOT 1 £83,118.47

Lot 2 Phoenix House Subcontractors 1,568.33

Old Road Subcontractors 350.00

Total LOT 2 £1,918.33

Lot 3 VOIDS Subcontractors 23,426.54

Total LOT 3 £23,426.54

Lot 4 Play Areas, Roads | Subcontractors 8,089.75
and Pathways

Total LOT 4 £8,089.75

Lot5 Leisure Dryside Staffing 24,402.00

Materials 4,950.00

Total LOT 5 £29,352.00

Lot 6 Carlu Close Subcontractors 9,315.00

Total LOT 6 | £9,315.00

TOTAL 155,220.09




6.2 The tender outcome is attached to this report as Annex A in Part 2.

7.0 Procurement

7.1 The council followed procurement process timetable below for the award of

the contract(s):

Publish Procurement Initiation Notice (PIN)

17 December 2019

Publish Contract Notice (contains link to contract
documents)

24 January 2020

Expression of Interest

24 January to 03 February 2020

Publication of ITT

24 January 2020

Site visits encouraged

12 February to 13 February

Clarification questions to be submitted by

25 February 2020

Clarification responses to be issued by

27 February 2020

Submission of ITT

12.00 noon - 28 February 2020

Evaluation

02 March to 06 March 2020

Decision

26 March 2020

Standstill period

27 March to 08 April 2020

Contract Award

26 March 2020

Contract Award Notice

25 April 2020

Lead time for delivery

08 April to 15 April 2020

7.2  Specifications were provided for suppliers to price against and the associated
business units where consulted. Annex B has been attached to this report to
show the specification on a corporate building and Annex C has been
attached to show the specification for cleaning housing voids.

7.3 The initial contract term is one year with an option to extend for a further 2
years at a time for a potential contract term of 5 years. The contract cost for

year 1 is shown on Annex A.

8.0 Conclusion

The project was delivered under the guidance of the procurement and
property services teams, both with sufficient knowledge in the field of
procuring/tendering soft services. The project has adopted an agile approach
to procuring the latest cleaning techniques to both save money and improve
the quality of the working environment within Council property.

Contact for more Information: Andrew Busby, Group Manager for Corporate

Property & Commercial Assets.

Circulation of the Report: Group Managers, Cabinet, Leadership Team.

List of Background Papers: None

MDDC Report [Cabinet —Cleaning Contractors 260320]

V(2] Pa@e 305




This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 307



This page is intentionally left blank



Annex B

DISTRICT COUNCIL

STANDARD SPECIFCATION FOR CLEANING SERVICES

SCHEME ADDRESS: PHOENIX HOUSE

TTE obed

externally.

grease, other deposits, water marks and smears.
Windows panes and frames should be free from
grease dirt, water and rubber marks, stains or
streaks.

AREA TASK PERFORMANCE STANDARD FREQUENCY
CENTRAL FOYER STAIRS, LANDINGS | Vacuum all carpets Carpets should be left free of dust, litter and 3 x Weekly
AND CORRIDORS AND GENERAL debris. Areas should be left free of dirt, dust and
OFFICE AREAS. litter.
Skirting Ensure skirting boards are left free of dirt and Monthly
dust.
Glass Balustrades Glass panes and frames should be free from Weekly
grease dirt, finger marks and streaks.
Dust all surfaces, windows, sill’s frames and Areas should be left free of dirt, dust and litter. Weekly
ledges.
ENTRANCE HALL MATS Vacuum — clean fixed entrance hall mats Mats to be free of dirt, dust and litter Daily
BACK STAIRS X 3 Vacuum all carpets Carpets and all areas should be left free of dust, Weekly
litter and debris.
Dust all surfaces, windows, sills frames and Areas should be left free of dirt, dust and litter Weekly
ledges
WINDOW SILLS, LIGHT SWITCHES, | Spot clean and damp dust all internal All surfaces free from dust. Weekly
HANDRAILS, AND LEDGES. windowsills, frames, light switches and ledges.
COMMUNAL DOORS Clean all areas of common doors internally & All surfaces to be left clear and free of dirt, dust, Monthly

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\9\8\1\A100007 189\$gi3pbu0i.doc

1 18/03/20




21¢ abed

KITCHEN AREAS (ON ALL FLOORS Clean and sanitize sink, fixture, counters and All surfaces should be left free of dirt, stain Daily
TO INCLUDE LIBRARY AREA) tables marks.
Empty/remove all bin liners and caddy liners Daily
and replace liner
Refill paper products and washing up products Daily
as necessary.
Sweep and wash floor All surfaces should be left free of dirt, stain 3 x Weekly
marks.
Clean Fridge. All surfaces should be left free of dirt, stain and Monthly
marks.
MEETING ROOMS Vacuum carpet dust all surfaces, window sills & | Carpets and all areas should be left free of dust of | Daily
ledges, empty bins. litter and debris.
Wipe all tables and work surfaces. Tables should be cleaned with a solution of water | 3 x Weekly
and smear proof neutral cleaning agent. To be
left dry and free of stains.
Dust all chairs Chairs should be free of all dust and dirt. Monthly
TOILETS (GROUND FLOOR TO Clean and sanitize fixtures, under seats, mirrors, | Using appropriate cleaning products all surfaces Daily
INCLUDE LIBRARY, 15T AND 2N\P sinks, counters and tiled areas under hand to be left clear and free of dirt, dust, grease and
FLOOR) dryers. Clean commodes and urinals inside and | other deposits.
out including flange.
Refill paper products and soap dispenser as Daily
necessary.
Sweep and wash floor All surfaces should be left free of dirt & stain Daily
marks.
COMMUNAL TOILETS & DISABLED | Floors should be swept and washed. SINK and Bleach & other appropriate cleaners to be used. Daily
TOILETS toilet bowl and all pipe work dust and cleaned. Floors should be left dry and free all stains. An
industrial toilet block should be placed in each
toilet bowl, as and when previous runs out.
COMMUNAL AREAS Doorframes, ceilings, stairwells, light fittings High dust for cobwebs. Monthly
COMMUNAL WINDOWS IN ALL Clean all internal glass Windows panes should be free from grease, dirt, | Monthly
water and rubber marks, stains or streaks.
LIFT Sweep and wash lift floor and wipe clean all All surfaces should be left free of dirt, stain Weekly
mirrored surfaces and handrail. marks.
COMMUNAL SHOWERS Sweep and wash floor, clean and sanitize Using appropriate cleaning products wash all Weekly

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\9\8\1\A100007 189\$gi3pbu0i.doc

2 18/03/20




fixtures and surfaces. surfaces and leave free of all dirt, marks and
stains.
DWP AREA Vacuum carpet dust all surfaces, window sills & | Carpets and all areas should be left free of dust of | Daily
ledges, empty bins. litter and debris. Rubbish/recycling to designated
area and replace liners.
Sweep and wash entrance hard floor area All surfaces should be left free of dirt & stain Daily
marks.
Dust and polish all flat surfaces To include Ann Woodman room table, public Daily
computer desks, customer information table and
filing cupboards. All surfaces should be left free
of dirt, stain marks.
Wipe Down Customer Sofas All surfaces should be left free of dirt & stain Daily
marks.
Glass Desk Partitions Glass panes and frames should be free from Twice Weekly
grease dirt, finger marks and streaks.
Wipe Down White & Burgundy customer chairs | All surfaces should be left free of dirt & stain Weekly
marks.
U Wipe Down Floor surfaces under windows (not carpeted), Monthly
Q skirting boards, doorframes, light fittings, high
L% cobwebs.
co| LIBRARY AREA Dust and polish all flat surfaces To include visitor computer areas, book shelves Weekly
- (including tops of bookshelves) and any other flat
w surface
OTHER General cleaning tasks To assist with the good cleansing upkeep of the OTHER
building.

Please note the following: -

1. The contractor shall provide, run and maintain suitable machinery & tools in accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions and health and safety
recommendations for safe use, for cleaning services, at no additional cost.

2. The contractor shall provide appropriate cleaning materials

3. The contractor will be required to submit Health and Safety monitoring sheets for each visit (see attached), which will be submitted with monthly invoices for

works undertaken, each equal to 1/12th of the annual contract value ( + the cost of any additional works approved by the Property Services Team).

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\9\8\1\A100007 189\$gi3pbu0i.doc

3 18/03/20




4. Appropriate protection and signage to be in place whilst works are in progress to ensure the health and safety of staff, contractor’s operatives and the general
public where applicable.

5. Fuel for machinery should be included in the quotation figure, and the contractor will ensure safe storage and transport of any fuels in accordance with health
and safety guidelines.

6. All additional work is to be authorised in advance by the Property Services Department and the Estate Management Department, invoiced separately along
with the normal monthly charge.

7. All chemicals used must be non-hazardous to animals and people and used according to manufacturer’s instructions, COSHH documentation and control
measures must be provided prior to any works being undertaken.

8. All work is to be carried out in accordance with the Mid Devon District Council Code of Conduct.

v TS abed

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\9\8\1\A100007 189\$gi3pbu0i.doc 4 18/03/20



Midé
Devon

DISTRICT COUNCIL

STANDARD SPECIFCATION FOR CLEANING SERVICES

SCHEME ADDRESS: HOUSING VOIDS

AREA TASK PERFORMANCE STANDARD FREQUENCY

THROUGOUT PROPERTY Remove all cobwebs Mats to be free of dirt, dust and litter

THROUGOUT PROPERTY Remove all drawing pins, cello-tape and blue-

tack from walls and ceilings
THROUGOUT PROPERTY Vacuum all carpets
THROUGOUT PROPERTY All internal hard floors are to be thoroughly Remove all scuff marks and paint splashes
cleaned and moped over with a fragrant wherever possible.
— disinfectant.
Q’ﬂ-lROUGOUT PROPERTY Clean down all electrical sockets, light fittings
Q and switches
:'tHROUGOUT PROPERTY Dusting all surfaces All surfaces free from dust.
:’ial-lROUGOUT PROPERTY Deodorize all rooms Air fresheners to be left in all rooms.
GHROUGOUT PROPERTY Wash down all Skirting Boards All surfaces should be left free of dirt, stain
marks.

THROUGOUT PROPERTY Clean Radiators Radiators will be cleaned at the front and as
much as possible elsewhere without removing or
stripping component parts.

THROUGOUT PROPERTY New fixtures and fittings — remove labels Remove all labels and packaging from new
fittings and fixtures, including sanitary ware and
kitchen units.

THROUGOUT PROPERTY Clean Doors - Internal All doors (including front door, door frames,
architraves and linings) are to be thoroughly
cleaned.

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\9\8\1\A100007189\$qwojvkj3.doc 1 18/03/20



DOORS - EXTERNAL

Wash down front and rear doors and frames.

KITCHEN

All kitchen units, work surface, cupboards,
drawers, sinks and taps are to be thoroughly
cleaned inside and out, and wiped over with an
anti-bacterial spray.

All surfaces should be left free of dirt, stain
marks.

Internal tiled wall areas are to be thoroughly
cleaned and wiped over with anti-bacterial

spray

Cleaning will leave no marks. All residue will be
rinsed away and cleaning will be finished streak
free.

WALK IN STORAGE

Sweep and mop

All surfaces should be left free of dirt.

CUPBOARDS/LARDERS
BATHROOM All bathroom fittings (toilet, sink, bath, taps, Toilet cleaning will include back, front, inside, the
etc) are to be thoroughly cleaned and wiped seat and the ‘U’ bend. A proprietary toilet ‘duck’
over with an anti-bacterial spray. shall be used on the inside of the WC pan and a
U toilet strip left to confirm that it has been
8 cleaned.
@ Internal tiled wall areas are to be thoroughly Cleaning will leave no marks. All residue will be
W cleaned and wiped over with anti-bacterial rinsed away and cleaning will be finished streak
l; spray free.

STAIRWAYS & STEPS

Stairways and steps are to be swept and
thoroughly cleaned.

WINDOWS All windows and frames to be thoroughly Windows panes should be free from grease, dirt,
cleaned and washed down, both inside and out. | water and rubber marks, stains or streaks.
EXTERNAL Clean tiled areas All external tiled areas are to be thoroughly

cleaned

Please note the following: -

1. The contractor shall provide, run and maintain suitable machinery & tools in accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions and health and safety
recommendations for safe use, for cleaning services, at no additional cost.

2. The contractor will be required to submit Health and Safety monitoring sheets for each visit (see attached), which will be submitted with monthly invoices for
works undertaken, each equal to 1/12th of the annual contract value ( + the cost of any additional works approved by the Old Road Team).

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\9\8\1\A100007 189\$qwojvk;j3.doc 2 18/03/20



3. Appropriate protection and signage to be in place whilst works are in progress to ensure the health and safety of staff, contractor’s operatives and the general
public where applicable.

4. Fuel for machinery should be included in the quotation figure, and the contractor will ensure safe storage and transport of any fuels in accordance with health
and safety guidelines.

5. All additional work is to be authorised in advance by the Property Services Department and the Estate Management Department, invoiced separately along
with the normal monthly charge.

6. All chemicals used must be non-hazardous to animals and people and used according to manufacturer’s instructions, COSHH documentation and control
measures must be provided prior to any works being undertaken.

7. All work is to be carried out in accordance with the Mid Devon District Council Code of Conduct.

/TE obed

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\9\8\1\A100007 189\$qwojvk;j3.doc 3 18/03/20



This page is intentionally left blank



MID DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL — NOTIFICATION OF KEY DECISIONS

April/May 2020

The Forward Plan containing Key Decisions is published 28 days prior to each Cabinet meeting

Outturn 2019/20
Report presenting the

Deputy Chief
Executive (S151)

for Finance
(Councillor Alex

Title of report and Decision Date of Officer contact Cabinet Member Intention to
summary of decision Taker Decision consider report in
private session
and the reason(s)

Management of Legionella Cabinet 7 May 2020 Andrew Busby, Cabinet Member Open
Policy Group Manager for for Housing and

To consider a review to the Corporate Property | Property Services

policy and Commercial (Councillor Simon

Assets Tel: 01884 Clist)

_e) 234948
2
c@:orporate Asbestos Policy Cabinet 7 May 2020 Andrew Jarrett, Cabinet Member Open
Eo consider a revised policy. Deputy Chief for Housing and

© Executive (S151) Property Services

Tel: 01884 234242 | (Councillor Simon
Clist)

Tiverton Town Centre Cabinet 7 May 2020 Jenny Clifford, Head | Cabinet Member Open
Masterplan Stage Il of Planning, for Planning and

Consultation Economy and Economic

To request approval to go Regeneration Tel: Regeneration

out to Stage Il consultation 01884 234346 (Councillor

on the masterplan Graeme Barnell)

documents

Revenue and Capital Cabinet 7 May 2020 Andrew Jarrett, Cabinet Member Open

Mid Devon District Council Cabinet Forward Plan — April 2020

'ZT Wal| epusby



Title of report and Decision Date of Officer contact Cabinet Member Intention to
summary of decision Taker Decision consider report in
private session
and the reason(s)
revenue and capital outturn Tel: 01884 234242 White)
figures for the financial year
2019/20.
3 Rivers Governance Cabinet 21 May 2020 Stephen Walford, Leader of the Fully exempt
Report Chief Executive Tel: Council
To consider a report of the 01884 234201 (Councillor Bob
Chief Executive with regard Deed)
10 3 Rivers Developments
Dimited.
@
w
Beport on DCC Environment Claire Fry, Group Cabinet Member Open
responsibility for HRA Policy Manager for for the
grass verges Development Housing Tel: 01884 Environment
To receive a report on grass Group 19 May 2020 234920 (Councillor Luke
cutting currently carried out Taylor)
by the Housing Team which Cabinet 11 Jun 2020
is the responsibility of DCC
and to make a decision on
whether this practice should
continue.
Hydro Mills Project - Economy Jenny Clifford, Head | Cabinet Member Open
Tiverton Weir Policy of Planning, for Planning and
To receive a report outlining | Development Economy and Economic
the Tiverton Weir Hydro Mills Group 21 May 2020 Regeneration Tel: Regeneration
project seeking approval and 01884 234346 (Councillor
funding. Cabinet 11 Jun 2020 Graeme Barnell)

Mid Devon District Council Cabinet Forward Plan — April 2020




Title of report and Decision Date of Officer contact Cabinet Member Intention to
summary of decision Taker Decision consider report in
private session
and the reason(s)
EHOD Economic Economy Adrian Welsh, Cabinet Member Open
Development Strategy Policy Group Manager for | for Planning and
To consider a review | Development Growth, Economy Economic
strategy Group 21 May 2020 and Delivery Tel: Regeneration
01884 234398 (Councillor
Cabinet 11 Jun 2020 Graeme Barnell)
Leasehold Management Homes Policy Jill May, Director of | Cabinet Member Open
Policy Development Corporate Affairs for Housing and
To receive a report reviewing Group 26 May 2020 and Business Property Services
e Leasehold Management Transformation Tel: | (Councillor Simon
;?olicy. Cabinet 11 Jun 2020 01884 234381 Clist)
..8
¢ASB Policy and Homes Policy Jill May, Director of | Cabinet Member Open
Nrocedures Development Corporate Affairs for Housing and
F'o receive a report reviewing Group 26 May 2020 and Business Property Services
the Housing Services' Anti- Transformation Tel: | (Councillor Simon
Social Behaviour Policy and Cabinet 11 Jun 2020 01884 234381 Clist)
Procedures.
Tenancy Changes Policy Homes Policy Jill May, Director of | Cabinet Member Open
To receive a report reviewing | Development Corporate Affairs for Housing and
the Tenancy Changes Policy. Group 26 May 2020 and Business Property Services
Transformation Tel: | (Councillor Simon
Cabinet 11 Jun 2020 01884 234381 Clist)
Allocations Policy Homes Policy Claire Fry, Group Cabinet Member Open
To receive a report from the Development Manager for for Housing and
Group Manager for Housing Group 26 May 2020 Housing Tel: 01884 | Property Services

Services reviewing the

234920

(Councillor Simon

Mid Devon District Council Cabinet Forward Plan — April 2020




Title of report and Decision Date of Officer contact Cabinet Member Intention to
summary of decision Taker Decision consider report in
private session
and the reason(s)
Allocations Policy. Cabinet 11 Jun 2020 Clist)
S$106 Governance Scrutiny Jenny Clifford, Head | Cabinet Member Open
To agree governance Committee 1 Jun 2020 of Planning, for Planning and
arrangements for S106 Economy and Economic
agreements Cabinet 18 Jun 2020 Regeneration Tel: Regeneration
01884 234346 (Councillor
Graeme Barnell)
T
Q
()
®Breater Exeter Strategic Scrutiny Jenny Clifford, Head | Cabinet Member Open
lan Committee 1 Jun 2020 of Planning, for Planning and
NDo receive and note a report Economy and Economic
from the Head of Planning Cabinet 18 Jun 2020 Regeneration Tel: Regeneration
and Regeneration on the 01884 234346 (Councillor
progress of the Greater Graeme Barnell)
Exeter Strategic Plan
Statement of Community Scrutiny Jenny Clifford, Head | Cabinet Member Open
Involvement Review 2020 Committee 1 Jun 2020 of Planning, for Planning and
Report to seek authority to Economy and Economic
consult on the draft revised Cabinet 11 Jun 2020 Regeneration Tel: Regeneration
text..... 01884 234346 (Councillor
Council 1 Jul 2020 Graeme Barnell)
Contaminated Land Cost Community Simon Newcombe, Cabinet Member Open

Mid Devon District Council Cabinet Forward Plan — April 2020




Title of report and Decision Date of Officer contact Cabinet Member Intention to
summary of decision Taker Decision consider report in
private session
and the reason(s)
Recovery Policy Policy Group Manager for for Community
To receive the 5 yearly Development Public Health and Well Being
review of the Contaminated Group 2 Jun 2020 Regulatory Services (Councillor
Land Cost Recovery Policy Tel: 01884 244615 | Dennis Knowles)
from the Group Manager for Cabinet 9 Jul 2020
Public Health and Regulatory
Services
Community Safety Community Simon Newcombe, Cabinet Member Open
Partnership Policy Group Manager for for Community
consider a report from the | Development Public Health and Well Being
oup Manager for Public Group 2 Jun 2020 Regulatory Services (Councillor
(Blealth and Regulatory Tel: 01884 244615 | Dennis Knowles)
Bervices outlining the Cabinet 9 Jul 2020
§2uncil’s Community Safety
tion Plan, and to seek
Members recommendation to
acknowledge and accept the
priorities action plan
Use of CCTV Policy and Community Andrew Busby, Cabinet Member Open
Guidance Policy Group Manager for for Community
To receive and approve the Development Corporate Property Well Being
Use of CCTV Policy and Group 2 Jun 2020 and Commercial (Councillor
Guidance Assets Tel: 01884 Dennis Knowles)
Cabinet 9 Jul 2020 234948
Council 26 Aug 2020

Mid Devon District Council Cabinet Forward Plan — April 2020




Title of report and Decision Date of Officer contact Cabinet Member Intention to
summary of decision Taker Decision consider report in
private session
and the reason(s)
Grant payments to external Community John Bodley-Scott, Cabinet Member Open
organisations (the Policy Economic for Community
strategic grants review Development Development Team Well Being
process) Group 2 Jun 2020 Leader (Councillor
To receive the 4 yearly Dennis Knowles)
review of Grant Payments to Cabinet 11 Jun 2020
external organisations from
the Group Manager for
Growth, Economy & Delivery
T
&
bocal Plan Review - Cabinet 11 Jun 2020 | Jenny Clifford, Head | Cabinet Member Open
dospector's Report on of Planning, for Planning and
doption Council 1 Jul 2020 Economy and Economic
o consider the Inspector's Regeneration Tel: Regeneration
report on the adoption of the 01884 234346 (Councillor
Local Plan Review Graeme Barnell)
Options for Accelerating Cabinet 11 Jun 2020 Andrew Jarrett, Cabinet Member Open
Affordable Housing Deputy Chief for Housing and
Delivery in the District Executive (S151) Property Services
To consider additional Tel: 01884 234242 | (Councillor Simon
governance arrangements Clist)
for housing delivery
Annual Treasury Cabinet 11 Jun 2020 Andrew Jarrett, Cabinet Member Open
Management Report Deputy Chief for Finance
Report providing Members Council 1 Jul 2020 Executive (S151) (Councillor Alex

Mid Devon District Council Cabinet Forward Plan — April 2020




Title of report and Decision Date of Officer contact Cabinet Member Intention to
summary of decision Taker Decision consider report in
private session
and the reason(s)

with a review of activities and Tel: 01884 234242 White)

the actual prudential treasury

indicators for 2019/20.

Capital Programme Review Cabinet 11 Jun 2020 Andrew Jarrett, Cabinet Member Open

To review the Capital Deputy Chief for Finance

Programme taking into Council 1 Jul 2020 Executive (S151) (Councillor Alex

account the emerging Tel: 01884 234242 White)

Corporate Plan and the

delivery of projects in

ullompton and Tiverton (as
greed by Cabinet 13

(Bebruary 2020).

)

W

MOlimate Strategy and Environment Andrew Busby, Cabinet Member Open
Qction Plan Policy Group Manager for for Climate

To receive the 4 yearly Development Corporate Property Change

review of the Climate Group 14 Jul 2020 and Commercial (Councillor

Strategy and Action Plan Assets Tel: 01884 Elizabeth

from the Group Manager for Cabinet 6 Aug 2020 234948 Wainwright)

Corporate Property and

Commercial Assets.

Tenancy Inspection Policy Homes Policy Jill May, Director of | Cabinet Member Open

To receive a report reviewing | Development Corporate Affairs for Housing and

the Tenancy Inspection Group 21 Jul 2020 and Business Property Services

Policy Transformation Tel: | (Councillor Simon

Cabinet 6 Aug 2020 01884 234381 Clist)
Beech Road, Tiverton - Cabinet 3 Sep 2020 Andrew Jarrett, Cabinet Member Part exempt

Mid Devon District Council Cabinet Forward Plan — April 2020




Title of report and
summary of decision

Decision
Taker

Date of
Decision

Officer contact

Cabinet Member

Intention to
consider report in
private session
and the reason(s)

Design and Build Tender
To consider the award of the
tender

Deputy Chief
Executive (S151)
Tel: 01884 234242

for Housing and

Property Services

(Councillor Simon
Clist)

Design Supplementary

Planning Document - post

consultation

To consider the

“Bupplementary Planning
ocument post consultation

9]

Cabinet

3 Sep 2020

Jenny Clifford, Head
of Planning,
Economy and
Regeneration Tel:
01884 234346

Cabinet Member
for Planning and
Economic
Regeneration
(Councillor
Graeme Barnell)

Open

%oint Exeter and Heart of
d®evon (EHOD) Economic
Development Strategy
To consider a revised
strategy

Economy
Policy
Development
Group

Cabinet

10 Sep 2020

1 Oct 2020

Jenny Clifford, Head
of Planning,
Economy and
Regeneration Tel:
01884 234346

Cabinet Member
for Planning and
Economic
Regeneration
(Councillor
Graeme Barnell)

Open

Private Sector Fees and
Charges
To consider a revised policy.

Homes Policy
Development
Group

Cabinet

3 Sep 2020

1 Oct 2020

Simon Newcombe,
Group Manager for
Public Health and
Regulatory Services
Tel: 01884 244615

Cabinet Member
for Housing and
Property Services
(Councillor Simon
Clist)

Open

Aids and Adaptations
Policy
To receive a report reviewing

Homes Policy
Development
Group

15 Sep 2020

Jill May, Director of
Corporate Affairs
and Business

Cabinet Member
for Housing and
Property Services

Open

Mid Devon District Council Cabinet Forward Plan — April 2020




Title of report and Decision Date of Officer contact Cabinet Member Intention to
summary of decision Taker Decision consider report in
private session
and the reason(s)

the Aids and Adaptations Transformation Tel: | (Councillor Simon

Policy. Cabinet 1 Oct 2020 01884 234381 Clist)

Introductory Tenancies Homes Policy Jill May, Director of | Cabinet Member Open
Policy Development Corporate Affairs for Housing and

To receive a report reviewing Group 15 Sep 2020 and Business Property Services

the Introductory Tenancies Transformation Tel: | (Councillor Simon

Policy Cabinet 1 Oct 2020 01884 234381 Clist)

Bervice Standards Review Homes Policy Jill May, Director of | Cabinet Member Open

o receive a report reviewing | Development Corporate Affairs for Housing and
ervice Standards in the Group 15 Sep 2020 and Business Property Services

cdousing Service. Transformation Tel: | (Councillor Simon

B Cabinet 1 Oct 2020 01884 234381 Clist)

Severe Weather Homes Policy Jill May, Director of | Cabinet Member Open
Emergency Protocol and Development Corporate Affairs for Housing and

Extended Winter Provision Group 15 Sep 2020 and Business Property Services

Protocol Transformation Tel: | (Councillor Simon

To receive a report reviewing Cabinet 1 Oct 2020 01884 234381 Clist)

the Severe Weather

Emergency Protocol and

Extended Winter Provision

Protocol.

Devon District Council's Community Jill May, Director of Cabinet for the Open
Joint Safeguarding Policy Policy Corporate Affairs Working

and MDDC Guidance and Development and Business Environment and

Procedures Group 22 Sep 2020 Transformation Tel: | Support Services

Mid Devon District Council Cabinet Forward Plan — April 2020




Title of report and Decision Date of Officer contact Cabinet Member Intention to
summary of decision Taker Decision consider report in
private session
and the reason(s)
Annually or whenever there 01884 234381 (Councillor Nikki
is a change in the legislation. Cabinet 1 Oct 2020 Woollatt)
Housing Revenue Account | Homes Policy Jill May, Director of | Cabinet Member Open
Asset Management Development Corporate Affairs for Housing and
Strategy Group 10 Nov 2020 and Business Property Services
To receive a report providing Transformation Tel: | (Councillor Simon
a review of the Housing Cabinet 3 Dec 2020 01884 234381 Clist)
Revenue Account Asset
"Management Strategy.
2
q?enancy Policy review and | Homes Policy Jill May, Director of | Cabinet Member Open
Kﬁ)enancy Strategy Development Corporate Affairs for Housing and
Obo receive a report reviewing Group 10 Nov 2020 and Business Property Services
the Tenancy Policy and Transformation Tel: | (Councillor Simon
Tenancy Strategy. Cabinet 3 Dec 2020 01884 234381 Clist)
Domestic Abuse Policy Homes Policy Jill May, Director of | Cabinet Member Open
To receive a report reviewing | Development Corporate Affairs for Housing and
the Domestic Abuse Policy Group 10 Nov 2020 and Business Property Services
Transformation Tel: | (Councillor Simon
Cabinet 3 Dec 2020 01884 234381 Clist)
Housing Enabling SPD Homes Policy Jill May, Director of | Cabinet Member Open
(S$106 - Housing Need Development Corporate Affairs for Housing and
Allocation - Exception Group 19 Jan 2021 and Business Property Services
Sites) Transformation Tel: | (Councillor Simon
To receive a report reviewing Cabinet 4 Feb 2021 01884 234381 Clist)

the Housing Enabling SPD
document

Mid Devon District Council Cabinet Forward Plan — April 2020




Title of report and
summary of decision

Decision
Taker

Date of
Decision

Officer contact

Cabinet Member

Intention to
consider report in
private session
and the reason(s)

6¢¢ abed

Mid Devon District Council Cabinet Forward Plan — April 2020




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 14.

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 331



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 337



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 339



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 345



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 347



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4. Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	5. Environment Educational Policy
	March PDG Report - Education and Enforcement Policy Updates, 10/03/2020 Environment Policy Development Group
	Appendix A - Fly Tipping Policy, 10/03/2020 Environment Policy Development Group
	Appendix B - Littering from Vehicles Policy, 10/03/2020 Environment Policy Development Group
	Appendix C - Compulsory Recycling Policy_, 10/03/2020 Environment Policy Development Group
	Appendix D  - Abandoned Vehicles Policy, 10/03/2020 Environment Policy Development Group
	Appendix E - Stray Dog Policy, 10/03/2020 Environment Policy Development Group

	6. Public Spaces Protection Order
	Draft Public Spaces Protection Order FINAL, 10/03/2020 Environment Policy Development Group
	Plan 1, 10/03/2020 Environment Policy Development Group
	Plans 2 - 19, 10/03/2020 Environment Policy Development Group
	Plans 20 - 70, 10/03/2020 Environment Policy Development Group
	Plans   71  -  149, 10/03/2020 Environment Policy Development Group
	Plans 71 -149
	SKM_C335120022710530
	SKM_C335120022711140

	SKM_C335120022814340


	7. Climate Change Advisory Group
	8. Car Parking Management Policy
	Car Park Mgt Policy with tracked changes, 17/03/2020 Homes Policy Development Group

	9. Garage Management Policy
	Garage Mgt Policy with tracked changes, 17/03/2020 Homes Policy Development Group

	10. Cullompton and Wellington New Railway Stations Project - Governance, Process, Project Funding and Next Steps
	Cull RS Appendix 1 Proposed Project Governance Arrangements

	11. Cleaning Contractors
	Cabinet-Cleaning Part 2- Annex A v2
	Cabinet -Annex B- Cleaning Spec PH 260320
	Cabinet Annex C - Cleaning Spec Housing Voids  260320

	12. Notification of Key Decisions
	14. To consider the sale of 19 High Street, Cullompton (Former Harlequin Valet Site)
	Annex A - Part 2 Cabinet - Site Plan HV - 230420
	Annex B Cabinet Part 2-19 High Street 230420
	Annex C -Part 2 Cabinet -CTC Letter 230420
	Annex D Cabinet Part 2 -CTC Working Group - 230420


